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AGENDA

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL
Monday, June 20, 2016
4:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting
City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, Texas 75087

1. CALL PuBLIC MEETING TO ORDER

II. WORK SESSIONS

p.-11 1. Hold a work session to discuss and consider the minimum square footage required
for residential dwelling units in various zoning districts as stipulated by Article V,
"District Development Standards" of the Unified Development Code

p-14 2. Hold a work session to hear a project status on the engineering design for the East
Boydstun Avenue (South Goliad to Clark Street) and Throckmorton Street (East
Boydstun Avenue to East Bourn Street) Paving Improvement Projects

p-23 3. Hold a work session to hear update regarding the South Lakeshore Drive/Summit
Ridge Reconstruction Project

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION.

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT
CODE:

1. Discussion regarding proposed renegotiation of City v. Primary Media
settlement agreement pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney)

2. Discussion regarding contract with Holmes Murphy & Associates and HIPPA
Information pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

3. Discussion regarding purchase or lease of real property / land acquisition in
the vicinity of FM-3549 and SH-66 pursuant to Section § 551.072 (Real
Property).

V. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION

Monday, June 20, 2016 City Council Agenda
Page 1



AGENDA

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL
Monday, June 20, 2016
6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting
City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, Texas 75087

V. RECONVENE PuBLIC MEETING

VL. TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

ViII. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — COUNCILMEMBER LEWIS

VIII. OPEN FORUM

IX. CONSENT AGENDA

p-25 1.

p.38 2.

p.51 3.

p.60 4.

Consider approval of the minutes from the June 6, 2016 regular city council
meeting, and take any action necessary.

22016-013 - Consider a request by Garrett Lust of Pointe Land &
Development, LLC on behalf of Marven Wu of West Union Investment, Co.
for the approval of an ordinance for a zoning change from an Agricultural
(AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10)
District land uses on a 81.49-acre parcel of land identified as Tract 16 of the
J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, located on Rochell Road south of the
intersection of Rochell Road the SH-276, and take any action necessary.
(2nd Reading)

P2016-020 - Consider a request by Cameron Slown of FC Cuny Corporation
on behalf of Randal Currington of Fontanna Ranch Phase I, LP for the
approval of a final plat for Phase Il of the Fontanna Ranch Subdivision
containing 49 single-family residential lots on a 19.167-acre tract of land
identified as Tract 5 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 64
(PD-64) for Single Family 16 (SF-16) land uses, generally located east of
FM-549 and south of SH-276, and take any action necessary.

P2016-028 - Consider a request by Noah Flabiano of the Skorburg Company
on behalf of the owner Lakeside Church of Christ of Rockwall for the
approval of a master plan/ open space plan for the Ridgecrest Subdivision
containing 45 single-family residential lots on a 29.541-acre parcel of land
being a portion of Lot 1 and all of Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Lakeside Church
of Christ Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned
Development District 81 (PD-81), located on the north side of Airport Road,
west of the intersection of Airport Road and FM-3549, and take any action
necessary.

Monday, June 20, 2016 City Council Agenda
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p.67 5.

p.74 ©.

P2016-029 - Consider a request by Noah Flabiano of the Skorburg Company
on behalf of the owner Lakeside Church of Christ of Rockwall for the
approval of a preliminary plat for the Ridgecrest Subdivision containing 45
single-family residential lots on a 29.541-acre parcel of land being a portion
of Lot 1 and all of Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Lakeside Church of Christ
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned
Development District 81 (PD-81), located on the north side of Airport Road,
west of the intersection of Airport Road and FM-3549, and take any action
necessary.

Consider approval of the North Water Improvements Project and authorize
the City Manager to execute a contract with Reytech Services, LLC. in an
amount of $746,704.61 to be funded by 2016 Water & Sewer Bonds, and
take any action necessary.

X.  APPOINTMENTS

1.

Appointment with the Planning and Zoning Chairman to discuss and answer
any questions regarding cases on the agenda and related issues and take
any action necessary.

XI. PuBLIC HEARING ITEMS

p.109 1.

p.116

Z2016-017 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a City initiated
zoning request for the approval of an ordinance for a text amendment to
Section 1, Land Use Schedule, and Section 2.1.8, Auto and Marine-Related
Use Conditions, of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development
Code for the purpose of changing the requirements for Used Motor Vehicle
Dealerships, and take any action necessary [1st Reading].

Z2016-018 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jeff
Parker of the Skorburg Company on behalf of BH Balance IV, LLC for the
approval of an ordinance for a zoning amendment to Planned Development
District 74 (PD-74) to amend the concept plan to allow for additional single-
family residential lots and for the purpose of incorporating changes to the
development standards contained in Exhibit ‘C’ of Ordinance 14-26 for a
405.184-acre tract of land identified as the Breezy Hill Subdivision and
situated within the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, Rockwall,

Rockwall County, Texas, generally located north of FM-552 and west of
Breezy Hill Road, and take any action necessary [1st Reading].

XIl. ACTION ITEMS

p.183 1.

Discuss and consider a request from Melanie Hancock with the Hancock
Sign Company representing Fenton Nissan for an approval of a sign plan
located at 1700 IH 30, and take any action necessary.

Monday, June 20, 2016 City Council Agenda
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p-189 2.

p.197 3.

p.204 4

p.226 O

p.237 6.

MIS2016-008 - Discuss and consider a request by Theresa and Ronald
Briones for the approval of an exception to the minimum masonry
requirements stipulated in Section 3.1, General Residential District
Standards, of Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified
Development Code, for a 0.248-acre parcel of land identified as part of Lot 7,
Block 5, Garner Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Single Family 10 (SF-10) District, addressed as 905 N. Alamo Street/906 N.
West Street, and take any action necessary.

Discuss and consider a request from Rod Holland with KW-Rockwall for the
approval of a variance to Section 3.5, Alcoholic Beverage Sales, of Article
IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code to allow a restaurant
establishment (Texas Road House) that does not meet the minimum
distance requirements for alcoholic beverage sales on a 1.90-acre tract of
land identified as a portion of Tract 4 of the J. D. McFarland Survey, Abstract
No. 145, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C)
District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, located on the
north side of IH-30 east of Greencrest Boulevard, and take any action
necessary.

SP2016-012 - Discuss and consider a request by Chet Leugers, PE of
Pacheco Koch on behalf of Michael Hampton of the Rockwall Economic
Development Corporation for the approval of variances and an exception to
the material, parking, articulation screening and landscaping requirements
stipulated by the Unified Development Code in conjunction with an approved
site plan for a warehouse/manufacturing facility on a 30.6-acre portion of a
larger 86.806-acre tract of land identified as Tract 1 of the H. B. Jones
Survey, Abstract No. 125, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Light Industrial (LI) District, located at the northwest corner of Discovery
Boulevard and Data Drive, and take any action necessary.

SP2016-013 - Discuss and consider a request by Clay Cristy of ClayMoore
Engineering on behalf of the owner Tom R. Briscoe of Briscoe Oil, Inc. for
the approval of a variance to the natural stone requirements stipulated by
Section 6.6, IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, of the Unified Development
Code in conjunction with an approved PD Site Plan for an urgent care facility
on a 1.042-acre tract of land identified as Lots 1 & 2, Block A,
Briscoe/Hillcrest Addition and Tract 41-2 of the E. Teal Survey, Abstract No.
207, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development
District 32 (PD-32), situated within the Summit Office Subdistrict and the IH-
30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, located at the southwest corner of Horizon
Road [FM3097] and the IH-30 frontage road, and take any action necessary.

SP2015-018 - Discuss and consider a request by Brad Williams of Winstead
PC on behalf of RaceTrac for the approval of a variance to the secondary
material requirements as stipulated by Section 6.8, Scenic Overlay (SOV)
District, of the Unified Development Code in conjunction with an approved
site plan for a retail store with gasoline sales on a 2.46-acre parcel of land
identified as Lots 1R & 2R of the Woods at Rockwall Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated
within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, located at the southeast corner of
the intersection of Ridge Road and Yellow Jacket Lane, and take any action
necessary.

Monday, June 20, 2016 City Council Agenda
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p.249 7. Discuss and consider a proposal from Primary Media regarding a billboard
generally located just east of the intersection of Horizon Road and Ridge
Road, and take any action necessary.

p-255 8. Discuss and consider improvements to Chandlers Marina and possible lease
extension with Suntex Marina Investors LLC, and take any action necessary.

p.274 9 Discuss and consider a median cut plan associated with improvements to
FM-3549 (generally between IH-30 and just past SH-66), and take any
action necessary.

p.278 10. Discuss and consider improving the reliability of Oncor within the city, and
take any action necessary.

XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT
CODE:

1. Discussion regarding proposed renegotiation of City v. Primary Media
settlement agreement pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney)

2. Discussion regarding contract with Holmes Murphy & Associates and HIPPA
Information pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

3. Discussion regarding purchase or lease of real property / land acquisition in
the vicinity of FM-3549 and SH-66 pursuant to Section § 551.072 (Real
Property).

XIV. RECONVENE PuBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

XV. ADJOURNMENT

This facility is wheelchairaccessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request foraccommodations or
interpretive services mustbe made 48 hours priorto this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972)
771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session atanytime to discuss any of
the matters listed on the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code § 551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney) § 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property) § 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and § 551.086 (Economic
Development)

I, Kristy Cole, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby certify that this Agenda was posted at City
Hall, in a place readily accessible to the general public at all imes, on the 17" day of June, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. and
remained so posted for atleast 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Kristy Cole, City Secretary Date Remowved

Monday, June 20, 2016 City Council Agenda
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m CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
. MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor and City Council
CcC: Rick Crowley, City Manager

Brad Griggs, Assistant City Manager
FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning
DATE: June 20, 2016

SUBJECT: Single Family District Square Footage Requirements

At the meeting on May 16, 2016, the City Council approved two (2) cases proposing single-
family residential subdivisions in various locations in the City. During the discussion of these
cases, the City Council had questions concerning the required minimum square footage for a
dwelling units in a Single Family 10 (SF-10) District. As a result, staff has performed a survey of
comparable city’s residential zoning districts, and compared them to the City of Rockwall’'s
residential zoning districts by lot size to compare the required minimum square footage for
dwelling units. Attached to this memorandum is a copy of this analysis for the City Council’s
review. Based on the analysis there is some evidence indicating that the Single Family 10 (SF-
10) and Single Family 16 (SF-16) Districts minimum square footage for dwelling units could be
increased. If the City Council chooses to direct staff to make changes to this section of the code
staff would suggest that the City Council also consider setting a minimum square footage for
dwelling units in an Agricultural (AG) District. Currently, no minimum exists.

Single Family Square Footage Requirements Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
11
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Single Family Attached (SF-A) [Plano] 2,250 800 800 800
Single Family Attached (SF-A) [Burleson] 2,500 1,000 800 900 900 900
Townhouse District (TH) [Frisco] 2,500 650 650 650
Townhouse District (TH)-w/o side yard [Wylie] 3,000 1,200 1,200 1,200
Townhouse District (TH)-w/ side yard [Wylie] 3,500 1,000 1,000 1,000
Patio Home District (PH) [Plano] 4,000 800 800 800
Original Town Residential District (OTR) [Frisco] 4,500 800 800 800
Urban Residential (UR) [Plano] 5,000 800 800 800
Zero Lot Line (ZZL-5) District
Single Family Residential (R-6) [Allen] 6,000 1,200 800 1,000 1,000
Single Family Residential (SF-R) [Pflugerville] 6,250 1,400 1,400 1,400
Two-Family (2F) District
Single Family 7 (SF-7) District
Single Family Residential (R-2A) [Mesquite] 7,200 1,700 1,700 1,700
Single Family Residential (R-3) [Mesquite] 7,200 1,500 1,500 1,500
Single Family Residential (R-5) [Allen] 7,500 1,600 1,200 1,400 1,400 1,400
Single Family Residential (R-1A) [Mesquite] 8,250 2,000 2,000 2,000
Single Family Residential (R-2) [Mesquite] 8,250 1,700 1,700 1,700
Single Family Residential 10 (SF-10) [Rowlett] 8,000 1,800 1,800 1,800
Single Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District
o Single Family 1 (SF-1) District
% Single Family Residential (SF-8.5) [Cedar Hill] 8,500 1,700 800 1,250 1,250
A |Single Family Residential (R-4) [Allen] 9,000 1,600 1,600 1,400 800 1,800 1,440 1,600 1,600
=4 Single Family 10 (SF-10) District
'g Single Family Residential (R-1) [Mesquite] 11,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
N |Single Family Residential (R-3) [Allen] 12,000 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800
Single Family Residential 12.5 (SF-12.5) [Frisco] 12,500 800 1,400 1,100 1,100
Single Family Residential (SF-15) [Cedar Hill] 15,000 2,000 2,000 2,100 2,033 2,000 2,000
Single Family 16 (SF-16) District
Single Family Residential (R-2) [Allen] 18,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Single Family District (R-20) [Grapevine] 20,000 1,600 2,200 800 2,400 1,800 1,760 1,800
Single Family District (SF-20B) [Southlake] 20,000 1,500 2,600 2,050 2,050
Single Family Estate (SFE) [Pflugerville] 21,780 1,400 1,400 1,400
Single Family Residential (SF-22) [Cedar Hill] 22,000 2,200 2,200 2,200
Single Family Residential 4 (SF-4) [Sunnyvale] 24,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Single Family Residential 25 (SF-25) [Keller] 25,000 2,400 2,400 2,400
Single Family Residential (R-1.5) [Allen] 30,000 2,400 2,400 1,800 2,200 2,400 2,400
Single Family Residential (SF-36) [Keller] 36,000 2,400 2,400 2,400
Single Family Residential (R-1) [Allen] 40,000 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400
Agricultural (AG) District 43,560 N/A 2,500 2,500 2,500
Single Family Estate (SF-E) [Cedar Hill] 43,560 1,800 2,500 2,400 800 800 2,000 1,717 1,900 800

Minimum SF of Dwelling Units for Comparable Cities

Single Family Residential District (SF1-B) [Southlake] 43,560 1,500 2,200 1,900 1,867 1,900
Single Family Estate 1.5 (SFE 1.5) District 65,340 2,000 2,000 2,000

Agricultural (A) District [Plano] (es000f 4 | | |/ 4/ | | | | | 8o ] ] ] ] 80] 80|
800

Single Family Estate 2.0 (SFE 2.0) District 87,120 2,200 2,200 3,000 2,050 2,200 2,200

Agricultural (A) District [Pflugerville] (ts080f | | | | | |/ | | | ] 1400 ] ] ] ] ]| 1400] 1400/

Single Family Estate 4.0 (SFE 4.0) District 174,240 2,500 2,500 2,500

12



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




g

Ciity of Rockwall
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MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager
FROM: Timothy M. Tumulty, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

DATE: June 14, 2016

SUBJECT: East Boydstun Avenue and Throckmorton Street Reconstruction
Projects Update

East Boydstun Avenue is currently an existing 37 foot wide curb and gutter roadway
approximately 1,800 linear feet from South Goliad to Clark Street. Throckmorton Street is
currently an existing two lane asphalt roadway from East Boydstun Avenue to East Bourn
Street. Both East Boydstun Avenue and Throckmorton Street are two of four Roadway Capital
Improvement Projects passed in the 2012 Bond Election.

East Boydstun Avenue will be reconstructed to a 41 foot concrete curb and gutter
roadway with a 5-foot concrete sidewalk on each side. The reconstruction will also include re-
configuring of the South Goliad/East Boydstun Avenue intersection to enhance the northbound
South Goliad to eastbound East Boydstun Avenue turning movement. Additional improvements
for the project will include improved storm sewer capacity along with the replacement of the
existing sanitary sewer and water lines. The City hired EJES, Inc. to provide the engineering
design and specifications for the East Boydstun Avenue project.

Throckmorton Street will be reconstructed to a two lane, 29 foot concrete curb and gutter
roadway with a 5-foot concrete sidewalk on each side. These improvements will be placed
within the existing 50’ right of way. Additional improvements for the project will include improved
storm sewer capacity along with the replacement of the existing sanitary sewer and water lines.
The City hired Cobb, Fendley & Associates, Inc. to provide the engineering design and
specifications for the Throckmorton Street project.

Both projects are currently at the 60% engineering design stage. City Staff and the
engineering design consultants plan to hold a public meeting on June 29, 2016 at 6:00pm at
City Hall Council Chambers for the residents and businesses along and adjacent to East
Boydstun Avenue and Throckmorton Street. Public input will be received at this meeting and
taken into consideration as the engineering design is completed.

If you have any questions, please advise.

TMT:jw
Attachments
Cc: Amy Williams, P.E., Assistant City Engineer

Jeremy White, P.E., CFM, Civil Engineer
File
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MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager
FROM: Timothy M. Tumulty, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

DATE: June 17, 2016

SUBJECT: South Lakeshore Drive/Summit Ridge Reconstruction Project

Staff and the Engineering Consultant are developing the design for the reconstruction of
South Lakeshore Drive/Summit Ridge from SH 66 to FM 740 (Ridge Road). The existing
concrete pavement section along South Lakeshore (SH 66 to Summit Ridge) is wider than the
section along Summit Ridge from South Lakeshore to FM 740. Both sections of roadway do not
provide a walkway for pedestrian other that in the street.

Staff hosted a neighborhood meeting on December 9, 2015 with the residents living
along both roadways allowing residents to express their concerns regarding the existing
roadway and the proposed improvements. Staff and the consultant have utilized that information
to move forward on the design of the reconstructed roadway.

Staff intends to host a second meeting with these residents along with those residents
living within four blocks of South Lakeshore Drive/Summit Ridge. The meeting is scheduled for
July 20, 2016.

Staff will brief City Council at the June 20, 2016 Work Section on the status of the
project. If you have any questions, please advise.

TMT:em

Cc:
Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager
Brad Griggs, Assistant City Manager
Amy Williams, P.E., Assistant City Engineer
Jeremy White, P.E., CFM, Civil Engineer
Billy Chaffin, Superintendent of Streets & Drainage
Rick Sherer, Water/Wastewater Manager
File
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MINUTES

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL
Monday, June 06, 2016

4:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting
City Hall - 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, Texas 75087

l. CALL PuBLIC MEETING TO ORDER

Mayor Pruitt called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Jim Pruitt and
Councilmembers David White, John Hohenshelt, Scott Milder, Kevin Fowler and Dennis
Lewis. Also present were City Manager Rick Crowley, Assistant City Managers Mary Smith
and Brad Griggs and the city’s legal counsel, Patrick Lindner (filling in for City Attorney
Frank Garza who was absent). Councilmember Mike Townsend was absent from the
meeting.

1. WORK SESSION

1. Hold work session to hear strategic plans for the following city departments:
a) Animal Services

Andy Hesser, manager of Animal Services, came forth and briefed the Council on the
Animal Services strategic plan. Specifically, he spoke about the following, identified
initiatives:

¢ Increase public safety through increasing resident pet rabies vaccination and City pet
registrations by 20%.

¢ Reduce the number of pets dropped off at the shelter by 10% through a Return to
Owner Initiative

¢ Implement educational and recreation based programs to educate residents on how to
minimize negative wildlife interactions.

e Develop a policy for providing animal trap services on private property.

¢ Amend ordinances pertaining to vicious and dangerous dog designations.

Brief dialogue took place related to requiring residents to register their pets. It was noted
that pet registrations, overall, are quite low; however, Brad Griggs, Assistant City Manager,
pointed out that requiring pet registrations does allow the city to have record of those pets
within the city who have been vaccinated. In addition, Mr. Hesser, pointed out that pet
registrations allow for a better chance for reuniting pets with their owner should they
become lost and end up in the animal shelter.

After brief dialogue, the Council took no action.

b) Neighborhood Improvement Services & Building Inspections

Jeffrey Widmer, Manager over NIS and Building Inspections briefed the Council on the
following items with regards to the proposed strategic plan for Neighborhood Improve ment
Services:

e Strategic Initiative 1: Public Education and Awareness

o Goal: Increase voluntary compliance throughout the city

Monday, June 06, 2016 City Council Minutes
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e Strategic Initiative 2: Maintain a greater workload focus in areas with a higher
level of violations

o Goal: Focus efforts on specific neighborhood/area issues
o Strategic Initiative 3: Reduce number of complaints received

o Goal: Focus efforts on case types that show a greater number of
complaints received

e Strategic Initiative 4: Implement New Program
o Goal: Build a productive and helpful resident assistance program

Regarding the Building Inspections Department, Mr. Widmer touched on the following
strategic initiatives and goals:

e Strategic Initiative 1: Improve Public safety

o Adopt the most advanced and current edition of construction codes
(will increase design flexibility)

o Refine the Building Inspection Department post disaster
response/inspection program

e Strategic Initiative 2: Enhance Customer Satisfaction Experience
o Improve plan review process
o Offer a more convenient permit payment process
o Reduce time and project costs for our residential customers
o Offer express permit process to all of our customers

Council took no action following Mr. Widmer’s presentations.

Mayor Pruitt then read the following discussion items into the public record before
recessing the public meeting to go into Executive Session at 4:44 p.m.

1l. EXECUTIVE SESSION.

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT
CODE:

1. Discussion regarding the lease of land in the vicinity of the downtown area
pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property).

2. Discussion regarding potential land acquisition and right-of-way along Ridge
Road pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property).

Iv. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION
Council adjourned from Executive Session at 5:25 p.m.

Monday, June 06, 2016 City Council Minutes
Page 2

26



90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133

134
135
136
137
138

139
140

V. RECONVENE PuBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)
Mayor Pruitt reconvened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m.
VL. TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION
Indication was given that no action was needed as a result of Executive Session.
VII.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — COUNCILMEMBER LEWIS
Councilman Lewis delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Vill. PROCLAMATIONS / AWARDS
1. 25th Anniversary of NCTCOG’s 9-1-1 Program

Mayor Pruitt invited Fire Chief Mark Poindexter forward, explaining that 9-1-1 has now been
in existence for 25 years. He then read the proclamation in recognition of this noteworthy
anniversary. Chief Poindexter mentioned that there will be a celebration at the NCTCOG in
Arlington on June 30" to commemorate this milestone.

2. Asian Pacific Islander American Heritage Month

Mayor Pruitt did not read this proclamation, as no one representing the organization that
requested the proclamation was present in the audience.

Mayor Pruitt then called Mary Carter forth, explaining that he is presenting a proclamation
as a surprise, in recognition of Mrs. Carter’s upcoming birthday as well as her recent
assistance to the city concerning its Monarch Butterflyinitiatives (to help preserve this near
endangered species). He then read and presented a proclamation to Mrs. Carter declaring it
Monarch Butterfly Day and wishing her a very happy birthday.

IX. OPEN FORUM

Mayor Pruitt explained how Open Forum is conducted and asked if anyone would like to
address Council at this time. There being no one wishing to come forth and speak, Mayor
Pruitt then closed Open Forum.

X. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the May 16, 2016 regular City Council
meeting, and take any action necessary.

2. Consider approval of the Traffic Signal Intersection Improvements at N. Lake
Shore Drive and Masters Drive and authorize the City Manager to execute a
contract with Durable Solutions in the Amount of $180,000 with funding in
the FY 2015-16 Street Department operating budget, and take any action
necessary.

3. Consider approval of an ordinance establishing the speed limit along FM
552 at 45 mph between SH 205 and John King Boulevard and 50 mph

Monday, June 06, 2016 City Council Minutes
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10.

between John King Boulevard to MP 002.709 (west of FM 1141) and take
any action necessary. (2nd reading)

Consider approval of an ordinance establishing the speed limits along the

eastbound and westbound frontage roads of IH 30 from the west City Limits
to SH 205 at 45 mph, and take any action necessary. (2nd reading)

Consider approval of an ordinance establishing the speed limit along FM

1141 to 50 mph between SH 66 and MP 2.980 (John King Boulevard), and
take any action necessary. (2nd reading)

22016-012 - Consider a request by Jim Evans of CEl Engineering
Associates, inc. on behalf of Bob Hubbard of EZ Mart Stores, Inc. for the
approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a retail
store with more than two (2) gasoline dispensers on a 0.918-acre parcel of
land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Mr. M Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) for General

Retail (GR) District land uses, addressed as 2901 Ridge Road and take any
action necessary. (2nd Reading)

22016-014 - Consider a request by Noah Flabiano of the Skorburg Company
on behalf of the owner Lakeside Church of Christ of Rockwall for the
approval of an ordinance for a zoning change from an Agricultural (AG)
District to a Planned Development District for Single Family 10 (SF-10)
District land uses on a 29.541-acre parcel of land being a portion of Lot 1
and all of Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Lakeside Church of Christ Addition, City
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District and
located on the north side of Airport Road, west of the intersection of Airport
Road and FM3549, and take any action necessary. (2nd reading)

22016-015 - Consider a request by Pat Atkins of the Saddle Star Land
Development, LLC on behalf of the owners Gwen Reed and Randa Hance
(R. & R. Hance Investments, LP) for the approval of an ordinance for a
zoning amendment to Planned Development District 79 (PD-79) [Ordinance
No. 16-07] for the purpose of amending the concept plan and incorporating
11.121-acres of land into the existing 44.292-acre development creating a
55.413-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 1, 1-5 & 2-03 of the P. B.
Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Agricultural (AG) District and Planned Development District 79 (PD-
79) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, situated within the SH-
205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located on the north side of

John King Boulevard south of Featherstone Drive, and take any action
necessary. (2nd reading)

Z2016-016 - Consider a City initiated zoning request for the approval of an
ordinance for a text amendment to Section 4, Southside Residential
Neighborhood Overlay (SRO) District, of Article V, District Development
Standards, of the Unified Development Code, and take any action necessary
(2nd Reading).

Consider a recommendation of the Park Board concerning approval of an
ordinance amending Chapter 30. Parks & Recreation; Article V. Park Use &
Rental Fee Guidelines; Section 30-131. Fees for Facilities, and take any
action necessary. (2nd reading)

Monday, June 06, 2016 City Council Minutes
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12.

13.

14.

Mayor Pruitt pulled item #1 for discussion.

Consider approval of a resolution allowing a temporary partial closure of FM
740 from Summer Lee Drive to the south City limits to facilitate the U.S.
Open Triathlon on Sunday, October 16, 2016 from 6:00 AM to 1:00 PM, and
take any action necessary.

P2016-026 - Consider a request by Debra Cox of JDJR Engineers &
Consultants, Inc. on behalf of Don French of the First Baptist Church of
Rockwall for the approval of a replat for Lot 6, Block M, Sanger Brothers
Addition being a 1.8046-acre tract of land identified as Lots 1-5, Block M,
Sanger Brothers Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
General Retail (GR) District, located at the southwest corner of the
intersection of W. Ross Street and S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any
action necessary.

P2016-021 - Consider a request by Robert A. Howman of Glenn Engineering
on behalf of James Watson of the Rockwall Independent School District for
the approval of a preliminary plat for Lot 1, Block A, Rockwall — CCA
Addition being a 173.00-acre tract of land identified as Tract 7-1 of the W. H.
Baird Survey, Abstract No. 25, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By Pass Corridor
(SH-205 BY OV) District, situated south of the intersection of SH-276 and
John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.

P2016-022 - Consider a request by Rick Bates of RLK Engineering, Inc. on
behalf of James Watson of the Rockwall Independent School District for the
approval of a preliminary plat for Lot 1, Block 1, Dobbs Elementary Addition
being a 17.464-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Rockwall School
Addition No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single
Family 7 (SF-7) District, situated at the northeast corner of the intersection of
E. Washington Street and S. Clark Street, and take any action necessary.

Councilmember Lewis made a motion to

approve the remaining Consent Agenda items (#2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14).
Councilmember Hohenshelt seconded the motion. The ordinances were read as follows:

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 16-35

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
ALTERING THE PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED FOR VEHICLES
UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF TRANSPORTATION CODE, SECTION 545.356 UPON
FARM-TO-MARKET ROAD NO. 552 OR PARTS THEREOF, WITHIN THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS SET FORTH IN
THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE
SUM OF $200.00 FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 16-36

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
ALTERING THE PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED FOR VEHICLES
UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF TRANSPORTATION CODE, SECTION 545.356 UPON
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 30 OR PARTS THEREOF, WITHIN THE CORPORATE
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS SET FORTH IN THIS
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ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM
OF $200.00 EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 16-37

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
ALTERING THE PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED FOR VEHICLES
UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF TRANSPORTATION CODE, SECTION 545.356 UPON
FARM-TO-MARKET ROAD 1141 OR PARTS THEREOF, WITHIN THE CORPORATE
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS SET FORTH IN THIS
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE
SUME OF $200.00 FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 16-38
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. $-153

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT
(SUP) TO ALLOW FOR A RETAIL STORE WITH MORE THAN TWO (2) GASOLINE
DISPENSERS AS SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE IV, PERMISSIBLE USES, OF THE
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE, FOR A 0.918 - ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 9 (PD-9) FOR GENERAL RETAIL (GR)
DISTRICT LAND USES, AND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 1, BLOCK A, MR. M ADDITION,
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 16-42

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE
ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT 81 (PD-81) FOR SINGLE FAMILY 10 (SF-10) DISTRICT LAND USES ON
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING A 29.541-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED
AS A PORTION OF LOT 1 AND ALL OF LOT 2, BLOCK A, ROCKWALL LAKESIDE
CHURCH OF CHRIST ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY,
TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.000 FOR EACH OFFENSE;
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 16-39

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO FURTHER AMEND
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 79 (PD-79) [ORDINANCE NO. 16-07] FOR THE
PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE CONCEPT PLAN AND INCORPORATING 11.121-
ACRES OF LAND INTO THE EXISTING 44.292-ACRE DEVELOPMENT FOR A 55.413-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND, ZONED AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT AND PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 79 (PD-79) FOR SINGLE FAMILY 8.4 (SF-8.4) DISTRICT
LAND USES, BEING IDENTIFIED AS TRACTS 1, 15 & 2-03 OF THE P. B.
HARRISON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 97, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL
COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’;
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 16-40

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY AMENDING SECTION 6.4,
SOUTHSIDE RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD OVERLAY (SRO) DISTRICT, OF
ARTICLE V, DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY
OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00)
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING
FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 16-41

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 30.
PARKS AND RECREATION OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES IN ARTICLE V.
PARK USE AND RENTAL FEES; SECTION 30-131. FEES FOR FACILITIES; PROVIDING
FOR REPEALING, SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR
PUBLICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

The motion passed by a vote of 6 in favor with 1 absent (Townsend).

Mayor Pruitt clarified that a particular vote reflected within the draft minutes needed to be
modified (related to the Public Hearing concerning used/pre-owned car dealerships). He
stated that he had actually voted “no” on that particular item. He then moved to approve
the minutes as amended. Councilmember Lewis seconded the motion, which passed by a
vote of 6 in favor with 1 absent (Townsend).

XI. APPOINTMENTS

1. Appointment with the Planning and Zoning Chairman to discuss and answer
any questions regarding cases on the agenda and related issues and take
any action necessary.
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Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, Craig Renfro, came forth and briefed the
city council on recommendations of the Commission relative to items on tonight’s council
meeting agenda. After brief comments, the Council took no action pertaining to this item.

XIl. PuBLIC HEARING ITEMS

1. Z22016-013 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by
Garrett Lust of Pointe Land & Development, LLC on behalf of Marven Wu of
West Union Investment, Co. for the approval of an ordinance for a zoning
change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District
for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses on a 81.49-acre parcel of land
identified as Tract 16 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, located
on Rochelle Road south of the intersection of Rochelle Road the SH-276,
and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Planning Director Ryan Miller provided background information related to this agenda item,
explaining that this property is located south of the intersection of Rochelle Road and SH-
276, adjacent to Timber Creek Estates Subdivision. He explained that according to the
concept plan, it is the intent of the development to provide 204 single-family residential lots
that are to be a minimum of 8,125 sq. ft. (i.e. 65’ x 125’ lots) in area. In addition, the
development will provide an approximately nine (9)-acre public park located at the southern
portion of the development. Furthermore, the Concept Plan shows the inclusion of 18.97-
acres of net open space (or 23.3%) exceeding the minimum 20% requirement.

In addition, the applicant has also indicated that a minimum of a 15-foot landscape buffer
will be provided along Rochelle Road. A minimum 10-ft landscape buffer along the
proposed minor collector street (Street H) is required, with large canopy trees planted along
the perimeter of each roadway at 50-ft intervals. However, the applicant is seeking a waiver
to this requirement for Street H due to the amenities provided for in the 9-acre public park
(reflected on Park Concept Plan). The applicant will also include a minimum of a five (5) foot
sidewalk that will be constructed within the rights-of-way.

Mr. Miller then briefed the Council on several development standards contained within the
draft PD Ordinance which deviate from the requirements of the Engineering Department’s
Standards of Design and Construction Manual and the Unified Development Code (UDC).

He indicated that staff sent out notifications to all property owners located within 500’. Two
notices were received back in opposition to the request. In addition, the Timber Creek and
Fontanna Ranch Homeowners Associations were also notified. The Planning & Zoning
Commission voted to unanimously recommend approval of this item, with one
commissioner being absent.

Mayor Pruitt opened the public hearing and invited the applicant forth. The applicant came
forth and indicated that Mr. Miller has provided an ample briefing, so he is just here to
answer questions of Council. Brief dialogue took place related to improvements to
Rochelle Road and the traffic on SH-276. There being no one else wishing to come forth
and speak, Mayor Pruitt then closed the public hearing.

Councilman Lewis made a motion to approve the request (ordinance), including all of the
requested variances. Councilman Milder seconded the motion. The ordinance was read as
follows:
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE
ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT XX (PD-XX) FOR SINGLE FAMILY 10 (SF-10) DISTRICT LAND USES ON
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING AN 81.49-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED
AS TRACT 16 OF THE J. A. RAMSEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 186, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED
HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING
FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion passed by a vote of 6 in favor with 1 absent (Townsend).
Xlll.  ACTION ITEMS

1. SP2016-006 - Discuss and consider a request by Matt Moore of Claymoore
Engineering, Inc. on behalf of Michael James of U. V. Real Estate, LP for the
approval of variances to Article V, District Development Standards, of the
Unified Development Code in conjunction with an approved site plan for an
Auto Body Shop (i.e. Service King Collision Repair) on a 3.2039-acre tract of
land described as Tract 7-01 of the J. Lockhart Survey, Abstract No. 134,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, located at 1780 E IH-30, zoned
Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV)
District, and take any action necessary.

Mr. Miller provided background information related to this agenda item. He explained that
the applicant is requesting that the City Council approve variances to the screening
standards, building material and four (4) sided architecture requirements stipulated for
properties within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District. He explained that the approved
major automotive repair facility (i.e. Service King: Automotive Collision Repair Center) will
be situated within an 18,475 SF building that will be accessible via an access drive located
off of the IH-30 Frontage Road. The requested land use (i.e. Auto Repair Garage, Major --
Sec. 1.1; Art. IV; UDC) is permitted by-right within the Light Industrial (LI) District, and --
after the approval of S-148 for outside storage on March 7, 2016 -- does not require any
additional approvals by the Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council. Mr. Miller
went on to explain several variances which will be required for the approval of the proposed
building. Indication was given that on April 26, 2016, the Architectural Review Board (ARB)
reviewed the proposed site plan and building elevations. The ARB requested that the
applicant provide a mansard roof structure extending from the mid-point of the building
(denoted by a tower element on the East and West Building Elevations) to the front
canopies adjacent to IH-30. The purpose of this request was to provide balance to the
building while breaking up the monotony of the roofline. The applicant has stated that due
to the cost of the requested improvements, they will not be able to accommodate the ARB’s
recommendation. On May 31, 2016, the ARB presented a recommendation to the Planning
and Zoning Commission and stated that they did not support approval of the requested
variances.
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Jeff Carroll
Carroll Architects
750 E. IH-30
Rockwall, TX

Mr. Carroll came forth (on behalf of the applicant) and explained the building elevations,
including proposed materials and the proposed plan for how each side of the building will
visually look. He generally explained that this location poses some challenges related to
grading, so the proposed facility is actually smaller than that which might otherwise be
proposed.

After brief dialogue, Councilmember Milder made a motion to approve SP2016-006,
including granting of all requested variances. Councilmember White seconded the motion.
The motion passed by a vote of 6 in favor with 1 absent (Townsend).

2. Discuss and consider a request from Mr. Jeff Gibbens with The Sign Doc
representing Goliad Dental for a height and setback variance for a
monument sign located at 703 S. Goliad, and take any action necessary.

Jeffrey Widmer, Building Official, came forth and briefed the Council on this agenda item.
After brief dialogue, Councilmember Lewis made a motion to approve the height and
setback related variances being requested. Mayor Pruitt seconded the motion, which
passed by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 absent (Townsend).

3. Discuss and consider a request for supplemental hotel occupancy tax (HOT)
funding for the Colbert Project, and take any action necessary.

Councilmember Scott Milder indicated that he will be recusing himself from this agenda
item because his wife serves on the board for the Colbert Project.

Assistant City Manager, Mary Smith, provided background information regarding this
agendaitem. She explained that the City received a supplemental funding request for hotel
occupancy tax revenues from The Colbert Project. She shared that the request totals
$49,564 and, according to the applicant, would be used for promotion of their annual
Firefighters Ball to be held at the Hilton on August 27th. She indicated that the City Council
Subcommittee has reviewed the application and request and is recommending funding in
the amount of $12,500 for the event.

Mayor Pruitt provided comments, indicating that the future of the city’'s HOT funding may
very well be changed over the next couple of years since some of the concessions the city
has had in place will soon be expiring, and those funds will be coming back into the city. At
that time, the city will need to decide if it wants to move forward with establishing a
Convention Visitors Bureau (CVB), either in house or perhaps through the Chamber. So, he
encouraged all requesting organizations to begin weaning themselves off of city-provided
HOT funding because it may very likely go away within the next couple of years.

Mayor Pruitt made a motion to approve the supplemental funding request (as recommended
by the Council Subcommittee - an allocation of $12,500). Councilmember Lewis seconded
the motion, which passed by a vote of 5 in favor, 1 recusal (Milder), and 1 absent
(Townsend).

4, Discuss and consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate a contract
with Terracare Associates LP for municipal landscape maintenance services
in an amount not to exceed $104,000 to be funded from the FY16 Parks &
Rec Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.
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Assistant City Manager, Brad Griggs, provided background information concerning this
agenda item. He generally explained that the city had experienced some difficulties with
the low bidder who had previously been awarded the contract and had been performing
landscape maintenance services on behalf of the city. As a result, the city terminated the
contract, essentially for non-performance, and an interim contractor was brought in. Now,
the Council is being asked to consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate a contract
with Terracare Associates LP for provision of these services.

Councilmember Lewis made a motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate a contract
with Terracare Associates LP for municipal landscape maintenance services in an amount
not to exceed $104,000. Councilmember Hohenshelt seconded the motion, which passed
unanimously of those present (6 ayes with 1 absent (Townsend)).

XIV. CitY MANAGER’S REPORT TO DISCUSS CURRENT CITY ACTIVITIES, UPCOMING MEETINGS,
FUTURE LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

1. Departmental Reports
Building Inspections Monthly Report - April 2016
Fire Dept. Monthly Reports - April 2016
Fire Marshal Division Monthly Report - April 2016
GIS Division Monthly Report - April 2016
Harbor PD Report - April 2016
Internal Operations Department Monthly Report - April 2016
Police Department Monthly Report - April 2016
Recreation Monthly Report - April 2016
Rockwall Animal Adoption Center Monthly Report - April 2016

2. City Manager’s Report

City Manager Rick Crowley pointed out that work continues on improvements to FM-3549.
On the next meeting agenda, an item will be included for the Council to consider the curb
and median cut plan for this roadway. Between now and then, staff will be visiting with the
property owners along the roadway. He pointed out that a portion of this roadway is shared
by the City of Fate. Also, discussions will be taking place regarding whether or not the two
cities (Rockwall and Fate) might want to partner on some landscape enhancements along
FM-3549, similar to those on FM-740 and SH-205. He indicated that some state funding is
available to assist with this.

Mayor Pruitt briefly indicated that the Rockwall County Emergency Services Corporation
(ESC) is still negotiating an ambulance service contract. He shared that if negotiations do
not result in agreed upon terms, the ES Corp. may begin discussing going out for bid.

Mayor Pruitt announced that on July 7 at 7:00 p.m. at Utley Middle School, TXDOT will hold
a public meeting to give a presentation concerning the various route options for SH-205 all
the way from Terrell to Lavon. He shared that another meeting will be held on July 12 in
Terrell. He shared that no public input will be accepted, as it is an opportunity to provide
public information only.

Mayor Pruitt then congratulated the Parks Department, thanking them for all of their hard
work on recent events, such as Founders Day and the Butterfly Garden dedication. He
pointed out that the Butterfly Garden is located at Harry Myers Park, and a local Eagle Scout
took the lead on its construction. He thanked Tropical Johns for helping with donated
supplies for the garden project.
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He thanked the Soroptimist Group for its recent Country Fair event, which he indicated was
a success. He also thanked staff member, Joey Boyd, for a recent luncheon that was
hosted over the weekend at the Ralph M. Hall Municipal Airport.

There being no further items to discuss, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m.
XV.  EXECUTIVE SESSION

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS
THE FOLLOWING MATTERS AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT
CODE:

1. Discussion regarding the lease of land in the vicinity of the downtown area
pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property).

2. Discussion regarding potential land acquisition and right-of-way along Ridge
Road pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property).

XVI. RECONVENE PuBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION
XVIl. ADJOURNMENT

The Council did not reconvene in Executive Session at the close of the public meeting
agenda. The meeting was adjourned at 7:01 p.m.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS 20* day of June, 2016.

ATTEST: Jim Pruitt, Mayor

Kristy Cole, City Secretary
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 16-43

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS
HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING FROM
AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT 82 (PD-82) FOR SINGLE FAMILY 10 (SF-10) DISTRICT
LAND USES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING AN 81.49-ACRE
TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 16 OF THE J. A RAMSEY
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 186, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL
COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY
EXHIBIT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING
FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.000 FOR EACH OFFENSE;
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Garrett Lust of Pointe Land & Development,
LLC on behalf of Marvin Wu of West Union Investment, Co. for the approval of a zoning change
from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single Family 10 (SF-
10) District land uses, on an 81.49-acre tract of land identified as Tract 16 of the J. A. Ramsey
Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and more fully described in
Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and
incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing
body of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the
ordinances of the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise,
and have held public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners
generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity
thereof, and the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that
the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS:

Section1.  That the Subject Property shall be developed and/or used only in the manner and
for the purposes described within this Planned Development District Ordinance, and unless
specifically modified within this ordinance the Subject Property shall adhere to all development
standards stipulated by the Single Family 10 (SF-10) District as specified in Section 3.4, Single
Family Residential (SF-10) District, of Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified
Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] as hereto amended, as herein by granting of this
zoning change, and as may be amended in the future;

Section 2.  That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with
the Planned Development Concept Plan, described in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, attached

hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘B, which is deemed hereby to be a
condition of approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;
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Section 3.  That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with
the Development Standards, described in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘D’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of
approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;

Section4. That development of the Subject Property shall be in conformance with the
schedule listed below (except as set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and
approvals).

(@) The procedures set forth in the City’s subdivision regulations on the date this
ordinance is approved by the City, as amended by this ordinance (including
Subsections 6(b) through 6(g) below), shall be the exclusive procedures applicable
to the subdivision and platting of the Subject Property.

(b) The following plans and plats shall be required in the order listed below (except as
set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals). The City
Council shall act on an application for an Open Space Master Plan in accordance
with the time period specified in Section 212.009 of the Texas Local Government
Code.

(1) Open Space Master Plan

(2) Master Plat

(3) PD Site Plan

(4) Preliminary Plat

(5) Final Plat

(c) Open Space Master Plan. An Open Space Master Plan for the Subject Property,
prepared in accordance with this ordinance and consistent with the Planned
Development Concept Plan, (Open Space Master Plan) shall be considered for
approval by the City Council following recommendation of the Parks and Recreation
Board.

(d) Master Plat. A Master Plat application covering all of the Subject Property shall be
submitted and shall identify each phase of the development. The Master Plat
application shall not be approved until the Open Space Master Plan may be
processed by the City concurrently with the Master Plat Application.

(e) PD Site Plan. A PD Site Plan covering all of the Subject Property shall be submitted
and shall identify all site/landscape/hardscape plan(s) for all open space,
neighborhood parks, trail systems, street buffers and entry features as depicted in
Exhibit ‘C’ (Park Concept Plan and Amenity Package). A PD Site Plan application,
including a plan for improvements for the parkland and/or trails, may be processed
by the City concurrently with a Preliminary Plat Application for the development.

(f) Preliminary Plat. A Preliminary Plat covering all of the Subject Property shall be
submitted and shall include a Treescape Plan. A Preliminary Plat application,
including a plan for improvements for the parkland and/or trails as identified in
Section 5 (d) above, may be processed by the City concurrently with a PD Site Plan
Application for the development.

(g) Final Plat. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, a Final Plat, conforming to
the Preliminary Plat, for all of the Subject Property shall be submitted for approval.

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 16-43; PD-82
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Section 5. That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate
offense;

Section 6.  That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any
reason judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision
of this ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other
person, firm, corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph,
or provision of the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have
adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this
end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable;

Section 7.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between
this ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City
Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that
is different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City
Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas;

Section 8.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and
the publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides;

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 20™ DAY OF JUNE, 2016.

Jim Pruitt, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kristy Cole, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1% Reading:  06-06-2016

2" Reading:  06-20-2016

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
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Exhibit ‘A’:
Legal Description

FIELD NOTES

BEING an B1.49 acre tract of land situated in the J. RAMSEY
SURVEY A-186 of Rockwall County, Texas and being a part of a once
called 405 acre tract described in a deed recorded in Volume D Page 73
and being the same land as described in deed to James F. Wood, Trustee
as recorded in Volume 122 Page 783 of the Rockwall County, Deed
Records, said 81.49 acre tract being further described as follows;

BEGINNING at a nail set in the center of an existing public road
on the East line of the Ramsey Survey and being about South 2874 feet
from the Northeast corner of said Ramsey Survey and being the
Southeast corner of that certain tract described in, deed to Joe Smart
as recorded in Volume 59 Page 509 of the Rockwall County, Deed Records
from sald nail a fence corner bears S 89 deg 39 min 28 sec W 40 feet;

THENCE S 00 deg 37 min 46 sec W along the center of sald road and
along the East line of the Ramsey Survey 1678.46 feet to the Southeast
corner of sald 405 acre tract and being the Northeast corner of the
Ridge Haven Estates, subdivision as per plat recorded in Glide A 213
of the Rockwall County, Plat Records, from which a 3/8 inch iron rod
was found to bear N 89 deg 19 min 38 sec W 29.58 feet;

THENCE N 89 deg 19 min 38 sec W along the North line of said
Ridge Haven Estates and along an old fence 2133.00 feet to a fence
corner found at the Southeast corner of a called 80.42 acre tract
described in a deed to B.R. McClendon as recorded in Volume 91 Page
523 of the Rockwall County, Deed Records;

THENCE N 00 deg 12 min 45 sec East along the East line of said
McClendon tract and along an old fence 1640.51 feet to a 1/2 inch iron
rod found at a fence corner at an ell cormer of that certain tract
described in deed to Joe Smart as recorded in Volume 59 Page 511 of
the Rockwall County, Deed Records;

THENCE N 89 deg 39 min 28 sec E along the South line of the Smart
tracts 2145.25 feet to the point of beginning and containing 81.49

acres of land.

I do hereby certify this plat to be true and correct and to
represent a ground survey completed November 17, 1987.

e /
Baww'l~ i), /7‘@"‘*“2“
Barton W. McDonald

Registered Public Surveyor No. 4213

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 4 i
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Exhibit ‘C’:
Park Concept Plan

Park Concept Plan - 9.0 AC
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Exhibit ‘D’:
Development Standards

Development Standards.

1. Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development ordinance,
only those uses permitted within the Single Family 10 (SF-10) District, as stipulated by
the Permissible Use Charts contained in Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified
Development Code (UDC), are allowed on the Subject Property.

2. Lot Composition and Layout. The lot layout and composition shall generally conform to
the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ and stated in Table 1, which is as follows:

Table 1: Lot Composition
Minimum Lot Size Minimum Lot Size Maximum Dwelling

Lot Type (FT) (SF) Units (#) Dwelling Units (%)
' A 65 x 125’ 8,125 SF 174 85.29%
B 80’ x 125’ 10,000 SF 30 14.71%
Maximum Permitted Units: 204 100%

3. Density and Dimensional Requirements. Unless specifically provided by this Planned
Development ordinance, the development standards stipulated by the Single Family 10
(SF-10) District, as specified by Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified
Development Code are applicable to all development on the Subject Property. The
maximum permissible density for the Subject Property shall not exceed 2.50 dwelling
units per gross acre of land; however, in no case should the proposed development
exceed 204 dwelling units. All lots shall conform to the standards depicted in Table 2,
which is as follows:

Lot Type (see ConceptPlan) » A B
Minimum Lot Width " &) 65’ 80’
Minimum Lot Depth 125’ 125’
Minimum Lot Area : 8,125 SF 10,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback ) 20’ 20’
Minimum Side Yard Setback : 55 55
Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) '/ 10° 10°
Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 25’ 25’
Maximum Height 36’ 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback *) 10° 10°
Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) 1,800 SF 2,000 SF
Maximum Lot Coverage 65% 65%

General Notes:

: The minimum lot width shall be measured at the Front Yard Building Setback.
The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front propertyline.
: The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single
family home.
As measured from the rear yard propertyline.

Lots fronting onto a cunilinear street, cul-de-sac or eyebrow may have the lot width reduced by up to
20% as measured at the front property line provided that the lot width is met at the front building line.
Additionally, the lot depth on lots fronting onto cunvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows maybe
reduced by up to ten (10%) percent, but shall meet the minimum lot size for each lot type.

4. Building Standards. All development shall adhere to the following building standards:

(a) Masonry Requirement. The minimum masonry requirement for the exterior fagades
of all buildings shall be 80%. For the purposes of this ordinance, the masonry
requirement shall be limited to full width brick, natural stone, and cast stone.

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 7 City of Rockwall, Texas
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Exhibit ‘D’:
Development Standards

Cementaceous fiberboard horizontal lap-siding (e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy Plank)
and, stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or a comparable -- to be determined by staff)
may be used for up to 50% of the masonry requirement; however, stucco (i.e. three
[3] part stucco or comparable -- to be determined by staff) shall be permitted through
a Specific Use Permit (SUP) only.

(b) Roof Pitch. A minimum of a 6:12 roof pitch is required on all structures with the
exception of sunrooms and porches, which shall have a minimum of a 4:12 roof
pitch.

(c) Garage Orientation. Garages maybe oriented toward the street in a front entry
configuration; however, the front facade of the garage must be situated equal to or
behind the front building fagade of the primary structure. All garage configurations
that are not front entry shall meet the requirements of Article IV, Parking and
Loading, of the Unified Development Code. A minimum of 30% lots must incorporate
a Swing, Traditional Swing, or J-Swing garage configuration. Swing, traditional
Swing, or J-Swing garages are permitted to have a second single garage door facing
the street as long as it is behind the width of the double garage door situated in the
Swing configuration. All garage doors are required to be of cedar construction.

5. Anti-Monotony Restrictions. The development shall adhere to the Anti-Monotony Matrix
depicted in Table 3 below (for spacing requirements see the illustration below).

Table 3 : Anti-Monotony Matrix
Lot Type  Minimum Lot Size  Elevation Features
A 65’ x 125’ (1), (2), (3), (4)
B 80’ x 125’ (1), (2), (3), (4)

(1) Identical brick blends or paint colors may not occur on adjacent (side-by-side)
properties along any block face without at least four (4) intervening homes of
differing materials on the same side of the street beginning with the adjacent
property and three (3) intervening homes of differing materials on the opposite side
of the street.

(2) Front building elevations shall not repeat along any block face without at least four
(4) intervening homes of differing appearance on the same side of the street and
three (3) intervening homes of differing appearance on the opposite side of the
street. The rear elevation of homes backing to open spaces or on Rochell Road
shall not repeat without at least four (4) intervening homes of differing appearance.
Homes are considered to have a differing appearance if any of the following two (2)
items deviate:

(a) Number of Stories

(b) Porch and/or Sunroom Type and Layout
(c) Roof Type and Layout

(d) Articulation of the Front Fagade

(3) Each phase of the subdivision will allow for a maximum of four (4) compatible roof
colors, and all roof shingles shall be an architectural or dimensional shingle (3-Tab
Roofing Shingles are prohibited).

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 8 City of Rockwall, Texas
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Exhibit ‘D’:
Development Standards

Illustration 1: Properties line up on the opposite side of the street. Where RED is the subjectproperty.

Illustration 2: Properties do not line up on opposite side of the street. Where RED is the subjectproperty.

6. Fencing Standards. All individual residential fencing and walls shall be architecturally

compatible with the design, materials and colors of the primary structure on the same lot,
and meet the following standards:

(a) Wood Fences. All wood fences shall be constructed of a standard fencing material
(minimum of »2” thickness or better; spruce fencing will not be allowed), and use
fasteners that are hot dipped galvanized or stainless steel. Wood fences facing onto
a street shall be painted and/or stained and sealed with all pickets being placed on
the public side facing the street. All wood fences shall be smooth-finished, free of
burs and splinters, and be a maximum of six (6) feet in height.

(b) Wrought Iron/Tubular Steel. Lots located along the perimeter of roadways, abutting
open spaces, greenbelts and parks shall be required to install a wrought iron or
tubular steel fence. Wrought iron/tubular steel fences can be a maximum of six (6)
feet in height.

(c) Corner Lots. Corner lot fences (i.e. adjacent to the street) shall provide masonry
columns at 45-feet off center spacing that begins at the rear of the property line. A
maximum of six (6) foot solid board-on-board panel fence constructed utilizing cedar
fencing shall be allowed between the masonry columns along the side and/or rear lot
adjacent to a street. In addition, the fencing shall be setback from the side property
line adjacent to a street a minimum of five (5) feet. The property owner shall be
required to maintain both sides of the fence.

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 9 City of Rockwall, Texas
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Exhibit ‘D’:
Development Standards

(d) Solid Fences (including Wood Fences). All solid fences shall incorporate a
decorative top rail or cap detailing into the design of the fence.

7. Landscape and Hardscape Standards.

(1) Landscape. Landscaping shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan. All
Canopy/Shade Trees planted within this development shall be a minimum of four (4)
caliper inches in size and all Accent/Ornamental/Under-Story Trees shall be a
minimum of four (4) feet in total height. The following tree species are approved for
planting within this subdivision:

(a) Canopy/Shade Trees. Bald Cyprus, Cedar EIm, Texas Red Oak, Homestead
Elm, Lace Bark EIm, Alle EIm, Chinese Pistachio, Shumard Oak, Sycamore, and
Burr Oak.

(b) Accent/Ornamental/Under-Story Trees. Texas Redbud, Eve’s Necklace, Mexican
Plum, Downy Hawthorn, Crepe Myrtle, Texas Mountain Laurel, Vitex, and Desert
Willow.

(2) Landscape Buffers. All landscape buffers and plantings located within the buffers
shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA).

(a) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (Rochell Road). A minimum of a 15-foot
landscape buffer shall be provided along the frontage of Rochell Road (outside of
and beyond any required right-of-way dedication), and shall incorporate ground
cover, a built-up berm and/or shrubbery or a combination thereof along the entire
length of the frontage. Berms and/or shrubbery shall have a minimum height of
30-inches and a maximum height of 48-inches. In addition, at least one canopy
tree shall be planted per 50 linear feet of frontage. A minimum of a five (5) foot
sidewalk shall be required along Rochell Road.

(3) Street Trees. Street trees shall generally be planted in conformance with the Planned
Development Concept Plan as depicted in Exhibits ‘B’ of this ordinance. The
Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall be responsible for the maintenance of all
street trees and will be required to maintain a minimum of a 14-foot vertical
clearance height for all trees. All street trees shall be planted a minimum of five (5)
feet from all water, sanitary sewer and storm lines.

(4) Irrigation Requirements. Irrigation shall be installed for all required landscaping
located within common areas, landscape buffers and/or open space. Irrigation
installed in these areas shall be designed by a Texas licensed irrigator or landscape
architect and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association.

(5) Hardscape. Hardscape plans indicating the location of all sidewalks and trails shall
be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan.

8. Street. All streets (excluding drives, fire lanes and private parking areas) shall be built
according to City street standards.

9. Public Park Improvements. The development shall incorporate a nine (9) acre, fully
established natural turf (e.g. seeding process) and irrigated public park as generally

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 10 City of Rockwall, Texas
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Exhibit ‘D’:
Development Standards

depicted in the Planned Development Park Concept Plan of Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.
This area shall also incorporate the following improvements:

(a) 8-ft. concrete Hike & Bike trail

(b) Playground

(c) Plaza

(d) Covered Pavilion

(e) Picnic Area

() Benches

(g) Landscape features including trees and other vegetation

10. Lighting. Light poles shall not exceed 20-feet in total height (i.e. base and lighting
standard). All fixtures shall be directed downward and be positioned to contain all light
within the development area.

11. Sidewalks. At a maximum, all sidewalks adjacent to a street shall begin two (2) feet
behind the right-of-way line and be five (5) feet in overall width.

12. Buried Utilities. New distribution power-lines required to serve the Subject Property shall
be placed underground, whether such lines are located internally or along the perimeter
of the Subject Property, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council. New
transmission power-lines, or distribution lines of a size not typically or cost effectively
placed underground (3-phase lines), or additional lines that are added to existing poles,
may be above ground, if located along the perimeter of the Subject Property. The
Developer shall not be required to re-locate existing overhead power-lines along the
perimeter of the Subject Property. Temporary power-lines constructed across
undeveloped portions of the Subject Property to facilitate development phasing and
looping may be allowed above ground, but shall not be considered existing lines at the
time the area is developed, and if they are to become permanent facilities, such lines
shall be placed underground pursuant to this paragraph. Franchise utilities shall be
placed within a ten (10) foot public utility easement behind the sidewalk, between the
home and the property line.

13. Open Space. The development shall consist of a minimum of 23.3% open space (or
18.97-acres), and generally conform to the Planned Development Concept Plan
contained in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. All open space areas shall be maintained by
the Homeowner’s Association (HOA).

14. Neighborhood Signage. Permanent subdivision identification signage shall be permitted
at all major entry points for the proposed subdivision. Final design and location of any
entry features shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan.

15. Drainage Standards. The development shall comply with existing drainage standards
including the permissible spread of water in the streets and permissible gutter flow
through intersections as outlined in the City of Rockwall’s Standards of Design and
Construction (approved in August 2003 and updated in October 2007). The proposed
drainage areas, flow patterns (not lot to lot drainage), and storm drain system that will be
constructed shall be based on the City’s drainage criteria and be identified on a
Conceptual Drainage Plan, which shall be submitted with the Civil Plans at the time of
Engineering submittal. The Conceptual Drainage Plan shall be reviewed and approved
by the Engineering Department in compliance with engineering standards.

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 11 City of Rockwall, Texas
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Exhibit ‘D’:
Development Standards

16. Homeowner's Association (HOA). A Homeowner's Association shall be created to
enforce the restrictions established in accordance with the requirements of Section 38-
15 of the Subdivision Regulations contained within the Municipal Code of Ordinances of
the City of Rockwall. The HOA shall also maintain all neighborhood parks, trails, open
space and common areas, irrigation, landscaping, screening fences associated with this
development.

17. Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval that are set forth in the
Unified Development Code shall apply to any application for variances to this ordinance.

Z2016-013: Terracina Estates Page 12 City of Rockwall, Texas
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 06/20/2016

APPLICANT: Cameron Slown of FC Cuny Corporation

AGENDA ITEM: P2016-020 Final Plat for Fontanna Ranch Phase Il

SUMMARY:

Discuss and consider a request by Cameron Slown of FC Cuny Corporation on behalf of Randal
Currington of Fontanna Ranch Phase Il, LP for the approval of a final plat for Phase Il of the
Fontanna Ranch Subdivision containing 49 single-family residential lots on a 19.167-acre tract
of land identified as Tract 5 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 64 (PD-64) for Single Family 16
(SF-16) land uses, generally located east of FM-549 and south of SH-276, and take any action
necessary.

PLAT INFORMATION:

v

The objective of this request is to establish 49 single-family residential lots for the Fontanna
Ranch, Phase Il Subdivision. The property is zoned Planned Development District No. 64
(PD-64) which has an underlying zoning of Single Family 10 (SF-10) District for residential
land uses and is generally located east of FM-549 and south of SH-276.

the Preliminary Plat for Fontanna Ranch was reinstated in January of this year for the
purpose of constructing Phase Il. The proposed development complies with the Master
Thoroughfare Plan showing the extension of Guadalupe Drive in an eastward fashion,
eventually connecting with the currently proposed Terracina Estates Street H [see case
Z2016-013] that extends to Rochell Road.

On June 7, 2016, the Parks Board reviewed the Final Plat and made a recommendation to
approve the plat with the following conditions:

a) Payment of cash in lieu of land fees is due at final plat approval in the amount of
$318.00 per lot (or $15,582.00).

b) Payment of pro-rata equipment fees is due at final plat approval in the amount of
$446.00 per lot (or $21,854.00).

NOTE: This condition has been added to the conditions of approval below.

Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the
conditions listed in the Recommendations section below.

With the exception of the items listed in the Recommendation section of this case memo,

this plat is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in
the Municipal Code of Ordinances.
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ECOMMENDATIONS:

If the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council choose to approve the request for final
plat, staff would recommend the following conditions of approval:

1) All staff comments (Project Plan Review) provided by the Planning, Engineering and Fire
Department must be addressed prior to the submittal of a building permit.

2) Adherence to Parks Board and Parks Department requirements for Park District No. 22
and 49 single family residential lots for Fontanna Ranch, Phase II.

3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this final plat shall conform to the
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code, the International Building Code,
the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and
with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the
state and federal government.

On June 14, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to recommended approval of
the final plat passed by a vote of 6 to 0 with Commissioner Trowbridge absent.
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6/9/2016

City of Rockwall

Project Plan Review History

Applied 5/16/2016 LM
Project Number P2016-020 Owner FONTANNA, RANCH LTD Approved
Project Name Fontanna Ranch Phase I Applicant FC CUNY CORPORATION Closed
Type PLAT Expired
Subtype FINAL Status 5/16/2016 LM
Status STAFF REVIEW
Site Address City, State Zip
FM549 ROCKWALL, TX 75032 Zoning
Subdivision Tract Block Lot No General Plan
FONTANNA RANCH PH 1 5 NULL 5 0186-0000-0005-00-0R
Type of Review / Notes  Contact Sent Due Received Elapsed Status Remarks
BUILDING John Shannon 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 5/17/2016 1 APPROVED
ENGINEERING Amy Williams 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 8 COMMENTS See Comments

(5/19/2016 2:37 PM AW)
Engineering Comments on plat.
Tie at least 2 corners of the property to City of Rockwall monumentation (x and y coordinates)
Need to add minimum finished floor for all lots touching the detention/drainage easement (minimum 2' above 100 year water surface)
Label the detention easement as detention/drainage easement
Add note on plat: The property owner(s) are responsible for maintance, repair, and replacement of all the detention/drainage systems.
4% engineering fees

Impact fees at building permit

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 6/2/2016 6/9/2016 6/2/2016 COMMENTS See Comment
(6/2/2016 11:09 AM AW)
Page 2 #7 add the word "owner's/HOA" after "Property"

ENGINEERING Amy Williams 6/9/2016 6/16/2016 6/9/2016 APPROVED

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 5/17/2016 1 APPROVED

FIRE Ariana Hargrove 6/3/2016 6/10/2016 6/3/2016 APPROVED

GIS Lance Singleton 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 6/1/2016 16 COMMENTS See Comments

(6/1/2016 1:28 PM LS)
1. Tie at least 2 corners of the property to City of Rockwall monumentation (x and y coordinates)
Tx State Plane NAD83 (4202) & closure report.
2. Submit CAD .dwg of lots and street centerlines to the Planning or GIS dept so addressing can begin.

Project Reviews.rpt
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Type of Review / Notes  Contact Sent Due Received Elapsed Status Remarks

PLANNING David Gonzales 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 5/19/2016 3 COMMENTS See comments
Discuss and consider a request by Cameron Slown of FC Cuny Corporation on behalf of Randal Currington of Fontanna Ranch Phase Il, LP for the approval of a final
plat for Phase Il of the Fontanna Ranch Subdivision containing 49 single-family residential lots on a 19.167-acre tract of land identified as Tract 5 of the J. A. Ramsey
Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 64 (PD-64) for Single Family 16 (SF-16) land uses, generally
located east of FM-549 and south of SH-276, and take any action necessary

The following staff comments are to be addressed and resubmitted no later than Tuesday, June 7, 2016. Please provide three large copies [18" X 24" FOLDED] and
one PDF version for a subsequent review by staff:

1. Adherence to all Engineering and Fire Department standards shall be required.

2. Provide a label indicating "Case No. P2016-020" on the lower right corner on all pages of the revised plat.

3. Tie at least 2 corners to city monumentation and label as such.

4. Minimum 80-ft frontage required per PD-64 standards. The following lots are identified as not meeting the minimum 80-ft frontage. Indicate and label where the
front building line will meet the 80-ft frontage requirement for each of the following lots or adjust lot lines accordingly to meet the 80-ft frontage: Lot 11 of Blk F, &
Lot 6 of Blk H.

5. Provide a label for visibility clips. Provide detail.

6. Relabel Lot 24, Block F Open Space as "Drainage & Detention Easement."

7. Surveyor's Certificate - Notary not necessary when stamped by surveyor.

8. Fontanna Ranch Ph Il located within Park District No. 22 - Parks Board meeting to be held on June 7th at 6:00 p.m. in the City's Council Chambers. Adherence to
Parks Board recommendations.

** As a note and once the plat has been approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council, all staff comments are to be addressed and all revisions
resubmitted and approved (by staff) prior to plat submittal on mylar for filing purposes. **

Meeting Dates to Attend: Although it is not mandatory, staff would recommend that someone be present for all meetings scheduled below in the event there are
questions from either P&Z, Parks Board or City Council. If you have any quesitons regarding this case, please feel free to contact David Gonzales, AICP with the
Planning Department at 972-771-7745.
Planning - Work Session: May 31st, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)
Parks Board - Action: June 7, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)
Planning - Action: June 14, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)
City Council - Action: June 20, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)
PLANNING David Gonzales 6/1/2016 6/8/2016 6/1/2016 COMMENTS See comments

The following staff comments for the revised plans are to be addressed and resubmitted no later than Tuesday, June 14, 2016. Please provide two (2) large copies
[18" X 24" FOLDED] and one PDF version for a Final/subsequent review by staff:

1. Adherence to all Engineering and Fire Department standards shall be required.
2. Provide the Surveyor's Certificate on page 2 - Notary not necessary when stamped by surveyor.

** As a note and once the plat has been approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council, all staff comments are to be addressed and all revisions
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Type of Review / Notes  Contact Sent Due Received Elapsed Status Remarks
resubmitted and approved (by staff) prior to plat submittal on mylar for filing purposes. **

Meeting Dates to Attend: Although it is not mandatory, staff would recommend that someone be present for all meetings scheduled below in the event there are
questions from either P&Z, Parks Board or City Council. If you have any quesitons regarding this case, please feel free to contact David Gonzales, AICP with the
Planning Department at 972-771-7745.

Parks Board - Action: June 7, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)
Planning - Action: June 14, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)

City Council - Action: June 20, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)
PLANNING David Gonzales 6/9/2016 6/16/2016 6/9/2016 APPROVED See Conditions

1. Adherence to all Engineering and Fire Department standards shall be required.

** As a note and once the plat has been approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council, all staff comments are to be addressed and all revisions
resubmitted and approved (by staff) prior to plat submittal on mylar for filing purposes. **

Meeting Dates to Attend: Although it is not mandatory, staff would recommend that someone be present for all meetings scheduled below in the event there are
questions from either P&Z, or City Council. If you have any quesitons regarding this case, please feel free to contact David Gonzales, AICP with the Planning
Department at 972-771-7745.

Planning - Action: June 14, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)

City Council - Action: June 20, 2016 (6:00 p.m.)
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 06/20/2016

APPLICANT: Noah Flabiano, Skorburg Co.

AGENDA ITEM: P2016-028; Master Plat for the Ridgecrest Subdivision

SUMMARY:

Discuss and consider a request by Noah Flabiano of the Skorburg Company on behalf of the
owner Lakeside Church of Christ of Rockwall for the approval of a master plan/ open space plan
for the Ridgecrest Subdivision containing 45 single-family residential lots on a 29.541-acre
parcel of land being a portion of Lot 1 and all of Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Lakeside Church of
Christ Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District
81 (PD-81), located on the north side of Airport Road, west of the intersection of Airport Road
and FM-3549, and take any action necessary.

MASTER PLAT INFORMATION:

M The Ridgecrest Subdivision will consist of 45 single-family lots on 28.941-acres of land for
an overall density of 1.55-units/acre. The development will incorporate a rural street cross
section and larger font yard, building setback (i.e. 40-foot) to give the appearance of a
bucolic or rural neighborhood setting. The development will also incorporate ~24.68% open
space or 7.144-acres. A summary of the proposed density and dimensional requirements is
as follows:

Table 2: Lot Dimensional Requirements

Minimum Lot Width/Frontage 80’
Minimum Lot Depth 100’
Minimum Lot Area 15,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback 40’
Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’
Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) 10°
Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 20’
Maximum Height 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 100
Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) 1,800 SF
Maximum Lot Coverage 65%

M On June 8, 2016, the Parks Board reviewed the proposed master plat and open space plan
and recommended the following:

1) The City will accept dedication of Lot 14, Block A (Open Space/Drainage Easement) as
a public parkland; and,

2) The pro-rata equipment fees of $54,225.00 (i.e. 45 lots @ $71,205.00) maybe used to
provide amenity in the proposed public parkland; and,

3) The Parks Board will review a final amenity package at the time of final plat.
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M The submitted master plat and open space plan conform to the concept plan and

development standards contained in Planned Development District 81 (PD-81) [Ordinance
No. 16-42], which was approved by the City Council on June 6, 2016 under Case No.
Z2016-014. In conjunction with the submittal of this master plat and open space plan, the
applicant has submitted a preliminary plat (Case No. P2016-029).

The applicant has completed the maijority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and
this master plat, conforming to the requirements for master plats as stated in the Subdivision
Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances, is recommended for conditional approval
pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

If the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council choose to approve the master plat for the
Ridgecrest Subdivision staff would recommend the following conditions:

1)

2)

3)

The master plat shall conform to all requirements stipulated by the Planning, Engineering
and Fire Departments;

The applicant shall adhere to the recommendations made by the Parks Board (stated
above);

Any construction resulting from the approval of this master plat shall conform to the
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building
Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire
codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by
the state and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

On June 14, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend
approval of the master plat and open space plan by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner
Trowbridge absent.
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Skorburg Company

8214 Westchester Dr., Ste. 710
Dallas, TX 75225

Phone: 214/522-4945

Fax: 214/522-7244

SKORBURG

C OM P A N Y

June 9, 2016

Mr. Ryan Miller

Director of Planning & Zoning
City of Rockwall

385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087

Re: Ridgecrest — Preliminary Plat (Phase Statement)

Mr. Miller,

Ridgecrest development located on Airport Rd will be developed in one single phase
consisting of 45 single family units.

Best Rq’gards, /

> —

Noah Flabiano
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 06/20/2016

APPLICANT: Noah Flabiano, Skorburg Co.

AGENDA ITEM: P2016-029; Preliminary Plat for the Ridgecrest Subdivision

SUMMARY:

Discuss and consider a request by Noah Flabiano of the Skorburg Company on behalf of the
owner Lakeside Church of Christ of Rockwall for the approval of a preliminary plat for the
Ridgecrest Subdivision containing 45 single-family residential lots on a 29.541-acre parcel of
land being a portion of Lot 1 and all of Lot 2, Block A, Rockwall Lakeside Church of Christ
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 81
(PD-81), located on the north side of Airport Road, west of the intersection of Airport Road and
FM-3549, and take any action necessary.

PRELIMINARY PLAT INFORMATION:

M The Ridgecrest Subdivision will consist of 45 single-family lots on 28.941-acres of land for
an overall density of 1.55-units/acre. The development will incorporate a rural street cross
section and larger font yard, building setback (i.e. 40-foot) to give the appearance of a
bucolic or rural neighborhood setting. The development will also incorporate ~24.68% open
space or 7.144-acres. A summary of the proposed density and dimensional requirements is
as follows:

Table 2: Lot Dimensional Requirements

Minimum Lot Width/Frontage 80’
Minimum Lot Depth 100’
Minimum Lot Area 15,000 SF
Minimum Front Yard Setback 40’
Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’
Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) 10°
Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 20’
Maximum Height 36’
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 10°
Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) 1,800 SF
Maximum Lot Coverage 65%

M The purpose of the applicant’s submittal is to preliminary plat all 45 single-family, residential
lots and the 7.144-acres of private parkland and open space. In addition to the preliminary
plat the applicant has also submitted a preliminary water, sanitary sewer and storm water
plan establishing that the developer can provide adequate utilities to service the proposed
development. In conjunction with the submittal of this preliminary plat, the applicant has
submitted a master plat and open space plan (Case No. P2016-028).

M The submitted preliminary plat conforms to the concept plan and development standards

contained in Planned Development District 81 (PD-81) [Ordinance No. 16-42], which was
approved by the City Council on June 6, 2016 under Case No. Z2016-014.

67



4]

4]

On June 8, 2016, the Parks Board reviewed the proposed preliminary plat and
recommended the following:

1) The City will accept dedication of Lot 14, Block A (Open Space/Drainage Easement) as
a public parkland; and,

2) The pro-rata equipment fees of $54,225.00 (i.e. 45 lots @ $1,205.00) maybe used to
provide amenity in the proposed public parkland; and,

3) The Parks Board will review a final amenity package at the time of final plat.

The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and
this plat, conforming to the requirements for Preliminary Plats as stated in the Subdivision
Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances, is recommended for conditional approval
pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements.

Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the
conditions stipulated in the Recommendation section below.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

If the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council choose to approve the preliminary plat
for the Ridgecrest Subdivision staff would recommend the following conditions of approval:

1)

2)

The preliminary plat shall conform to all requirements stipulated by the Planning,
Engineering and Fire Departments;

In conformance with Planned Development District 81 (PD-81) [Ordinance No. 16-42] a site
plan shall be submitted and approved prior to the approval of a final plat;

A treescape plan for the entire development shall be submitted and approved prior to the
issuance of any grading permits;

The preliminary plat shall conform to the recommendations made by the Parks Board; and,

Any construction resulting from the approval of this preliminary plat shall conform to the
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building
Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire
codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by
the state and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

On June 14, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend
approval of the preliminary plat by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Trowbridge absent.

68



| P2016-029- RIDGECREST SUBDIVISION
PRELIMINARY PLAT - LOCATION MAP =

C ity of Rockwa I I The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
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Skorburg Company

8214 Westchester Dr., Ste. 710
Dallas, TX 75225

Phone: 214/522-4945

Fax: 214/522-7244

SKORBURG

June 9, 2016

Mr. Ryan Miller

Director of Planning & Zoning
City of Rockwall

385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087

Re: Ridgecrest — Preliminary Plat (Subdivider’s Statement)

Mr. Miller,

In accordance with Section 38-8 (Preliminary Plat) of the City of Rockwall Code of
Ordinances, the Breezy Hill Phase III development will comply with all the City
ordinance requirements and conform to or exceed the standards for such improvements

prescribed by the City.

Best Regards,
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City of Rockwall

Shhe CNew Fowzon

MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager
FROM: Timothy M. Tumulty, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

DATE: June 14, 2016

SUBJECT: NorthWater Line Improvements — CIP2013-003

This project consists of installation of approximately 4,400 linear feet of 8-inch PVC
water line, miscellaneous pavement replacement, and culvert installation on Jackson Street,
Kernodle Street, Parks Avenue and Lilian Street. These new 8-inch water line installations will
replace existing 2-inch and 6-inch water lines that are past there service life.

The City hired Binkley & Barfield | C&P consulting engineers to provide the engineering
design and specifications for this project. Five (5) bids were received and opened on June 2,
2016. The low bidder is Reytech Services, LLC with a Bid of $746,704.61. The engineering
consultant has verified the Reytech Services, LLC. references and provided a letter of
recommendation. Funding will be provided through the 2015 Water & Sewer Bonds.

Staff requests City Council consider approval of the North Water Improvements Project
and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Reytech Services, LLC. in an amount
of $746,704.61 and take any action necessary.

TMT:jw
Attachments

Cc:  Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager
Amy Williams, P.E. Assistant City Engineer
Jeremy White, P.E., CFM, Civil Engineer
Rick Sherer, Manager Water/Wastewater
File
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North Water Improvements CIP 2013-03
Bid Opening: 6/2/16

ltem el Units Bid Raytech Services Canary Construction Wilson Contractor Barson Utilities Dowager Utlity Construction Engineer's Estimate
Quantity Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1 MOBILIZATION (NOT TO EXCEED 5%) LS 1 $37,100.00 $37,100.00 $32,000.00 $32,000.00 $36,000.00 $36,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00] $50,000.00 $50,000.00,
2 REMOVE CONCRETE STREET PAVEMENT SY 304 $9.34 $2,839.36 $22.00 $6,688.00 $25.00 $7,600.00 $22.00 $6,688.00 $20.00 $6,080.00 $12.00 $3,648.00
3 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY SY 670 $8.87 $5,942.90 $22.00 $14,740.00 $25.00 $16,750.00 $23.00 $15,410.00 $20.00 $13,400.00|| $12.00 $8,040.00
4 REMOVE ASPHALT DRIVEWAY SY 64 $8.26 $528.64 $22.00 $1,408.00 $30.00 $1,920.00 $18.00 $1,152.00 $20.00 $1 ,280.00" $15.00 $960.00]
5 REMOVE CONCRETE SIDEWALK SY 123 $5.91 $726.93 $22.00 $2,706.00 $40.00 $4,920.00 $22.00 $2,706.00 $20.00 $2,460.00|| $10.00 $1,230.00
6 REMOVE DRIVEWAY CULVERT (12" CMP, 12" RCP, 18" RCP) LF 209 $7.90 $1,651.10 $22.00 $4,598.00 $35.00 $7,315.00 $10.00 $2,090.00 $20.00 $4,180.00|| $18.00 $3,762.00
7 REMOVE & SALVAGE EX. FIRE HYDRANT EA 1 $594.00 $594.00 $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $450.00 $450.00 $800.00 $800.00|| $600.00 $600.00]
8 REMOVE & RESET SIGN EA 9 $293.00 $2,637.00 $75.00 $675.00 $50.00 $450.00 $100.00 $900.00 $200.00 $1 ,800.00" $500.00 $4,500.00
9 REMOVE & RESET BRICK MAILBOX EA 1 $1,255.00 $1,255.00 $300.00 $300.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $500.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00|| $1,200.00 $1,200.00
10 |REMOVE & RESET MAILBOX EA 4 $198.00 $792.00 $150.00 $600.00 $50.00 $200.00 $100.00 $400.00 $200.00 $800.00|| $250.00 $1,000.00
11 |REMOVE & REPLACE ASPHALT STREET PAVEMENT (FOR STREET CROSSINGS) (6") SY 225 $77.34 $17,401.50 $55.00 $12,375.00 $105.00 $23,625.00 $49.00 $11,025.00 $80.00 $18,000.00|| $60.00 $13,500.00,
12 |REMOVE & REPLACE REINFORCED CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LF 110 $22.68 $2,494.80 $55.00 $6,050.00 $47.00 $5,170.00 $40.00 $4,400.00 $40.00 $4,400.00|| $35.00 $3,850.00
13 |REMOVE & REPLACE GRAVEL DRIVEWAY (6") SY 30 $15.75 $472.50 $35.00 $1,050.00 $7.00 $210.00 $30.00 $900.00 $40.00 $1 ,200.00" $25.00 $750.00
14 |REMOVE & REPLACE STONE SIDEWALK SY 6 $134.37 $806.22 $250.00 $1,500.00 $50.00 $300.00 $100.00 $600.00 $50.00 $300.00|| $80.00 $480.00]
15 |CONSTRUCT 8" REINFORCED CONCRETE PAVEMENT (W/MONO CURB WHERE REQUIRED) SY 246 $63.57 $15,638.22 $40.00 $9,840.00 $70.00 $17,220.00 $77.00 $18,942.00 $80.00 $19,680.00|| $55.00 $13,530.00
16 |CONSTRUCT 10" REINFORCED CONCRETE PAVEMENT (W/MONO CURB WHERE REQUIRED) SY 58 $81.62 $4,733.96 $50.00 $2,900.00 $92.00 $5,336.00 $87.00 $5,046.00 $100.00 $5,800.00|| $80.00 $4,640.00
17 |CONSTRUCT 4" REINFORCED CONCRETE SIDEWALK SY 127 41.64 $5,288.28 $20.00 $2,540.00 $39.00 $4,953.00 $45.00 $5,715.00 $50.00 $6,350.00|| $54.00 $6,858.00
18 |CONSTRUCT 6" REINFORCED CONCRETE DRIVEWAY SY 735 $55.93 $41,108.55 $32.00 $23,520.00 $75.00 $55,125.00 $70.00 $51,450.00 $60.00 $44,100.00|| $50.00 $36,750.00
19 |CONSTRUCT TxDOT CURB RAMP (TYPE 7) EA 1 $1,348.00 $1,348.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00|| $800.00 $800.00
20 |CONSTRUCT TxDOT CURB RAMP (TYPE 5) EA 1 $1,348.00 $1,348.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00|| $1,300.00 $1,300.00
21 |INSTALL 12" RCP CLASS IV CULVERTS LF 348 $45.52 $15,840.96 $55.00 $19,140.00 $45.00 $15,660.00 $110.00 $38,280.00 $40.00 $13,920.00|| $40.00 $13,920.00
22 |SAWCUT (FULL DEPTH) LF 3,510 $0.75 $2,632.50 $6.00 $21,060.00 $7.00 $24,570.00 $2.25 $7,897.50 $6.00 $21 ,060.00" $4.00 $14,040.00
23 |8" C900 PVC CLASS 200 (DR 14) WATERLINE INCLUDING CONNECTIONS, FITTINGS, EMBEDMENT, BA{ LF 4,599 $40.68 $187,087.32 $50.00 $229,950.00 $59.50 $273,640.50 $63.00 $289,737.00 $67.00 $308,133.00|| $45.00 $206,955.00
24 |8" C900 PVC CLASS 200 (DR 14) WATERLINE (BY BORE) (TREE AREAS) LF 120 $197.00 $23,640.00 $150.00 $18,000.00 $86.00 $10,320.00 $96.00 $11,520.00 $200.00 $24,000.00|| $90.00 $10,800.00
25 |12" C900 PVC CLASS 200 (DR 14) WATERLINE INCLUDING CONNECTIONS, FITTINGS, EMBEDMENT, B4 LF 22 77.96 $1,715.12 $190.00 $4,180.00 $235.00 $5,170.00 $100.00 $2,200.00 $250.00 $5,500.00|| $80.00 $1,760.00
26 |8" WATER BY OTHER THAN OPEN CUT WITH 18" CASING PIPE (TxDOT CROSSING) LF 40 $135.00 $5,400.00 $200.00 $8,000.00 $280.00 $11,200.00 $375.00 $15,000.00 $260.00 $10,400.00|| $100.00 $4,000.00
27 |8" RESILIENT SEAT GATE VALVE EA 24 $1,724.00 $41,376.00 $1,500.00 $36,000.00 $1,625.00 $39,000.00 $2,100.00 $50,400.00 $1,400.00 $33,600.00|| $2,000.00 $48,000.00,
28 |6" RESILIENT SEAT GATE VALVE EA 12 $1,168.00 $14,016.00 $1,000.00 $12,000.00 $1,140.00 $13,680.00 $1,700.00 $20,400.00 $1,200.00 $14,400.00|| $1,000.00 $12,000.00,
29 |20" X 8" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE EA 1 $14,692.00 $14,692.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,208.00 $5,208.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00|| $8,000.00 $8,000.00
30 |16" X 12" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE EA 1 $8,360.00 $8,360.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $4,610.00 $4,610.00 $5,985.00 $5,985.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00|| $6,500.00 $6,500.00
31 |12" X"12" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE EA 1 $6,077.00 $6,077.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,233.00 $4,233.00 $5,562.00 $5,562.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00|| $6,000.00 $6,000.00
32 |8"X 8" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE EA 6 $4,208.00 $25,248.00 $3,800.00 $22,800.00 $2,495.00 $14,970.00 $4,244.00 $25,464.00 $3,000.00 $18,000.00|| $4,500.00 $27,000.00,
33 |6" X 6" TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE EA 4 $3,383.00 $13,532.00 $3,200.00 $12,800.00 $1,960.00 $7,840.00 $3,563.00 $14,252.00 $2,600.00 $10,400.00|| $3,000.00 $12,000.00,
34 |FIRE HYDRANT w/ 6" LEAD EA 12 $4,285.00 $51,420.00 $4,500.00 $54,000.00 $3,102.00 $37,224.00 $4,726.00 $56,712.00 $4,000.00 $48,000.00|| $3,200.00 $38,400.00,
35 |1"POLY WATER SERV. INCL FITTINGS & NEW METER BOX (SHORT SIDE) EA 27 $806.00 $21,762.00 $950.00 $25,650.00 $680.00 $18,360.00 $735.00 $19,845.00 $700.00 $18,900.00|| $800.00 $21,600.00
36 |1"POLY WATER SERV. INCL FITTINGS & NEW METER BOX BY OTHER THAN OPEN CUT (LONG SIDE)| EA 31 $1,033.00 $32,023.00 $1,650.00 $51,150.00 $1,840.00 $57,040.00 $769.00 $23,839.00 $1,000.00 $31,000.00|| $1,200.00 $37,200.00]
37 |CUT & PLUG EXISTING WATER (2"/6"/8") EA 16 $868.00 $13,888.00 $1,500.00 $24,000.00 $396.00 $6,336.00 $995.00 $15,920.00 $200.00 $3,200.00|| $700.00 $11,200.00
38 |CONNECT TO EXIST WATER MAIN (6"/8") EA 10 $841.00 $8,410.00 $1,650.00 $16,500.00 $550.00 $5,500.00 $482.00 $4,820.00 $2,000.00 $20,000.00|| $800.00 $8,000.00
39 |CONNECT TO EXIST 2" WATER MAIN EA 1 $485.00 $485.00 $800.00 $800.00 $310.00 $310.00 $337.00 $337.00 $300.00 $300.00|| $500.00 $500.00]
40 |ABANDON EXISTING VALVES (6"/8") EA 14 $202.00 $2,828.00 $450.00 $6,300.00 $350.00 $4,900.00 $75.00 $1,050.00 $200.00 $2,800.00|| $800.00 $11,200.00
41 |TCEQ CROSSING - 20 LF 18" CASING PIPE EA 2 $2,688.00 $5,376.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,840.00 $7,680.00 $2,631.00 $5,262.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00|| $1,800.00 $3,600.00
42 |CONNECT TO EX. 20" WATER EA 1 $403.00 $403.00 $4,980.00 $4,980.00 $1,700.00 $1,700.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00|| $1,800.00 $1,800.00
43 |CONNECT TO EX. 16" WATER EA 2 $403.00 $806.00 $3,560.00 $7,120.00 $1,400.00 $2,800.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00|| $1,200.00 $2,400.00
44 |CONNECT TO EX. 12" WATER EA 2 $403.00 $806.00 $3,250.00 $6,500.00 $1,100.00 $2,200.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00|| $750.00 $1,500.00
45 |ADJUST RESIDENTIAL WASTEWATER CLEAN OUT EA 4 $259.00 $1,036.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $105.00 $420.00 $100.00 $400.00 $300.00 $1 ,200.00" $350.00 $1,400.00
46 |SODDING OF DISTURBED AREAS (MATCH EXISTING TYPE) SY 5,970 $5.27 $31,461.90 $6.00 $35,820.00 $4.00 $23,880.00 $6.00 $35,820.00 $4.00 $23,880.00|| $5.00 $29,850.00
47 |TRENCH SAFETY DESIGN LS 1 $595.00 $595.00 $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00|| $5,000.00 $5,000.00
48 |TRENCH SAFETY LF 4,599 $1.15 $5,288.85 $1.00 $4,599.00 $2.00 $9,198.00 $0.10 $459.90 $0.10 $459.90|| $1.25 $5,748.75
49 |SWPPP PREPARATION IMPLEMENTATION & MAINTENANCE LS 1 $12,095.00 $12,095.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00|| $6,000.00 $6,000.00
50 |BARRICADES, TRAFFIC CONTROL & WARNING SIGNS, TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN LS 1 $18,801.00 $18,801.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $24,000.00 $24,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00|| $10,000.00 $10,000.00,
51 |REMOVE AND REPLACE LANDSCAPE AREA (ALLOWANCE) LS 1 $8,756.00 $8,756.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00|| $5,000.00 $5,000.00
52 |REMOVE/REPLACE CREPE MYRTLES EA 2 $2,015.00 $4,030.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $650.00 $1,300.00 $450.00 $900.00 $800.00 $1,600.00|| $500.00 $1,000.00
53 |REGRADE DITCH LF 1,020 $6.50 $6,630.00 $10.00 $10,200.00 $6.00 $6,120.00 $4.50 $4,590.00 $12.00 $12,240.00|| $10.00 $10,200.00
54 |SET TxDOT P-CD HDWLS. ON 12" RCP (3:1) EA 30 $516.00 $15,480.00 $1,000.00 $30,000.00 $600.00 $18,000.00 $1,185.00 $35,550.00 $1,200.00 $36,000.00, $600.00 $18,000.00,
Contingency $151,359.87

Total Bid = $746,704.61 Total Bid = $824,839.00( Total Bid = $867,955.50| Total Bid = $882,284.40( Total Bid = $886,122.90 Total Bid = $909,331.62

Indicates error in Contractor Bid Proposal
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Binkley Barfield | C&P

consulting engineers

June 8,2016

Jeremy White, P.E., CFM
City of Rockwall

385 S. Goliad

Rockwall, Texas 75087

RE: North Water Improvements — CIP 2013-003

Dear Mr. White:

On Thursday, June 2, 2016, the City of Rockwall received five (5) bids for the above mentioned
project. The low bidder was Reytech Services, LLC with a tabulated low bid of $746,704.61 and the
high bidder was Dowager Utility Construction, LTD with a bid of $886,122.90.

Based on my review of the tabulated bid information, the Bidder’s Qualification information, and
phone interviews [ have conducted with owners of other projects constructed by the contractor, it is

my recommendation that the City of Rockwall award the contract to Reytech Services, LLC.

If you have any questions or concerns, please call me at 972-644-2800.

Sincerely,

Binkley & Barfield - C&P, Inc.
Consulting Engineers

e

Michael Cummings, P.E.
President

Binkley & Barfield-C&P, Inc. « TBPE F-3815 « 1801 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 10178ichardson, Texas 75080 + Tel: 972.644.2800 | Fax; 972.644.2817 « www.bbcpi.com



BIDDER’S QUALIFICATION INFORMATION

1. The apparent low bidder shall complete and deliver to the Engineering Department and City’s
Consulting Engineer within 48-hours after the bid opening, the following Bidder’'s
Qualification Information documents:

QZ(QuaIification Statement of Bidder. If additional space is needed, please use attachments.

Q/ Reference Statement of Bidder's Surety.
Bidder's Release of Qualification Information.

v Bidder's List of Proposed Sub-contractors.

»&” Non-Exclusion Affidavit - System for Award Management (SAM)
Financial Statement Reviewed or Audited by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), prepared in the last 12-
months for the bidder's company.

\IZ’IRS W9 Form — a pdf version of this form can be downloaded from IRS web site.

J& Texas Ethics Commission — Form 1295

All seven (7) documents shall be delivered to the Engineering Department and City’s Consulting
Engineer as a single, complete package. No one form or statement will be accepted individually.

2. If the 48-hours deadline falls on a weekend or holiday, Bidder shall deliver the six (6) documents to
the Engineering Department and City’s Consulting Engineer the next workday after the 48-hours.

3. If aproject is a "joint venture", all partners in the joint venture shall complete the pre-qualification
forms.

&

4. The low bidder shall be required to submit evidence that they have a practical knowledge and
experience of the particular work bid upon and that they have the financial resources to
complete the proposed work.

5. In determining the contractor's qualifications, the following factors will be considered: Work
previously completed by the contractor; adequate plant and equipment to do the work properly

and expeditiously; financial resources to meet all obligations incidental to the work; technical
expertise and safety record.
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~ QUALIFICATION STATEMENT OF BIDDER

Engineering Department
City of Rockwall

385 S. Goliad

Rockwall, Texas 75087

Bidder: P\QA .}\‘-( Adn Senaces LLC

\
=4 Circle One: Sole Proprietor  Partnership @ Joint Venture

Name'w Partner:
8 Address: ()_E)D@&D%S_B-__ Address:

Y iy Savand Baine T Noiy

e

ozl

Phone: D\N\=FA4-OWG & Phone:
i Principal Place of Business: Principal Place of Business:
»
. Yavrany Co. I

County & State County & State

Ifthe Bidder is a corporation, fill out the following:

State and County of Incorporatlonmr\’ah-\—‘c.o T&M§
Location of Principal Office: 230\ 1\ \(\U\XY\M\ %Y' C"\g [ % m&
Contact Person(s) at Ofﬁce:GESY\’\QM P\QMQS\ Phone%n“ga‘:l '0@,8

List Officers of the Corporation and person(s) authorized to execute Contracts on Behalf of the
Corporation:

I Name: ‘E‘SY\’\QY' QQA\'C S _ Title: Q{LS .
Name: PDOU\S pO\.,HC/\/éO(\ Title: \J p

Name: Title:

Name: Title:

How many years has your organization been in business as a General Contractor? S
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Greatest number of con{%cts in excess of $100,000 under construction at one time in
company's history:

Greatest number of contracts in excess of $500,000 under construction at one time in
company's history:

Total approximate value of incomplete work outstanding: $ _1, 2=24p, OO

List major projects of the type of work qualifying for or similar work completed in the last three
years, give the following information for each project:

Project: Sea. Q*"_WMCS\'

Owner/Engineer:

Contact Person: Phone:
Date of Completion: Contract Price:
Project:

Owner/Engineer:

Contact Person: Phone:
Date of Completion: Contract Price:
Project:

Owner/Engineer:

Contact Person: Phone:
Date of Completion: Contract Price:
Project:

Owner/Engineer:

Contact Person: Phone:

Date of Completion: Contract Price:
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Reytech Services, LLC

P.O. Box 540252

Grand Prairie, TX 75054
817-829-0698 * Fax 888-533-5002

CURRENT PROJECTS

Name: 16” Water Main Improv/Harborview Dr SS Reloc Contract: $572,871.55
Description: Water Main Improvements & S Sewer Relocation
Owner: City of Rockwall Jeremy White Phone: 972-771-7746
Engineer: Binkley & Bartfield Michael Cummings Phone: 972-644-2800
Name: Highland Village Rd & Highland Shores Blvd Contract: $650,00.00
Description: Water Line & Sidewalk Improvements
Owner: City of Highland Village Tim Bruedigm Phone: 972-899-5131
Engineer: BW2 Engineers, Inc Mike Burge Phone: 972-864-8200
Name: Glade Street Contract: $127,352.00
Description: Water Main Replacement
Owner: City of Sansom Park Ron Douglas Phone: 817-626-3791
GC: Pacheco Koch Christopher Cha Phone: 817-412-7155
Name: Lake Ridge Phase II Contract: $258,713.00
Description: Site Development (Water, Sewer & Storm Drain)
GC: McFadden & Miller LTD Jon Jacobs Phone: 972-401-2356

COMPLETED PROJECTS
Name: Enclave at Alliance Completed: Pending
Description: Water, Sewer & Drainage Amount: $680,000.00
GC: PC Contractors LLC Chase Patterson Phone: 817-343-4792
Name: Mercer 260 Completed: March 2016

Description: Site Development (Water, Sewer, Storm & Fire Line) Amount: $556,232.85
Owner: Billingsley Co
GC: McFadden & Miller LTD Jon Jacobs Phone: 972-401-2356
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Name: Frisco Commerce Center

Description: Site Development (Water, Sewer, Drain & Fire Line)

GC: McFadden & Miller LTD Jon Jacobs

Name: Mercer East & West
Description: Site Development (Water & Sewer)
Owner: Billingsley Development Corp

Engineer: Pritchard Associates Todd Wildman

Name: Dollar Tree — Pantego
Description: Site Development (Water, Sewer & Fire Line)

GC: Moore Construction Mgmt Inc Stan Moore
Name: Advance Auto Parts - NRH

Description: Sewer Tap

GC: Moore Construction Mgmt Inc Stan Moore

Name: Parkwood Granite Office Building

Completed: Dec 2015
Amount: $446,650.10
Phone: 972-401-2356

Completed: Dec 2015
Amount: $410,791.00
Phone: 214-270-1001
Phone: 214-849-0011

Completed: Oct 2015
Amount: $69,607.50
Phone: 817-861-1788

Completed: May 2015
Amount: $ 23,840.00
Phone: 817-861-1788

Completed: Apr 2015

Description: Site Development (Water, Sewer, Drain & Fire Line) Amount: $233,628.76

GC: McFadden & Miller LTD Jon Jacobs
Name: Kimbo Juvenile Probation Center

Description: Drainage Improvements

Owner: Tarrant County Danny Roberson

Name: Mercer 340

Phone: 972-401-2356

Completed: Mar 2010
Amount: $24,617.50
Phone: 817-884-1414

Completed: Feb 2015

Description: Site Development (Water, Sewer, Storm & Fire Line: Amount: $552,504.57

GC: McFadden & Miller LTD Jon Jacobs

Name: Cross Qak Ranch Phase 3, Tract 10A
Description: Water, San Sewer & Storm Drain
GC: PC Contractors LLC

Name: Lakeside Office Building

Chase Patterson

Phone: 972-401-2356

Completed: Jan 2015
Amount: $350,000.00
Phone: 817-343-4792

Completed: Dec 2014

Description: Site Development (Water, Sewer, Storm & Fire Line) Amount: $340,897.76

GC: McFadden & Miller LTD Jon Jacobs

81

Phone: 972-401-2356



LARGEST PROJECTS COMPLETED

Name: Mountain Creek Hilltop

Description: Site Dev (Water, Sewer, Storm Drain & Fire Line)

GC: McFadden & Miller LTD Jon Jacobs

Name: DWSRF Contact #62553
Description: Water Distribution System Improvements
Owner: City of De Leon

GC: PC Contractors LLC Chase Patterson

Name: Comanche Utilities Improvements
Description: Water, Sewer & Storm Drain
Owner: City of Comanche

GC: PC Contractors LLC Chase Patterson

Name: Fort Worth St Improvements
Description: Water, Sewer & Storm Drainage
Owmer: City of Weatherford

GC: PC Contractors LLC Chase Patterson

Name: Frac-Tech Manufacturing Buildings
Description: Site Work & Metal Building Setup
Owner: FTS International Services LLC

CG: PC Contractors LLC Chase Patterson

82

Completed: Jan 2016
Amount$ 1,003,082.84
Phone: 972-401-2356

Completed: Feb 2015
Amount: $1,066,000.00
Phone: 254-893-2065
Phone: 817-579-6791

Completed: Apr 2014
Amount:$1,026,763.53
Phone: 325-356-2616
Phone: 817-343-4792

Completed: Aug 2014
Amount: $985,574.11
Phone: 817-598-4000
Phone: 817-343-4792

Completed: Oct 2012
Amount: $905,211.25
Phone: 817-850-1008
Phone: 817-343-4792



:

If company is under new management, please list names of staff and qualification and/or

experience of said persons. (Please use attachments).

Have you or any present partner(s) or officer(s) failed to complete a contract? {1
If so, name of owner and/or surety:

Contact Person: Phone:

List any unsatisfied demands upon you as to your accounts payable, please use attachments.

Bank Reference:

Bank:( &?;% E5$¢¢D¥hr S Gity: C"')YG\X\,C& Q(&J\\'ie- :—l_ﬂ‘
Address: m\ﬁ M Phone:"@”‘aaﬁ OWER
Contact Officer: _{ Y\ (}YAQ,\ ’R(l h?&i

Other Credit References:

Name: ‘:()Af'\\ we, AU ndeyunlts Name: % %UOO\U

Address: Q-O. E XK SE)SE)E& Address: QO Ez)]g a‘é%ﬁ)
city: - \ound, .VCBQ‘ XBSD  ciy: S oD
Phone: YOM _NR -3\ Phone: __ AN -WH\-AN\O
Municipal Reference:

o Cady of hghland Village

Contact Person: \ Title: —\4{\5(?

Address: OO0 Hoy Qaland OW\\as¢. Phone:_I—BAG-§ D]
thaland O\ Mage TX 1M

Page 34 of 116

83



REFERENCE STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S SURETY

Bidcer: _Raytech Services. LLC

Address' 2864 Nadh Hampton Drive. Grand Prairie. TX 75052

1.

FFor this Bzicsiden how many coniracis that are now complete has this surety furnished contract
bonds?

2. For this Bidder, how many incomplete contracts has this surety furnished contract bonds?
Y S

3. What is the maximum bonding capacity of this Bidder? $ 3 0n0.000.00

4. Does the current financial information on this Bidder indicate solvency and a financial ability to
complete this contracl? Yes

5. Does the information avaitable to this surety indicate that the conlractor pays accounts when due?

Yes ti not, give details: b

6. Is it the surety's opinion that the bidder has sufficient axperience and financial resources to
salisfactorily perform the contract? Yes

7. Provided this bidder does not assume other commitments or that this surety does not acquire
further information that in your opinion will materially affect the bidder’s capacity to perform this
coniract, will you furnish the bonds as specified; « Yes

REMARKS:

We truly believe that Reytech Services, LLC is a top-notch Centractor in their industry as evidenced by Iheir past performance on

several major projects and their reputation in this industry.

Surely: Philadelphia Indemnily Insurance Company £}
T J O Mt
Signed: (-—-*L‘\ g A t i =

!

Title: Fred A. Thetford. Ill, Attorney-in-Facl

Address; One Bala Plaza, Suite 100,

Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004
City State  Zip

Phone: 1-877-438-7459

Page 35 of 115

84



BIDDER'S RELEASE OF QUALIFICATION INFORMATION

Pursuant to advertisement for bids and in conformance with Instructions to Bidders for types of work
cutlined in Bidder's Statement of Quaiifications, the undersigned is submitting information as required
with the understanding that the purpese is for the City's confidential use, only to assist in determining
the qualifications of Bidder's organization to perform the type and magnitude of work designated, and
further, Bidder guarantees the truth and accuracy of all statements made, and will accept the City's
Cetermination of qualifications without prejudice. The surety harein named, any other bonding
company(s), kank(s), subcontractor(s), supplier(s). or any ather person(s), firm(s) or corporation(s) with
vihom Bidder has done business, or who have extendad any credit to Bidder is (are) hereby authorized
to furnish the Cily with any information the City may request concerning performance on grevious work
and Bidder's credit standing with any of them, and Bidder hereby releases any and all such parties from
any lenal responsibility \rm?ﬂ‘?\zver on account of having\furnished such information to the City:

Signed: LR Title: S o

Printsd Namegﬁ me/é(\f TJ;{S} Email @ﬁm@/@ \rﬁu\-\—(( hserure S.Com

~.

Bidder: Reytech Services, LLC Date: 06/09/2016

LOCATION OF LOCAL UNDERWRITING OFFICE OF PROPOSED SURETY
{

Name: ] ' Phone: _469-221-7987
’ 1
Printed Name: Glenn E. Ganci Email: _glenn gancigaphly.com
Address: 3939 Belt Line Road, Suite 650 City: Addison State: TX 75001
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BIDDER'S LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS

1. Sub-Contractoy/ Material Supplier:
Company Name; p(; (,O\\’}\'Yz-dﬁ@ LL-C

Type of Work to Be Performed: C_.OY\C/V\L)LQ& oYY

Contact Person: C M"}ﬂ, POJH‘W\_ Title: Q((S*

emai: Chase@x Conhadom LCFRI: _ FIN-39D QD
==

2. Sub-Contractor terial Supplier:
Company Name: wmms

Type of Work to Be Performed: Q\ 02,

” ) -
Contact Person: (‘(LS(/\C} \7\\ “ Title: SO\,\-(S 21 A2

Emafs:%gﬂ@mmw(‘%e: TN~ 1-BA0O

/-—__—___“‘--._
3. Sub-Contractor / (iaterial Supplier:
Company Name: RQOH YWy

Type of Work to Be Performed: JO‘{\O\'\\.}‘(_

Contact Person{ VC\L% Sgr_;ggo\ Title: M‘O )

Email: Phone: 6\’-]"' %bg“\\\,m

4. Sub-Contractor / Material Supplier:

Company Name:

Type of Work to Be Performed:

Contact Person: Title:

Email: Phone:;

5. Sub-Contractor / Material Supplier:

Company Name:

Type of Work to Be Performed:

Contact Person: Title:
Email: Phone:
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Non-Exclusion Affidavit - System for Award Management (SAM)

Federal, state, and local government agencies, not-profits, and other organizations that use
federal money to fund all or part of any program or project are required to follow specific
requirements regarding the use of such federal funds. One of these requirements is that no
contract, subcontract, grant, financial assistance, or other forms of assistance provided using
federal funds may be awarded to individuals or entities that have been suspended, debarred,
or otherwise excluded from participation in federally funded programs.

The U.S. federal government maintains a Web site known as the “System for Award
Management” (SAM) at www.sam.gov. One of the purposes of the SAM Web site is to provide
a comprehensive list of all individuals, firms, and other entities that have been suspended,
debarred, or otherwise excluded from participation in federally funded contracts, subcontracts,
grants, etc. SAM provides a simple means of helping government, non-profit agencies, and
other organizations ensure that they do not award federally-funded grants, contracts,
subcontracts, or other financial or non-financial benefits to any individual, firm, or other entity
that has been excluded by any agency from participation in such federa!ly funded activities.

%\J\"{ pab‘\JEW\ (Contractor Representative), hereby certify that
nelthef" I n0r Re_k A—\-'( n W\ Lo L Q (Name of the

company or organization lrepresent) nor any subcontractors that | or said company may employ
to work on any federally funded activity have been suspended, debarred, or otherwise
excluded by any federal agency from participation in any federally funded activity. | further
acknowledge my understanding that, before entering into a contract with me or with the
.company or organization | represent, City of Rockwall staff will perform a search on
www.sam.gov to verify whether |, the organization | represent, or any subcontractors | may
employ to work on any federally funded activity, have been excluded from participation in any
federally funded activity.

Sy (oA — WESIY

Signature of Contractor Representative Date

Notary .
Sworn to and subscribed before me this e}?@xday of SLA_.\(\DM ; 20_\_kQ

FWQME%S A

Notary Public in and A e County, e v S (Insert State Name)

\\\!\I 1] l"m
S “wEﬂALo,;j?o,
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REYTECH SERVICES LLC

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014
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«M/éern ()Qa‘y anc[ Compan‘y

LLP
Certified Public Accountants
4831 Merot Avenue, Suite 320
MILBERN D. RAY, C.PA., 1933-2006 Grapevine, Texas 76051 MEMBER:
RONALD 0. RAY, C.PA. ——— : AMERICAN INSTITUTE
KENT A. RAY, C.PA. P.O. Box 849 OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC
Bedford, Texas 76095-0848 ACCOUNTANTS

(817) 552-7661 Metra (817) 552-2885
FAX (B17) 552-1391
www.milbemray.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S COMPILATION REPORT

To the Members
Reytech Services, LLC
Grand Prairie, TX

We have compiled the accompanying balance sheet of Reytech Services, LLC as of December 31, 2014,
and the related statement of income and members’ equity for the year then ended. We have not audited or
reviewed the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the form of
financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no material
modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Management has elected to omit the statement of cash flows required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. If the omitted statement was included in the financial
statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the company’s financial position, results of
operations and cash flows. Accordingly, the financial statements are not designed for those who are not
informed about such matters.

Rt g

June 22,2015

Grapevine, Texas



REYTECH SERVICES LLC
BALANCE SHEET

- DECEMBER 31, 2014
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 51,909
Receivables
Trade 835,482
Retainage 134,346
~ Costs and estimated earnings in excess
of billings on uncompleted contracts 133,809
Total current assets b 1,155,546
Machinery and equipment, net 260,992
$ 1,416,538
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable - trade $ 648,928
Other liabilities 13,143
Notes payable, current portion 71,916
Billings in excess of costs and estimated
earning on uncompleted contracts 136,082
Total current liabilities S 876,069
Long-term debt, net of current portion 262,299
Members' equity:
' Members' equity 278,170
278,170

$ 1,416,538

See independent accountant's compilation report and accompanying notes, which are an ihtcgral part of these financial statements.
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REYTECH SERVICES LLC
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

REVENUE $ . 4,440,561
COST OF GOOiJS SOLD 3,595,119
Gross profit 845,442
OPERATING EXPENSES . 135,393
Operating income : | 109,849

OTHER INCOME AND (EXPENSES)

Interest expense. (15,086)
NET INCOME ‘ T 94763
BEGINNING MEMBERS' EQUITY | 183,407
ENDING MEMBERS' EQUITY | $ 278,170 |

See independent accountant's compilation report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REYTECH SERVICES, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business activity

Reytech Services, LLC (the “Company”) is a commercial construction contractor
operating as a limited liability company. The Company's work is performed primarily in
Texas. These contracts are billed as work is performed.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenues and cost recognition

Revenues from construction contracts are recognized, net of sales tax, on the percentage-
of-completion method measured on the basis of incurred costs to estimated total costs.
This method is used because management considers expended costs to be the best
available measure of progress on these contracts. Revenue recognized under the
percentage-of-completion method is a significant estimate. It is reasonably possible that
this estimate will change materially in the next year.

Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related
to contract performance. Selling, general and administrative costs are charged to
operations as incurred. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are
made in the period in which such losses are determined. Changes in job performance, job
conditions, and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty
provisions, and final contract settlements may result in revisions to costs and income, and
are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Profit incentives are
included in revenues when their realization is reasonably assured. An amount equal to
contract costs attributable to claims is included in revenues when realization is probable
and the amount can be reliably estimated.

The asset, "Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts,” _
represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed. The liability, "Billings in

_excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts," represents billings in

excess of revenues recognized.
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REYTECH SERVICES, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE 1

NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (continued)
Contract receivables

Contract receivables are recorded when the invoice is issued, and are due under the terms
of the contract. They are uncollateralized. Contract receivables are written off when they
are determined to be uncollectible. Management currently believes that all receivables
are collectible. Accordingly, no provision has been made for uncollectible accounts.

Management periodically assesses receivables, considering the existing economic
conditions in the construction industry and the financial stability of its customers.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is computed primarily using the
straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 5 to
10 years. The Company uses the modified accelerated cost recovery system for tax
purposes, which has recovery periods similar to useful lives used. Expenditures for
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. For assets sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
accounts, and any related gain or loss is reflected in income for the period.

Deposits held in financial institutions

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts in several financial institutions.
The balances, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not
experienced any losses in these accounts, and believes it is not exposed to any significant
credit risk.

Advertising

The Company’s pdlicy is to expense all advertising costs in the period in which the
advertising first takes place. Advertising expense was approximately $120 for the year
ended December 31, 2014.

RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES ON CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

At times, receivables on construction contracts include retainage withheld by the
customer until completion of the contract. Similarly, the Company sometimes withholds
a similar retainage from subcontractors until completion of the contract. Based on
current estimated completion dates, retainage receivables and payables will become due
within the next year.
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REYTECH SERVICES, LLC _
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE3 PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2014:

Autos and trucks 5 144,087
Furniture and office equipment 2,351
Machinery and equipment 264,803
411,241
Less accumulated depreciation {150,249)
$ 260,992
NOTE 4 OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities consisted of the following at December 31, 2014:

Payroll taxes $ 13,143
$ 13,143
NOTES COSTS AND ESTIMATED EARNINGS ON UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS
Costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts were as follows:
Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts $ 2,968,221
Estimated earnings : 497,404
3,465,625
Less billings to date (3,467,898)
5 (2,273)
Included in the accompanying balance sheet under the following captions:
Costs and'estiﬁated earnings in excess of
billings on uncompleted contracts
$ 133,809
Billings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted contracts (136,082)
$ (2,273)
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REYTECH SERVICES, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE 6

NOTE7

LONG-TERM DEBT

Note payable to a financial institution, due $5,759
per month, including interest at 3.3%, maturing
September 2017, secured by equipment.

Notes payable to a financial institution, due
between $756 and $830, including interest
between 6.59% and 8.79%, maturing August 2019,
secured by vehicles.

Note payable due to a member, interest at 6% due
monthly, principal due December 31, 2016,
unsecured

Less: Cwrrent maturities

181,446

73,769

85,000

340,215
(77,916)

262,299

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows for the years ending December 31:

2015 $ 77,916
2016 166,151
2017 : 67,220
2018 17,362
2019 11,566

b 340,215

BACKLOG

The following schedule shows a reconciliation of backlog representing the amount of
revenue the Company expects to realize from work to be performed on uncompleted

contracts in progress at December 31,2014,

Balance: December 31, 2013

‘New contracts, 2014

Less: Contract revenue earned, 2014
Balance: December 31, 2014

$

651,676
6,535,043
7,186,719

(4,440,561)

2,746,158
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REYTECH SERVICES, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE 8

NOTE 9

FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

With the consent of its members; Reytech Services, LLC elected to be taxed under the
provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under those provisions,
Reytech Services, LLC does not pay federal corporate income taxes on its taxable
income, Instead, the members are liable for individual federal income taxes on the LLC’s
taxable income. Accordingly, no provision has been made for federal income tax in the
accompanying financial statements for Reytech Services, LLC.

The Company files gross margin tax returns in Texas. For state tax purposes, the
Company uses accelerated depreciation methods for property and equipment. The
Company is subject to examinations by tax authorities for all years after January 1, 2011.

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that deferred income taxes be
provided for differences in the basis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax
purposes. The Company’s temporary differences result mainly from differences in the
methods used for state tax depreciation. These temporary differences did not result in
material deferred tax assets or liabilities at December 31, 2014.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through June 22, 2015 the date which the
financial statements were available to be issued.

10
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ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Members
Reytech Services, LLC
Grand Prairie, TX

Our report on our compilation of the basic financial statements of Reytech Services, LLC for the year
ended December 31, 2014 appears on page three. The information included in the accompanying
supplementary schedules of job revenue and costs, construction in progress, completed jobs, and
operating expenses contained in the following pages is presented only for purposes of additional analysis.
Such information has been compiled from information that is the representation of management, without
audit or review. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
supplementary information.

T g Qﬂ?-j(ro

June 22, 2015

Grapevine, Texas



REYTECH SERVICES LLC
SCHEDULE OF JOB REVENUE AND COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

GROSS

REVENUE COST ‘ PROFIT
Construction in progress  $ 3,127,429 $ | 2,671,558 b 455,871
Completed jobs C 1LE13132 923,561 389,571
$ 4,440,561 $ 3,595,119 $ 845,442

See independent accountant's report on supplementary information.
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REYTECH SERVICES LLC
SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

FROM INCEPTION TO
DECEMBER 31, 2014
ESTIMATED
FINAL COST
GROSS REVENUE OF
PROJECT " REVENUE PROFIT EARNED REVENUES
Advocare Utility b 487,314 64,917 487,314 422,397
Mercer East & West 410,791 40,791 165,105 148,710
Frisco Commerce Center 446,650 56,650 10,612 9,266
Lakeside Off Bldg Lewisville 338,786 58,286 314,166 260,116
Mercer 260k 451,142 56,142 7,109 6,224
Mercer 340-Water Improv 552,505 57,005 517,355 463,977
Mountain Creek Hilltop 986,692 148,092 2,974 2,528
Parkwood Granite Off Building 237,329 47,329 212,952 170,484
Cisco Infastrucmre 225,000 29,512 217,801 189,233
Cross Oak Ranch 390,000 29,500 379,030 350,360
Enclave at Westport/Alliance 700,000 80,000 174,902 154,913
Fort Worth St-Weatherford 985,574 188,061 976,305 790,013
$ 6,211,783 $ 856,285 § 3,465,625 $ 2,968,221

See independent accountant's report on supplementary information.
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COSTS AND BILLINGS IN
ESTIMATED EXCESS OF
ESTIMATED EARNINGS IN COSTS AND
GROSS BILLED COSTTO EXCESS OF ESTIMATED
PROFIT TO DATE COMPLETE BILLINGS EARNINGS
64,917 3 472,861 § -3 14,453 § -
16,395 219,938 221,250 - 54,833
1,346 - 380,734 10,612 -
54,050 334,923 20,384 - 20,757
885 5,271 388,776 1,838 -
53,378 552,505 31,523 - 35,150
446 - 836,072 2,974 -
42,468 221,826 19,516 - 8,874
28,568 225,000 6,255 - 7,199
28,670 350,000 10,140 29,030 -
19,989 100,000 465,087 74,902 -
186,292 985,574 7,500 - 9,269
497,404 § 3,467,898 § 2,387,277 § 133,809 $ 136,082

See independent accountant's report on supplementary information.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2014
REVENUE COST OF GROSS
EARNED REVENUE PROFIT
$ 149,118  § 125734 § 23,384
165,105 148,710 16,395
10,612 9,266 1,346
314,166 260,116 54,050
7,109 6,224 885
517,355 463,977 53,378
2,974 2,528 446
212,952 170,484 42,468
217,801 189,233 28,568
379,030 350,360 28,670
174,902 154,913 19,989
976,305 790,013 186,292
$ 3,127,420 $ 2,671,558 § 455,871

See independent accountant's report on supplementary information.
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REYTECH SERVICES LLC
SCHEDULE OF COMPLETED JOBS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

CONTRACT TOTALS

‘REVENUE COST OF GROSS

EARNED REVENUE PROFIT
Hunter Ferrell $ 69,800 $ 58,797 § 11,003
Dominion Office Building 239,333 207,583 31,750
Comanche 1,026,763 694,263 332,500
Cheddars Corp Office-Irving 124,260 91,302 32,958
Haslett-FM156 12" Waterline 165,715 146,018 19,697
Westworth Village 69,698 35,318 34,380
Small & misc under $50,000 407,453 268,972 138,481
'$ 2,103,022 § 1,502,253 $ 600,769

See independent accountant's report on supplementary information.

17

104



FOR THE YEAR ENDED
PRIOR YEARS DECEMBER 31, 2014

REVENUE COST OF GROSS REVENUE COST OF GROSS
EARNED REVENUE PROFIT EARNED REVENUE PROFIT

$ 64,512 § 52,353 % 52,353 % 5,288 § 6,444 § (1,156)
200,053 135,718 135,718 39,280 . 71,865 (32,585)
525,325 390,621 390,621 501,438 303,642 197,796

- - - 124,260 91,302 32,958
- - - 165,715 146,018 19,697
- - - 69,698 35,318 34,380
- - - 407,453 268,972 138,481

$ 789,890 § 578,692 3 578,692 § 1,313,132 § 923,561 § 389,571

See independent accountant's report on supplementary information.
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Form W"g

(Rev. December 2014}

Department of the Treasury
internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

REYTECH SERVICES LLC

1 Name {(as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2 Business name/disregarded entity name, it different from above

[:] Individual/sole proprietor or [1 ¢ corporation

single-member LLC

the tax classification of the single-member owner.
{] Other (see instructions) >

3 Chack appropriate box for federal tax classification; check only one of the following seven boxes:
] scorporation [] Partnersnip

Limited Fability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnership) »
Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in the line above for | EXemption from FATCA reporting

4 Exemptions (codes apply only 1o
0 certain antities, not individuals; see
Trust/estate | instructions on page 3):

c Exempt payee code {if any)

code (if any)
{Appiies to accounts malmtained outside the ULS.)

6 Address {number, straet, and apt. or suite no.)
PO BOX 540252

& City, siate, and ZIP cods
GRARND PRAIRIE, TX 75054

Print or type
See Specific Instructions on page 2.

wm C;C. ada:j\ s (optional) m\

7 List account number{s) here (optional)

Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN)

7IN on page 3.

Enter your TiN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid | Social security number
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part | instructions on page 3. For other . -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How o get a

or
Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the chart on page 4 for [ Employer ideniification number
guidelines on whose number to enter.

27| ~{3|9]|0|2{3{0|7] -

Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my comect taxpayer identification number (or 1 am waiting for & number to be issued to me); and

2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: {a} | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Servics (IRS) that 1 an subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or () the IRS has notified me that | am .

no longer subject to backup withholding; and
3. lam a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is comect.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax retum. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage
interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirament arrangement (IRA), and
generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the cerlification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the

instructions on page 3.

—_—
Sign | signature of '
Here | ufmmen> K= TSNS

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless

Future developments. Information about developments affecting Form W-9 (such
as legislation enacted after we releass it} Is at www.irs.gov/fwg.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-8 requester) who is required to fila an information
retum with the IRS must abtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN)
which may be your social sacurity number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification
number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification numbrer {ATIN), or employer
Identification number (EiN), to repart on an information return the amount paid to
you, or ather amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information
returns include, but are not fimitad to, the following:
© Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

= Form 1099-DIV {dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)

* Form 1089-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
= Form 1098-B {stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by
brokers)

= Farm 1099-S {proceeds from real estate transactions)

* Form 1088-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

Z m 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T
tu

¢ Form 1099-C (canceled dabt)
= Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person {indluding a resident alien), to
provide your comect TIN,

#f you do not refum Form W-9 o the requester with a TIN, you might be subject
to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding? on page 2.

By signing the filled-out form, you:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct {or you are waiting for a number
to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. if
applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of
any parinership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the
withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form {if any) indicating that you are
exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is FATCA reporting? on
page 2 for further information. .

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-9 Rev. 12-2014)
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CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

Form 1285
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business, 2016-67225
Reytech Services LLC
Grand Prairie, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a parly to the contract for which the form is 06/07/2016
being filed.
City of Rockwall Date Acknowledged:

description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

CIP 2013-003
North Water Improvements

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a

Name of interested Party

City, State, Country (place of business)

Nature of interest
(check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party.

_
R

to and subscribed before me, by the said
20 to certify which, witness my hand and seal of office.

s QQDRQ Tomeralda Reyes

6 AFFIDAVIT \\\\\g"““gxg'fltf% I swear, or affirm, under penaty of perjury, that the above disclosure is true and correct.
& 7 % Z
_,é -,... "2’775 " -ﬁ*‘cg ...." é_&' Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
%, e XPIRERT &
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP / S Al '

, this the [ day 0;3\_&‘\({, s

" Signature of officer administering §a

Printed name of officer administerin&‘uam

Title of officer administering oath

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

www.ethics.state.tx.us
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m CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
W MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor and City Council
CC: Rick Crowley, City Manager

Brad Griggs, Assistant City Manager
FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning
DATE: June 20, 2016

SUBJECT: Used Automotive Dealerships

On May 16, 2016, staff brought forward an ordinance to the City Council proposing to allow the
Motor Vehicle Dealership, Used (Cars and Light Trucks) use by SUP in the Light Industrial (LI)
District and by-right in the Heavy Industrial (HI) District; however, the ordinance also restricted
the use in certain overlay districts within the City. This ordinance was denied by the City
Council by a vote of 6-1, with Mayor Pruitt dissenting. As part of this motion staff was directed
to draft an ordinance that conformed to the motion made by the City Council on March 21, 2016.
This motion was to allow a Motor Vehicle Dealership, Used (Cars and Light Trucks) in a Light
Industrial (LI) District by a Specific Use Permit (SUP). Attached to this memorandum is an
ordinance that if approved would make this change to the Unified Development Code (UDC).

In accordance, with Section 4.2 of Article XlI, Zoning Related Applications, of the UDC staff
brought the proposed amendment forward to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a
recommendation to the City Council. On June 14, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission
made a motion to recommend denial of the proposed text amendment in favor of leaving the
current ordinance in place. The motion passed by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Trowbridge
absent. In addition, staff has sent out a 15-day notice to the Rockwall Herald Banner in
accordance with all applicable state laws and Section 6.1 of Article I, Authority and
Administrative Procedures, of the UDC. Attached to this case memo is a copy of the draft
ordinance and a map showing the location of all existing land zoned Light Industrial (LI) District.
This map was requested by the Planning and Zoning Commission at their work session on May
31, 2016.
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE
[ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS
HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY AMENDING SECTIONS 1.1 & 2.1.8 OF
ARTICLE IV, PERMISSIBLE USES; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF
FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, an amendment to the City of Rockwall’'s Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-
38] has been initiated by the City Council of the City of Rockwall to amend Section 1.1, Use of Land
and Buildings, and Section 2.1.8, Auto and Marine-Related Use Conditions, of Article 1V,
Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] for the purpose of
establishing Motor Vehicle Dealership, Used (Cars and Light Trucks) as a standalone use permitted
within the Light Industrial (LI) District by Specific Use Permit; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of
the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the City
of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all persons
interested in and situated in the city’s corporate boundaries, and the governing body in the exercise
of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38]
should be amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS:

Section 1. That Section 1.1, Use of Land and Buildings, and Section 2.1.8, Auto and Marine-
Related Use Conditions, of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code
[Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby
amended as specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance;

Section 2. That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine
not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and every
day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense;

Section 3. That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that
section, paragraph; or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason judged
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance
or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, corporation
or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of the Unified
Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and
applications ‘of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this
ordinance are declared to be severable;

Section 4.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and the
publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides;

Z2016-017: Amendments to Art. IV of the UDC Page 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 16-XX;
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PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 6™ DAY OF JUNE, 2016.

Jim Pruitt, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kristy Cole, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1% Reading:  June 20, 2016

2" Reading:  July 5. 2016

Z2016-017: Amendments to Art. IV of the UDC Page 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 16-XX;
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Exhibit ‘A’
Article 1V, Permissible Uses,
of the Unified Development Code

Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code
Section 1. Land Use Schedule
Section 1.1. Use of Land and Buildings

Residential Permitted Uses Mixed Use Commercial Industrial
AG SF-E | SF-1 | SF-16 | SF-10 |SF-8.4| SF-7 | ZL-5 2-F |MF-14 Auto and Marine DT R-O | N-S GR C HC RT LI HI

Auto repair garage, major + P

Auto repair garage, minor + S S

Automobile rental

Boat and trailer dealership (new and
used) +

Car wash/auto detail + S S

T | TV | 0OW|®O
T | V| 0| T)|T| T
T | T | ®»W | ®»W| T

Car wash, self-service S

Indoor motor vehicle
dealership/showroom, new and/or
used +
Motor vehicle dealership, new (cars
and light trucks) +
Motor vehicle dealership, used (cars
and light trucks) +

Parking, commercial

w
w
w
w

o
w
T

>
(7]

Parking lot, noncommercial A S P

Recreational vehicle (RV) sales and
service

T | »W | T|T|>» | ®

Service station + S P

Towing-and impound yard +

Towing service, no storage +

Truck rental

W | V| OV|wW|TVT| OVT|T|TOT| >
| »w| V|| TVT|®n|T| DO
| 0| OV|TV| 0| 0| TO| 0| >

Truck stop with fuel and accessory
services +

Z2016-017: Amendments to Art. IV of the UDC Page 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 16-XX;
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Exhibit ‘A’
Article IV, Permissible Uses,
of the Unified Development Code

Article 1V, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code
Section 2. Use Standards
Section 2.1.8 Auto and Marine-Related Use Conditions

Indoor Motor Vehicle Dealership/Showroom, (New and/or Used). The indoor storage of operable
automobiles in a fully enclosed building for the purpose of holding such vehicles for sale, lease,
distribution, or storage.

1. The sales/storage facility must be a completely enclosed building.
Outside display or storage of vehicles shall be prohibited. This includes storing vehicles under
canopies/awnings or similar covered structures.

3. All activities shall remain inside the building (i.e. no detailing, sales activities, et cetera shall be
performed outside the building).

4. Accessory uses may be allowed in compliance with the "Permissible Use Charts" located within
Section 1.1 of this article.

Motor Vehicle Dealerships (New and Used).

1. Used vehicles may only be sold as an ancillary use to new vehicle sales in the Commercial
(C), Heavy Industrial (HI) and Heavy Commercial (HC) Districts.

2. All outside display of vehicles must be on an approved concrete, or enhanced concrete
surface.

3. All vehicle display areas must meet the landscape standards for parking areas.

Z2016-017: Amendments to Art. IV of the UDC Page 4 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 16-XX;
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 06/20/2016

APPLICANT: Jeff Parker, Skorburg Company

AGENDA ITEM: Z2016-018; Breezy Hill Amendments (PD-74)

SUMMARY:

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jeff Parker of the Skorburg
Company on behalf of BH Balance IV, LLC for the approval of a zoning amendment to Planned
Development District 74 (PD-74) to amend the concept plan to allow for additional single-family
residential lots and for the purpose of incorporating changes to the development standards
contained in Exhibit ‘C’ of Ordinance 14-26 for a 405.184-acre tract of land identified as the
Breezy Hill Subdivision and situated within the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, generally located north of FM-552 and west of Breezy Hill Road, and
take any action necessary.

BACKGROUND:

The property was annexed in 2008 after three (3) years of litigation that lead to the execution of
a Chapter 212 Development Agreement. In accordance with this agreement, the property was
zoned to Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) on April 20, 2009 with the intention of being
a master planned residential community that offered tracts of land designated for retail/office,
residential, and institutional land uses. The approval of this zoning change altered the existing
212 Development Agreement -- which originally permitted 810 single-family residential lots and
did not contain any retail acreage -- to include 658 single-family residential lots and a 59-acre
tract of land designated for general retail land uses. The retail tract of land is located at the
northeast corner of the intersection of FM-552 and John King Boulevard.

On October 1, 2012 the City Council approved an amendment to Planned Development District
74 (PD-74) modifying the concept plan to remove the school sites that were originally required
by the Facilities Agreement and adjust the lot mix accordingly [i.e. increasing the number of lots
from 658 to 691]. The lot mix was again increased on July 7, 2014 from 691 lots to 742 lots for
the purpose of incorporating two (2) additional phases (i.e. Phases IXA & IXB) and to reduce the
land designated as commercial/retail from 59.4-acres to 33.7-acres (see Figure 1 for the
adjusted lot mix).

Figure 1: Current Lot Mix

Lot Types A B C D
Typical Lot Frontage (Feet) 60 70 80 100
Typical Lot Depth (Feet) 120 120 125 200
Minimum Lot Size (Sq. Ft.) 7,200 8,400 10,000 20,000
Number of Units 206 112 326 98
Dwelling Unit % 27.80% 15.10% 43.90% 13.20%

On March 13, 2015, the applicant submitted an alternate concept plan depicting a reduction in
the number of acres designated for retail land uses from 33.7-acres to 19.49-acres for the
purpose of amending Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) to include an additional
residential phase of 50’ x 120’ lots (i.e. minimum of 6,000 SF). In addition, this case proposed
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raising the number of lots from 742 to 762, but maintain a density of 2.0-units/acre. This case
[Case No. Z2015-013] was denied by the City Council on May 4, 2015.

PURPOSE:

In accordance with Section 8.3 of Article I, Authority and Administrative Procedures, of the
Unified Development Code (UDC) -- which restricts a similar application for the period of one (1)
year from the denial date -- the applicant has submitted an application requesting to amend
Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) [Ordinance No. 14-26] to approve an alternate
concept plan and development standards. Specifically, the applicant is requesting to reduce the
number of acres designated for retail land uses from 33.7-acres to 19.49-acres for the purpose
incorporating an additional residential phase that will be composed of 50’ x 120’ lots (i.e.
minimum of 6,000 SF).

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST:

The 14.21-acres of land that the applicant is proposing to remove from the retail acreage will
establish a new phase of the Breezy Hill Subdivision that will contain 47 single-family homes.
The new phase will be located north of the remaining retail acreage, adjacent to Phase IIA.
These new homes will be constructed on 50’ x 120’ lots that will be a minimum of 6,000 square
feet in size. The development standards for this new lot type (identified below in Figure 2 as Lot
Type ‘E’) are taken directly from the zoning ordinance that regulates the Stone Creek
Subdivision (i.e. Planned Development District 70 [PD-70]) and are similar to the remaining lot
types in Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) with respect to the development standards.
The only major difference in this lot type will incorporate forward facing garages. This is
primarily due to the difficulty of incorporating a 'J’ Swing or Traditional Swing driveway on a 50-
foot lot.

Figure 2: Proposed Lot Mix

Lot Types A B C D E
Typical Lot Frontage (Feet) 60 70 80 100 50
Typical Lot Depth (Feet) 120 120 125 200 120
Minimum Lot Size (Sq. Ft.) 7,200 8,400 10,000 20,000 6,000
Number of Units 206 112 326 98 47
Dwelling Unit % 26.11% 14.20% 42.32% 12.42% 5.96%

Considering the proposed new lot type and the proposed changes to the lot mix, the total
number of single-family lots will be increased from 742 to 789. This proposed change increases
the density from ~2.0-units/acre to ~2.07-units/acre (i.e. currently the subdivision has 742 lots
on ~379-acres, and the applicant is proposing 789 lots on ~381-acres). With the exception of
the proposed changes to the concept plan and lot mix tables, and subsequent changes to
accommodate the new lot type, the applicant is not requesting any additional changes to
Planned Development District 74 (PD-74).

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The Future Land Use Map contained within the Comprehensive Plan designates the subject
property for Commercial land uses. Should the City Council approve the applicant’s request,
the Future Land Use Map will be amended to reflect the proposed changes in land use from a
Commercial designation to a Low Density Residential designation. This has been added to the
conditions of approval contained in the Recommendations section of this case memo.
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NOTIFICATION:

On May 27, 2016, staff mailed 364 notices to property owners and residents within 500-feet of
the subject property. Staff also emailed a notice to the Stoney Hollow and Breezy Hill
Homeowner’s Associations (HOA’s), which are the only HOA'’s located within 1,500 feet of the
subject property. Additionally, staff posted a sign at the corner of FM-552 and John King
Boulevard, and advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Harold Banner as required by the
Unified Development Code (UDC). At the time this case memo was drafted staff had received
19 responses in opposition to the zoning change.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request to amend Planned Development
District 74 (PD-74) then staff would propose the following conditions of approval:

1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the conditions contained
within the Planned Development District ordinance;

2) By approving this zoning change, the City Council will effectively be approving changes to
the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map. Specifically, this will change the
designation of the subject property from a Commercial designation to a Low Density
Residential designation;

3) Prior to accepting a final plat for the proposed phase (i.e. depicted in purple of the PD
Concept Plan) the applicant shall be required to administratively amend the PD site plan in
order to show all necessary entry features/signage, landscaping and hardscaping proposed
for the new phase;

4) Prior to accepting a preliminary plat for the proposed phase (i.e. depicted in purple of the PD
Concept Plan) the applicant shall be required to administratively amend the preliminary plat
for Phases IXA & IXB to show the new street layout; and,

5) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning amendment shall conform to the
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building
Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire
codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by
the state and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

On June 14, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion recommending that
the proposed residential phase -- identified as Phase X on the concept plan -- consist of 60-foot
lots (i.e. Lot Type ‘A’) in lieu of the proposed 50-foot lots (i.e. Lot Type ‘E’). This motion passed
by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Trowbridge absent.

It should be noted that the attached draft ordinance does not include this recommendation, and
in order to incorporate the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation the City Council
will need to make a motion specifying this change. If such action is taken, staff will amend the
ordinance between the first and second reading.
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From: Morales, Laura

To: |
Cc: Miller, Ryan

Subject: Neighborhood Noification Program: Notice of zoning request

Date: Thursday, May 26, 2016 5:02:02 PM

To whom it may concern:

Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notification
to inform your organization and residents of a request for a zoning change that lies within 1,500
feet of the boundaries of your neighborhood or subdivision. As the primary contact for the
organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the residents of your subdivision.
Please find attached a map detailing the location of the subject property requesting the zoning
change in relation to your subdivision boundaries. Additionally, below is a summary of the zoning
request that will also be published in the Rockwall Herald Banner on June 3, 2016. If you have any
guestions or comments regarding this request, the contact information for the Planning
Department is listed below. Additional information can also be found at
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development-cases

Z2016-018Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jeff Parker of the
Skorburg Company on behalf of BH Balance IV, LLC for the approval of a zoning amendment
to Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) to amend the concept plan to allow for additional
single-family residential lots and for the purpose of incorporating changes to the development
standards contained in Exhibit ‘C’ of Ordinance 14-26 for a 405.184-acre tract of land identified
as the Breezy Hill Subdivision and situated within the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187,
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located north of FM-552 and west of Breezy Hill
Road, and take any action necessary.

If this email is reaching you in error, please forward it to your HOA or neighborhood group
representative and update the contact information at http://www.rockwall.com/planning/hoa.asp.

Sincerely,

Lawraw Movales

Planning & Zoning Coordinator
City of Rockwall Planning & Zoning Department
972-771-7745 | 972-772-6438

Lmorales@rockwall.com | http://www.rockwall.com
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CITY OF ROCKWALL, PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT

~ PHONE: (972) 771-7745
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

To Whom It May Concern:

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application:
Case No. Z2016-018: Breezy Hill Amendment to PD-74

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jeff Parker of the Skorburg Company on behalf of BH Balance IV, LLC for the approval of a
zoning amendment to Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) to amend the concept plan to allow for additional single-family residential lots and
for the purpose of incorporating changes to the development standards contained in Exhibit ‘C’ of Ordinance 14-26 for a 405.184-acre tract of land
identified as the Breezy Hill Subdivision and situated within the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally
located north of FM-552 and west of Breezy Hill Road, and take any action necessary.

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on
Tuesday, 6/14/2016 at 6:00 p.m., and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, 6/20/2016 at 6:00 p.m. These hearings will be held in
the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street.

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings. If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form
to:

Ryan Miller
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept.
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, TX 75087

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com. If you choose to email the Planning Department
please include your name and address for identification purposes.

Your comments must be received by 6/20/2016 to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City Council.
Sincerely,

Ryan Miller, AICP
Director of Planning & Zoning

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE: HTTPS://SITES.GOOGLE.COM/SITE/ROCKWALLPLANNING/DEVELOPMENT-CASES
— « = + PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORIVI = = == & == & m= = == s == & s = == s s s o s o s o s o st o s o s ot o s o s o= s o s = s
Case No. Z2016-018: Breezy Hill Amendment to PD-74
Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:

] 1 am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.

] 1 am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below.

Name:

Address:

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed
change must receive, in order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body. The protest must be
written and signed by the owners of at least 20 percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the
lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed change and extending 200 feet from that area.

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE

Notice of Public Hearing * City of Rockwall 385 South Goliad Street ® Rockwall, TX 75087 e [P] (972) 771-7745e [F] (972) 771-7748

123


mailto:Planning@Rockwall.com
mailto:planning@rockwall.com

CURRENT RESIDENT
1001 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1001 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1002 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1002 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1005 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1005 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1006 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1006 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1009 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1009 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1001 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1001 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1002 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1002 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1005 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1005 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1006 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1006 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1009 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1010 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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CURRENT RESIDENT
1001 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1002 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1002 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1004 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1005 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

GOODWIN ALLAN AND JULIE

1005 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 0

CURRENT RESIDENT
1006 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1009 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1009 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1010 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
1010 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1010 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1013 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1014 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1014 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1017 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1017 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1018 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1018 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1021 AMER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1010 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1013 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1013 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1014 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1014 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1017 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1017 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1018 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1018 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1021 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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CURRENT RESIDENT
1010 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1013 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1013 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1014 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1014 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1017 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1018 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1018 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1020 WINDY HILL LN
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1021 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
1021 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1022 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1022 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1024 WINDY HILL LN
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1025 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1026 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1026 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1029 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1032 WINDY HILL LN
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1033 FAWN TRL
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1021 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1022 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1022 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1025 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1025 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1026 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1028 WINDY HILL LN
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1030 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1033 AMER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1036 WINDY HILL LN
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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CURRENT RESIDENT
1022 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1022 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

BIANCO DIEGO L
1022 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 0

CURRENT RESIDENT
1025 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1025 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1026 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1029 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1030 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1033 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
1037 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
1037 FAWN TRL
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

RIDGEVIEW CHURCH
1362 EFM 522
ROCKWALL, TX0

CURRENT RESIDENT
205 ROCKHOUSE LN
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3303 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3307 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3310 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3314 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3315 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3319 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3322 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

RIGGS WILLIAM AUDY SR ESTATE
105 E KAUFMAN ST
ROCKWALL, TX0

PAUL TAYLOR HOMES LTD
17950 PRESTON RD 0
DALLAS, TX 0

CURRENT RESIDENT
313 SHENNENDOAH
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3306 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3307 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3311 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3314 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3318 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3319 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3323 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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CURRENT RESIDENT
1313 FM552
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
200 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3302 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3306 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3310 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3311 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3315 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3318 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3322 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3323 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
3326 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3401 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3405 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3406 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3410 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3413 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3418 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3423 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3502 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3602 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
339 ALL ANGELS HILL
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3402 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3405 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3409 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3410 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3414 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3418 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3425 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3506 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3605 NOAH CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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CURRENT RESIDENT
3401 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3402 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3406 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3409 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3413 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3414 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3422 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3426 RIDGECROSS DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3510 ROYAL RIDGE DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3606 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
3609 NOAH CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3614 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3621 NOAH CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3710 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3902 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4186 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4193 LORION DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4198 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4205 LORION DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4401 SENEY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3610 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3617 NOAH CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3702 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3714 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3906 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4189 LORION DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4194 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4201 LORION DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4206 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4405 SENEY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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CURRENT RESIDENT
3613 NOAH CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3618 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3706 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3718 DREWSBURY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
3910 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4190 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4197 LORION DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4202 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4210 RAVENBANK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4409 SENEY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
4413 SENEY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
493 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
502 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
505 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
509 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
510 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
514 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
517 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
521 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
522 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
4501 SENEY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
497 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
502 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
506 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
509 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
513 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
514 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
518 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
521 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
525 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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CURRENT RESIDENT
4505 SENEY DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
501 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
505 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
506 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
510 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
513 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
517 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
518 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
522 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
526 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



MEGATEL HOMES INC

5512 W PLANO PARKWAY 0

PLANO, TX O

CURRENT RESIDENT
601 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
605 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
606 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
610 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
613 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
617 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
625 FM552
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
701 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
706 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

SINKS CHARLES WILLIAM Il & SANDRA LYNN
555 SINKS ROAD
ROCKWALL, TX0

CURRENT RESIDENT
602 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
605 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
609 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
610 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
614 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
617 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

HANCE LARRY
6306 GLENHOLLOW CT
DALLAS, TX

LONES STEVEN M JR AND KELLY SUSAN
702 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

EVANS JEFFREY WILLIAM AND JULIE BONDS
709 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX
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CURRENT RESIDENT
601 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
602 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
606 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
609 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
613 LIFE SPRING DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
614 LIMMERHILL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

DREES CUSTOM HOMES LP
6225 N STATE HIGHWAY 1610

IRVING, TX

GILBERT ADAM AND AMANDA

700 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX0

JONES ELOISE AND
705 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

CURRENT RESIDENT
710 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
713 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
718 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
725 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
802 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
809 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

LOWDERMILK SHANE AND CHERYL

817 CALM CREST
ROCKWALL, TX

WINDSOR HOMES CUMBERLAND LLC

8214 WESTCHESTER
DALLAS, TX

BH 60'S POD LTD
8214 WESTCHESTER DR
DALLAS, TX

BH PHASE | SF LTD

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE

DALLAS, TX

BH BALANCE | LLC

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE 0

DALLAS, TX 0

CURRENT RESIDENT
714 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CAVALLI DAVID MICHAEL AND JULIE HARRISON

721 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

BLOCHER AYERS H 11l AND KAREN L
726 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

YAO CHAN-HWA AND ESTHER KUO-LIN
805 CLAM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

ETLEY MICHAEL EUGENE
812 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 0

CARIKER KEVIN L AND LESLIE )
818 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

BH PHASE IlI SF, LTD. / BH AMC, LTD.
8214 WESTCHESTER DR
DALLAS, TX

BH PHASE IV SF, LTD.
8214 WESTCHESTER DR
DALLAS, TX

BH PHASE IIB SF LTD
8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE
DALLAS, TX

BH PHASE III SF LTD
8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE O
DALLAS, TX 0
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WILLIAMS TOMMY EUGENE AND PEGGIE J
717 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

ROGERS DAMIAN W AND JESSICA L
722 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

CURRENT RESIDENT
801 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

COLLINS HOPE AND GUY JR
806 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

CURRENT RESIDENT
813 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CAMP JOSEPH RICHARD AND
821 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 0

BH PHASE V 80'S POD LTD
8214 WESTCHESTER DR O
DALLAS, TX

BH BALANCE IlI LLC
8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE 0
DALLAS, TX

BH PHASE IIA SF LTD
8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE
DALLAS, TX

BH BALANCE IV LLC
8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE 0
DALLAS, TX 0



BH BALANCE Il LLC
8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE
DALLAS, TX

CURRENT RESIDENT
890 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
898 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
901 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
902 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
905 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

SICILIANO LAURA EDITH AND
906 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX0

CURRENT RESIDENT
909 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
910 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
913 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

BRADLEY ERIK DOUGLAS
822 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

RICE JAMES RANDOLPH JR AND CANDACE
ELAINE
893 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX

CURRENT RESIDENT
901 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
902 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
905 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
906 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
909 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
910 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
913 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
914 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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WEBB JOHN DAVID AND CAROLYN PARKER
825 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX

CURRENT RESIDENT
894 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
901 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
902 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
905 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
906 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
909 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
910 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
913 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
914 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
914 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
917 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
918 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
921 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
922 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
925 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
929 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
930 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
933 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
937 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
917 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
918 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
921 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
922 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
925 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
926 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

MASSEY REBECCA LYNNE ALAMAT AND DARRIN
TODD
929 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX0

CURRENT RESIDENT
933 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
934 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

ROBSON SCOTT WAYNE
937 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX
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CURRENT RESIDENT
917 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
918 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
921 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
922 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
925 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
926 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
930 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
933 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
934 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
938 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



CURRENT RESIDENT
938 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
942 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
946 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
978 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
982 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
986 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
990 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
994 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
997 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
998 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
941 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
945 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
949 COLBY BLUFF DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
981 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
985 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
989 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
990 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
994 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
997 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
998 EMBER CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087
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CURRENT RESIDENT
941 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
945 PLEASANT VIEW DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
950 AMBER KNOLL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
982 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
986 CATTERICK DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
990 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
993 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
994 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
998 CALM CREST DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087

CURRENT RESIDENT
998 FOXHALL DR
ROCKWALL, TX 75087



LIFE SPRING CHURCH CLARK BRUCE A SHENNENDOAH REAL ESTATE PARTNERS
P O BOX 886 PO BOX 1473 PO BOX 941428
ROCKWALL, TX ROCKWALL, TX0 PLANO, TX
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Case No. Z2016-018: Breezy Hill Amendment to PD-74

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:

] tam in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.

+f am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below.

RD SRR e o m&ma\oknj ‘ot A Sollost
lols wowed be. 0D’ CF@( [ b Drves Builden
» bbwve alres 4 rme&k nhe ﬁ% le a{S N poc Jmpm\,t <
erts a_f\o] })J;i VU [os Jooul or INE. wr\ {)roper/}\j lues o
Name: oL 4 m\gjgﬂv ng)
Address: qaq p]@\S - V’W D—\ ?‘%&W)’W ?SDE‘Q_ N’\“

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed
change must receive, in order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body. The protest must be
written and signed by the owners of at least 20 percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the
lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed change and extending 200 feet from that area.

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE

Notice of Public Hearing = City of Rockwell « 385 South Goliad Strb@F Rockwall, TX 75087 « [P] (972) 771-7745% [£] (972) 771-7748



Case No. Z2016-018: Breezy Hill Amendment to PD-74
Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:
[11am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.

m am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below.

7 any  opposed 4o 1Cresgiag Sha g BNl A L O 5 T Beet

”c’f‘ld +o retain gJreen SPhceS ., 7 am a8t op/mef( Lo S J,le»,/sr»()

Z
or #h 0rigiaal pldnal dproiat. T todldi5est Bl 4o 3 ke s
green YPucc .

Mame: m‘k(‘l“u( {ASC‘S""“" ‘
Address: /o 20 jﬂLﬂ" CiLEST ?oc,‘Co\rq” DX ‘7;3"0?7

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed
change must receive, in order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body. The protest must be
written and signed by the owners of at least 20 percent

of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the
lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed change and extending 200 feet from that area.

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE

Notice of Public Hearing ¢ City of Rockwall « 385 South Goliad Street © Rockwall, TX 75087 « [P] (972) 771-7745%e [F] (972) 771-7748
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Case No. Z2016-018: Breezy Hill Amendment to PD-74
Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:

[J 1 am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.

3 ‘_-_‘——_\
3m opposed to the request for the rea@

“This vl dUp Our PPk uelae. tnd iag ot n e
ONaecl pppasel v T agreral to build Were, TV Jra ()
OF \oks cad houses, Thaas !

e MCAg\Q { Ra R\ ks
Address: @QQ\ QQ\M L\ @/’ - %f’(‘f ?:j \’JYLLC

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d
change must receive,

If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed
in order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body. The protest must be
written and signed by the owners of at least 20 percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the
lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed change and extending 200 feet from that area.

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE

Notice of Public Hearing = City of Rockwell = 385 South Goliad .Strf',ls:rngockon, TX 75087 « [P] (972) 771-7745¢ [F] (972) 771-7748



From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: FW: Zoning Changes
Date: Monday, June 06, 2016 8:36:21 AM

Fyi, I double checked to make sure 522 Limmerhill Drive was sent a notice, and one was
sent.

From: Chris Moore

Sent: Friday, June 03, 2016 8:55 AM
To: Planning

Subject: Zoning Changes

To Whom It May Concern:

This email is in regards to the proposed changes regarding the Breezy Hill plans to include a
section of smaller homes on smaller lots. I understand this will be discussed with the city
council on 6/20.

We just recently closed on a home in Breezy Hill and did not receive the form that was mailed
to homeowners. We are writing our objections/concerns here in lieu of the form.

We have been residents of the north part of Rockwall since 2008 and my wife has been a
teacher with RISD since 2002. When the plans for Breezy Hill were announced with larger
lots and more space we sold our home in the Castle Ridge subdivision to jump on the
opportunity. The driver to build in Breezy Hill was to have the opportunity to have more
space.

The north part of Rockwall has plenty of subdivisions with smaller homes and smaller lots
already including the new phase for Castle Ridge, Stone Creek, and Caruth Lakes. More
smaller lots and smaller homes is not needed.

The demand is there for larger homes and larger lots. If you look at the phase of Breezy Hill
that has the 100'X200' lots it is already almost completely sold out. The phases of Breezy Hill
with larger lots have been moving well. Stone Creek slowed down when the larger lots of
Breezy Hill opened up. These are factual observations not opinions.

I would argue that Rockwall would continue to benefit by having some balance and leaving
the Breezy Hilly plan alone to exclude smaller lots and smaller homes like is now being
proposed.

I am happy to discuss further and be involved in any way.
Regards,
Chris Moore

522 Limmerhill Dr
214-695-0401
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: Case Number 22016-018 BreezyHill
Date: Thursday, June 09, 2016 8:13:55 AM
From:

Sent: Wednesday, June 08, 2016 11:37 PM

To: Planning

Cc: nancycfontaine@yahoo.com
Subject: Case Number 22016-018 BreezyHill

To all members of the planning department, city council and Mayor of Rockwall,

My husband and I purchased our home in Breezy Hill last October, relocating from the state of
Michigan. One of the reasons we chose the area and sub division was due to the larger lot
sizes in Breezy Hill in relation to the size of lots elsewhere.

Needless to say we are opposed to the request of the developer to decrease lot sizes in the
upcoming phases of the sub division to 50 ' lots. We and others paid a premium price for our
homes based on the planned density of homes. A reduction in lot size would alter the density
and reduce property values.

We understand the developer requested smaller lots previously and was denied. We and the
neighbors of Breezy Hill are requesting the same outcome this time- a denial of the request.

Thank you,

Nancy and Norman Fontaine
805 Calm Crest Drive
Rockwall

TX

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: Case # 72016-018 Breezy Hill Amendment to PD-74
Date: Wednesday, June 08, 2016 8:29:20 AM

----- Original Message-----

From: Nancy Parkes

Sent: Tuesday, June 07, 2016 9:17 PM

To: Planning

Subject: Case # Z2016-018 Breezy Hill Amendment to PD-74

Please let this serve as my opposition to the above proposed zoning change.

Changing the zoning to allow smaller homes on smaller lots will decrease the value of neighborhood. This
neighborhood was built to be higher level and we have all paid a premium to have larger lots and many of the homes
have higher standard of fixtures and additions that were not given to homes on smaller lots. One cannot compare
the homes starting at 1700 square foot to the majority of homes in this neighborhood. Please do to allow the zoning
to change to include the smaller homes on the smaller lots. Allow this neighborhood to keep its premium quality as
we have all paid for it.

Nancy Parkes
214-945-4343
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From: Richard Jones

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: Proposed Zoning Change

Date: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 4:23:24 PM
Ryan,

I am a bit late to the game on this one. Ijust moved to Breezy Hill on June 2, 2016. I live at 3714 Drewsbury Dr. I
am going on record that I am apposed the zoning change that would allow single family lots and homes that do not
currently represent the homes both in lot size and square footage of the homes in the surrounding subdivisions.

72016-018: Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Jeff Parker of the Skorburg Company on
behalf of BH Balance IV, LLC for the approval of a zoning amendment to Planned Development District 74 (PD-
74) to amend the concept plan to allow for additional single-family residential lots and for the purpose of
incorporating changes to the development standards contained in Exhibit ‘C’ of Ordinance 14-26 for a 405.184-acre
tract of land identified as the Breezy Hill Subdivision and situated within the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187,
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located north of FM-552 and west of Breezy Hill Road, and take any
action necessary.

Case Manager
Ryan Miller, AICP

Meeting Dates

Planning & Zoning Commission Work Session: May 31, 2016
Planning & Zoning Commission: June 14, 2016

City Council [1st Reading]: June 20, 2016

City Council [2nd Reading]: July 5, 2016
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: z2016-18

Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 8:36:39 AM
----- Original Message-----

From: julie@teamsoftomorrow.com [mailto:julie@teamsoftomorrow.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 9:47 PM

To: Planning

Subject: z2016-18

Hello,

I am a homeowner of Breezy Hill. It has been brought to our attention that there is a potential for 50' lots in this
subdivision. I am writing you to let you know that I am against this being developed in our neighborhood. Having
this lot size will bring down the value of the homes. When we decided to build in Breezy Hill we were told lots
would be no less than 60'. T expect for things to not change as this would be misleading to all residents.

Thank you for your time,

Julie Bryan
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mailto:/O=CITY OF ROCKWALL/OU=RCK/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=PLANNING
mailto:RMiller@rockwall.com
mailto:julie@teamsoftomorrow.com

From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: FW: Case Z2016-018
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 8:35:30 AM

From: Julie Cavalli [mailto:Julie@juliecavallistudios.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 10:28 PM

To: Planning

Cc: Julie Cavalli

Subject: Case Z2016-018

To Whom it May Concern:

| am writing to you after attending the City Council meeting this evening where | voiced my opposition to
changes being made to Breezy Hill phase/section X which would make these lots into 50’ by 120’ lots. | feel
this would greatly change the look and feel of my neighborhood. When | moved into Breezy Hill they sold
me on the large lots and the openness of the development over that of its sister neighborhood Stone
Creek saying Breezy Hill is where you want to be if you want to get away from 0 lot lines and that
cramped, track home feel. Breezy Hill was sold to my husband and | as a custom build/ custom home
neighborhood. Allowing the developer to up and change the build parameters now after so many of us
have bought in to the open land, big lot “picture” is wrong, it is not what we were sold. | feel like having
this section of 50’ lots, with possibly greater smaller homes as low as 1800 sqft, with front facing garages
at what amounts to the front of the neighborhood, directly visible as you drive by from John King Blvd.,
would greatly cheapen the rest of our properties. When the developer is out and done selling and we are
left as a neighborhood, we will have to deal with those smaller homes everyday as viable comps in a real
estate capacity driving the price of my home down because it is a mere 4 streets over. | do not like that the
developer has not a care one for his original customer now that | am in. It seems to be he is only thinking
about what his pocket book needs now, not what would be good for the neighborhood or the people in it.
The lots should be no smaller that the original 60’ type A from the current PD development standards. If
truth be told, they really need to make larger lots and sell them at a premium. | have heard more people
say that there were not enough of the large lots available when they were trying to buy and had to settle
for a smaller one.

Julie

Julie Cavalli

721 Calm Crest Drive
Rockwall, TX 75087

www.juliecavalli ios.com
678-429-8321 mobile
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: FW: Z2016-18
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 8:32:46 AM

From: Lynn Jones [mailto:lynnandjournee@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 11:27 PM

To: Planning

Subject: Re: 72016-18

On Jun 14, 2016 11:26 PM, "Lynn Jones" <lynnandjournee@gmail.com> wrote:
Lynn Jones

1021 Ember Crest

Rockwall, TX 75087

I oppose to the developer building 50' foot lots. Thanks
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: Z2016-018

Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 8:33:04 AM
----- Original Message-----

From: Becky Ruddis [mailto:beckyruddis@verizon.net]
Sent: Tuesday, June 14,2016 11:13 PM

To: Planning
Subject: Z2016-018

We are opposed to developers request for 50' lots

Mark & Becky Ruddis
1018 Pleasant View Dr
Rockwall, TX 75087

Sent from my iPad
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: Subject: Z2016-018

Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 8:36:51 AM
----- Original Message-----

From: Tracy Riley [mailto:tracydriley(@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 9:32 PM

To: Planning
Subject: Subject: Z2016-018

Very opposed to small, 50' lots and small homes being built in Breezy Hill. This will bring our property values
down and is not in accordance with the development guidelines that brought and sold us on building in Breezy Hill.
This should NOT be approved.

Mike and Tracy Riley

4409 Seney Drive
Breezy Hill Phase 4
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: Z2016-018 (Breezy Hill) Opposed vote 50" lots
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 8:32:31 AM

----- Original Message-----

From: Eboney J. [mailto:tsm252 | @yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 11:53 PM

To: Planning
Subject: Z2016-018 (Breezy Hill) Opposed vote 50' lots
Hello,

I'm writing this email as a letter to oppose the development of 50' lots concerning the new zoning proposal in my
community.

Best Regards,
Terrence&Eboney Myers
610 Limmerhill Dr.

Rockwall, Texas 75087
Breezy Hill
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: FW: Z2016-018
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 8:36:08 AM

From: Wendeline Ortiz [mailto:wendelineortiz@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 9:57 PM

To: Planning

Subject: 72016-018

To Whom It May Concern

I am a resident of the Breezy Hill community, and I am OPPOSED to the proposal of
introducing smaller 50' lots.

When thinking of how fast Rockwall is growing, there needs to be effort in keeping certain
regions and the land value. Having been one of the first ~10 neighbors in this subdivision, it
was a big risk that we were given "promises" on the standard of neighborhood that we were
moving into.

Please, consider these letters and petitions to keep our neighborhood with the larger lots
(minimum 60' but would prefer larger). For people looking into smaller more affordable lots,
there are other development locations that can address new Rockwall neighbors' needs versus
a developer that will leave Rockeall when all is done and we cannot change what they leave
behind. These include the ones from D. R. Horton, Stoney Creek and others.

Thank you for your kind consideration.
Wendeline Ortiz

Breezy Hill Resident
821 Calm Crest Dr.
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: FW:
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 10:06:59 AM

From: Ronna Johnson [mailto:princes1975@hotmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 9:13 AM

To: Planning

Subject:

| am emailing to say we are opposed to the request of 50" lots. (subject Z2016-018)
This will cause too many of us to loose value in our current homes.

Thanks,
Geoff Chinn & Ronna Johnson-Chinn
1009 Ember Crest Dr
Rockwall, Tx 75087
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: Subject: Z2016-018

Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:10:54 PM
----- Original Message-----

From: Greg Williams [mailto:greg willi@yahoo.com]
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 11:47 AM

To: Planning
Subject: Subject: Z2016-018

Hello my name is Greg Williams and I live at 3602 Drewsbury Dr. in the Breezy Hill community. I travel a lot and I
am unable to attend the 6/20 meeting to discuss the proposal of the developer for the requested 50' lots. I strongly
oppose this request due to the promise I was given that the minimum lot size for this neighborhood would be 60'.
When purchasing a home you do everything you can to ensure your home value will remain the same or increase,
including paying very high HOA fees. To allow the developer/builders to build smaller home will only bring values
down. Please deny this request by the developer/builder.

Thank you,

Greg Williams
512-775-0420
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan
Subject: FW: Z2016-018
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 3:24:01 PM

From: Shannon Robson [mailto:mrssrobson@yahoo.com]
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 3:16 PM

To: Planning

Subject: 72016-018

| am opposed to 50' ot lines in the Breezy Hill Subdivision.
Shannon Robson

937 Pleasant View Drive
Rockwall, TX 75087
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: 72016-018

Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:11:01 PM
----- Original Message-----

From: Yoshika Rankin [mailto:ydrankin@gmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 11:09 AM

To: Planning
Subject: Z2016-018

To whom it may concern,

I oppose the developers request to add 50' lots to the Breezy Hill community as I feel it will impact values for the
homeowners within the community who purchased larger lots. Additionally this information was not disclosed to
the home buyers at any time during the sales process.

Sincerely,

Yoshika Rankin

713 Calm Crest Drive

Breezy Hill

Sent from my iPhone
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From: Planning

To: Miller, Ryan

Subject: FW: Z2016-018

Date: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:51:13 AM
----- Original Message-----

From: Jesse Griffith [mailto:agribankbiz@yahoo.com]
Sent: Thursday, June 16,2016 10:32 AM

To: Planning
Subject: Z2016-018

My name is Jesse Griffith, I live at 910 Pleasant View Dr. and I am opposed to the request for 50 foot lots.

Sent from my iPhone
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
ORDINANCE NO. 16-XX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
74 (PD-74) [ORDINANCE NO. 14-26] AND THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY AMENDING THE
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN AND THE DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS APPROVED WITH ORDINANCE NO. 14-26, BEING A
405.184-ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE J. STRICKLAND
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 187, T. R. BAILEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO.
30 AND THE J. SIMMONS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 190, CITY OF
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY
DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING
FOR AREPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE..

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by the Jeff Parker of the Skorburg Company on behalf
of Breezy Hill 405, LTD for an ‘amendment to the Planned Development Concept Plan and
Development Standards contained within Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) [specifically
contained within Ordinance No. 14-26] and the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] of
the City of Rockwall, for a 405.184-acre tract of land situated in the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract
No. 187, T. R. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 30 and the J. Simmons Survey, Abstract No. 190,
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which
hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of
the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the City
of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all persons
interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the governing body in
the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that Planned Development District 74
[Ordinance No. 14-26] and the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] should be
amended as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
TEXAS:

Section 1. That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in
Ordinance No. 09-19, 12-26 & 14-26;

Section 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes
authorized by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code
[Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by
granting this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future;

Section 3. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with the
Planned Development Concept Plan, described in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘B’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment Page 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
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approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;

Section 4. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with the
Development Standards, described in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the
amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;

Section 5. That a master parks and open space plan for the Property, prepared in accordance
with this ordinance and consistent with the Planned Development Concept Plan, (Open Space
Master Plan) shall be considered for approval by the City Council following recommendation of the
Parks and Recreation Board.

Section 6. That development of the Subject Property shall be in conformance with the schedule
listed below (except as set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals).

(a) The procedures set forth in the City’s subdivision regulations on the date this ordinance
is approved by the City, as amended by this ordinance (including Subsections 5(b)
through 5(f) below), shall be the exclusive procedures applicable to the subdivision and
platting of the Property.

(b) The following plans and plats shall be required in the order listed below (except as set
forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals). The City Council
shall act on an application for an Open Space Master Plan in accordance with the time
period specified in Section 212.009 of the Texas Local Government Code.

Open Space Master Plan

Master plat

PD development plans (required for retail areas only)
PD site plans

Preliminary plats

Final plats

oE LN =

(c) A Master Plat application covering all of the Subject Property, other than the area
designated on the Planned Development Concept Plan as Retail, shall be submitted
and shall identify each phase of development. No master plat application shall be
approved until the Open Space Master Plan for all of the Property has been approved;
however, the Open Space Master Plan may be processed by the City concurrently with
the master plat application.

(d) A PD Development Plan must be approved for the area designated on the Concept Plan
as Retail prior to submittal of a PD Site Plan application and/or a preliminary plat
application. No master plat is required for the area designated on the Concept Plan as
Retail. A traffic impact analysis for the retail tract shall be submitted with the PD
Development Plan to determine the extent and timing of any recommended facilities
and/or improvements to the surrounding roadway network. The traffic impact analysis
may be updated with each PD Site Plan for the retail tract.

(e) A preliminary plat application shall be submitted for each phase of residential
development. A PD Site Plan application, including a site plan application for
improvements for parkland or trails, may be processed by the City concurrently with a
preliminary plat application for that phase of the development.

(f) A Capital Facilities Agreement in the form of Exhibit ‘D’, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘D’, shall be executed by Developer
providing for delivery of adequate public facilities and services within the District.

Section 7. That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine
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not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and every
day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense;

Section 8. That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason judged
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance
or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, corporation
or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of the Unified
Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this
ordinance are declared to be severable;

Section 9. The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between this
ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City Code,
ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that is different
from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or other
standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified Development
Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits hereto are those in
effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City Council of the City of
Rockwall, Texas;

Section 10. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and the
publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides;

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS,
THIS THE 5™ DAY OF JULY, 2016.

Jim Pruitt, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kristy Cole, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney

1% Reading:  June 20, 2016

2" Reading: July 5, 2016

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment Page 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 16-XX;

160



Exhibit ‘A’:
Legal Description

ALL THAT CERTAIN TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING SITUATED IN PARTS
OF THE J. STRICKLAND SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 187, T. R. BAILEY SURVEY,
ABSTRACT NUMBER 30 AND THE J. SIMMONS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 190 OF
ROCKWALL COUNTY, AND BEING THAT TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO W.W. CARUTH, JR.
ACCORDING TO THE DOCUMENT FILED OF RECORD IN VOLUME 66, PAGE 493, DEED
RECORDS OF ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS (D.R.R.C.T.) ALSO A PORTION OF THE J.
STRICKLAND SURVEY, ABSTRACT 794+3 LYING IN COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT TRACT
OF LAND CONVEYED TO MABEL CARUTH ACCORDING TO THE FILE OF RECORD IN
COUNTY CLERK FILE NUMBER 92-0054539 OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID TRACT BEING
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A 1/2" IRON ROD FOUND AT THE BASE OF A CORNER POST, SAID IRON
ROD BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF A 1RACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN DEED TO
DONG WON KANG RECORDED IN VOLUME 4703, PAGE 1402, D.R.R.C.T., AND SAME (BEING
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT "ONE" AS SHOWN HEREON;

THENCE NORTH 89°21'28" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2077.92 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON ROD FOUND
FOR A CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE SOUTH 00°01'37" EAST, GENERALLY ALONG THE CENTER OF A GRAVEL ROAD, A
DISTANCE OF 1274.60 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED
"CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR/ CORNER FOR A CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE SOUTH 89°19'07" EAST, GENERALLY ALONG THE CENTER OF A GRAVEL ROAD, A
DISTANCE OF 686.18 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED
"CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR CORNER FOR A CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE SOUTH 00'42'37" EAST, ALONG THE CENTER OF BREEZY HILLS ROAD, A
DISTANCE OF 4777.93 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED
"CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR CORNER IN THE NORTH LINE OF F.M. HIGHWAY 552, FOR
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE SOUTH 89°20'36" WEST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID F.M. HIGHWAY, A
DISTANCE OF 1887.13 FEET, TO A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED
"CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR CORNER IN A ENTRYWAY OF A RANCH ROAD, FOR THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE NORTH 00°31'43"WEST, GENERALLY ALONG THE CENTER OF SAID RANCH ROAD,
PASSING AT ADISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET A 1/2"IRON ROD FOUND ON THE WEST LINE OF
THIS TRACT AND CONTINUING A TOTAL DISTANCE OF J593.55 FEET TO A S/S" IRON ROD
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR CORNER FOR A
CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE SOUTH S9°15'47" WEST, A DISTANCE OF S03.29 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR CORNER FOR A CORNER
OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE NORTH 01"31'06" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1189.10 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD
FOUND AT THE BASE OF A CORNER POST, FOR A CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE SOUTH 88°05'58" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1546.66 FEET TO A 3/8" IRON ROD
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Exhibit ‘A’:
Legal Description

FOUND FOR A CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE NORTH 00°47'14" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1067.53 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR CORNER FOR A CORNER
OF THIS TRACT,

THENCE NORTH 88°33'50" E, A DISTANCE OF 748.00 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR CORNER FOR A CORNER
OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE NORTH 00°45'11" W, A DISTANCE OF 2243.67 FEET TO A 5/S" IRON ROD WITH
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "CARTER BURGESS" SET FOR CORNER FOR A CORNER
OF THIS TRACT;

THENCE NORTH 89°21'28" E, A DISTANCE OF 754.93 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,
AND CONTAINING 405.184 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS.

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment Page 5 City of Rockwall, Texas
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TEXT TO BE ADDED TO THE ORDINANCE
TEXT TO BE REMOVED FROM-THE ORDINANCE

A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Uses Allowed. The following uses are permitted for the Property.

a. Residential uses. Uses permitted of right or by special use permit for the (SF-10) Single
Family Residential District, as set forth in Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the City of
Rockwall Unified Development Code, shall be allowed for areas designated as Single-
Family on the Concept Plan, subject to approval of a Special Use Permit if required by
the SF-10 District Regulations.

Non-residential uses. Non-residential uses shall be allowed only within the area

designated as Retail on the approved Concept Plan for the District, and are limited to

those uses permitted of right or by special use permit for the (GR) General Retail District

subject to approval of a PD Development Plan and PD Site Plan in accordance with the

Planned Development District regulations, Article X, Section 2 of the Unified

Development Code, and subject to approval of a Special Use Permit if required by the

GR District Regulations; provided, however, that the following uses are expressly

prohibited:

M Animal Hospital, Clinic

™ Convent or Monastery

® Hotel or Motel

™M Hotel, Residence

@ Cemetery/Mausoleum

M Mortuary of Funeral Chapel

™ Social Service Provider

™ Billiard Parlor or Pool Hall

™ Carnival, Circus, or Amusement Ride

¥ Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outside)

™ Gun Club, Skeet or Target Range (indoor)

™ Astrologer, Hypnotist, or Psychic Art and Science

™ Garden Supply/Plant Nursery

™ Night Club, Discotheque, or Dance Hall

™ Secondhand Dealer

™ Car Wash, Self Service*

™ Service Station*

¥ Mining and Extraction (Sand, Gravel, Qil & other)

M Helipad

M Railroad Yard or Shop

M Transit Passenger Facility

* Not including a convenience store with an accessory car wash use or more than four (4) gas pumps,

which accessory uses are permitted by SUP.

The following additional use shall be permitted of right in the PD District:

M Grocery Store with a maximum building area of one hundred and thirty thousand (130,000) square

feet.

Design of non-residential uses. The retail area shall be designed to be pedestrian-

oriented and easily accessible to adjacent residential neighborhoods. Additionally, the

retail area shall be designed and constructed to be integrated with adjacent uses, not

separated from them by screening walls or other physical barriers. This will be

accomplished by creating paths from adjacent development into the retail area and
Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment Page 7 City of Rockwall, Texas
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through the use of landscaping buffers, building design and other urban design elements
to create compatibility with the surrounding residential neighborhood.

d. Density and lot composition. If the retail develops in accordance with the attached
Concept Plan, no more than Z42 789 single-family residential dwelling units may be
constructed within the Property. Except as provided in subsection (e), single-family
residential units shall be allocated by product type in accordance with the following table:

Table 1: Lot Composition

Lot Type L_o t_Size I__o_t SF Driveway Total Units D\;«rlce,;tlai:\g
Minimum Minimum Access Units (%)
A 60’ x 120 7,200 Front 206 2780 26.11%
B 70’ x 120 8,400 Front 112 15-10 14.20%
C 80’ x 125’ 10,000 Front 326 43.90 41.32%
D 100’ x 200’ 20,000 Front 98 1320 12.42%
E 50’ x 120’ 6,000 Front 47 5.96%
AVERAGE LOT SIZE: 10,000
MAXIMUM ALLOWED TOTAL UNITS: 742 789 100%

e. Variation in lot composition. The allocation of single-family dwellings among lot types
may deviate from that in subsection (d), provided that the maximum allowed total
dwelling units does not exceed Z42 789 units, the average lot size for the development is
not less than 10,000 sq. ft., and the following rules are met:

(1) Lot types “A & B” may increase not more than 5% in aggregate number.

(2) Lot type “C” shall not be decreased below 42% 41.32% of the total #42 789 lots.
(3) Lot Type “D” shall not be decreased below 98 of the total lots.

(4) Lot Type “E” shall not increase above 47 of the total lots.

2. Development Standards Applicable. Except as may be modified by these Development
Standards, residential uses shall be subject to the development standards for a (SF-10)
Single Family Residential District, as set forth in Article V; District Development Standards
for Section 3.4 of the City of Rockwall ‘Unified Development Code; to the development
standards in the 205 Bypass Overlay District; and to all supplemental standards contained in
the Unified Development Code, including but not limited to the tree preservation regulations
in the Unified Development Code.

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment Page 8 City of Rockwall, Texas
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B. SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS
1. Dimensional Standards for Residential Uses

Table 2: Lot Type Matrix

Lot Types A B C D E
Maximum Building Height 36’ 36’ 36’ 36’ 36’
Minimum Air Conditioned Square Footage 2,200 2,400 2,600% 3,000 1,800
Minimum Front Yard Building Setback 20" 20’ 20 40° 15"
Minimum Rear Yard Building Setback 10° 10° 15’ 15’ 10’
Minimum Side Yard (/nterior) 5 5 6’ 7 5’
Minimum Side Yard Adjacent to a Street 15° 15° 15’ 15’ 15’
t/li%n;;num Distance of Driveway (from Property 20" 20’ 20’ 40 20°
Minimum Lot Area (Square Feet) 7,200 8,400 10,000 20,000 6,000
Minimum Lot Frontage ' 60’ 70’ 80’ 100’ 50’
Notes:

" Lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may be reduced by twenty percent (20%) in

lot width measured at the front property line provided that the lot width will be met at the front building line.
Additionally, the lot depth on lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may be reduced
by up to 10 percent (10%) but shall meet the minimum lot size for each lot type as referenced within Table 1.

2

3

: A maximum of 20% of the lots may have homes not less than 2,500 sq. ft.

: The Director of Planning or his designee may grant a reduction in the required 40-foot front yard building

setback of up to five (5) feet for lots situated along cul-de-sacs or curvilinear streets, or where a 40-foot front
yard building setback would create an undue hardship on the property.

a. Detached Single Family Lot Type A

Development Standards

: Front porch may encroach to within 10-feet of the front property line.

Development Standards for Residential Uses by Lot Product/Type

Minimum Lot Size

Minimum Lot Width (@ Front Building Line)
Minimum Lot Depth

Minimum Lot Width (Corner Lot)

Minimum Side Yard Setback

Minimum Front Yard Building Setback
Minimum Rear Yard Building Setback
Minimum Air Conditioned Square Footage
Minimum Roof Pitch

Minimum Masonry Requirement

[Brick, Stone, Cultured Stone, 3-Part Stucco]

Garage Orientation

Maximum Lot Coverage

7,200 SF

60’

110’

65’

5

20’

10°

2,200 SF

8:12 Except for 4:12 on Porch Roofs

80%

Garages will be allowed to have the garage
accessed from the street using traditional
“swing” or “J” drive. Second single garage
door facing street is permitted behind (width)
of double garage door in “swing” or “J”
configuration only. A minimum of 33% of
Type ‘A’ lots shall have 3-car garages.

65%

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment
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b. Detached Single Family Lot Type B

Development Standards

Minimum Lot Size

Minimum Lot Width (@ Front Building Line)
Minimum Lot/Depth

Minimum Lot Width (Corner Lot)

Minimum Side Yard Setback

Minimum Front Yard Building Setback
Minimum Rear Yard Building Setback
Minimum Air Conditioned Square Footage
Minimum Roof Pitch

Minimum Masonry Requirement

[Brick, Stone, Cultured Stone, 3-Part Stucco]

Garage Orientation

Maximum Lot Coverage

8,400 SF

70’

120°

75

5

20’

10°

2,400 SF

8:12 Except for 4:12 on Porch Roofs

80%

Garages will be allowed to have the garage
accessed from the street using traditional
“swing” or “J” drives. Second single garage
door facing street is permitted behind (width)
of double garage door in “swing” or “J”
configuration only. A minimum of 33% of
Type ‘B’ lots shall have 3 car garages.

65%

c. Detached Single Family Lot Type C

Development Standards

Minimum Lot Size

Minimum Lot Width (@ Front Building Line)
Minimum Lot Depth

Minimum Lot Width (Corner Lot)

Minimum Side Yard Setback

Minimum Front Yard Building Setback
Minimum Rear Yard Building Setback
Minimum Air Conditioned Square Footage
Minimum Roof Pitch

Minimum Masonry Requirement

[Brick, Stone, Cultured Stone, 3-Part Stucco]

Garage Orientation

Maximum Lot Coverage

10,000 SF

80’

125’

85

6

20’

15’

2,600 SF '

8:12 Except for 4:12 on Porch Roofs

80%

Traditional “swing” or “J” drive required.
Second single garage door facing street is
permitted behind (width) of double garage
door in “swing” or “J” configuration only. A
minimum of 80% of Type ‘C’ lots shall have 3
car garages.

65%

Notes:

': A maximum of 20% of the lots may have homes not less than 2,500 sq. ft.

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment
Ordinance No. 16-XX;

Page 10 City of Rockwall, Texas

167



Exhibit ‘C’:

PD Development Standards

d. Detached Single Family Lot Type D

Development Standards

Minimum Lot Size

Minimum Lot Width (@ Front Building Line)
Minimum Lot/Depth

Minimum Lot Width (Corner Lot)

Minimum Side Yard Setback

Minimum Front Yard Building Setback
Minimum Rear Yard Building Setback
Minimum Air Conditioned Square Footage
Minimum Roof Pitch

Minimum Masonry Requirement

[Brick, Stone, Cultured Stone, 3-Part Stucco]

Garage Orientation

Maximum Lot Coverage

20,000 SE

100’

175’

100’

7

40"

15

3,000 SF

8:12 Except for 4:12 on Porch Roofs

80%

Traditional “swing” or “J” drive required.
Single garage door facing street is permitted
behind (width) of double garage door in
“swing” or “J” configuration only. 80% of
Type D lots shall have @ minimum of 3 car
garages.

70%

Notes:

' The Director of Planning or his designee may grant a reduction in the required 40-foot front yard
building setback of up to five (5) feet for lots situated along cul-de-sacs or curvilinear streets, or where a
40-foot front yard building setback would create an undue hardship on the property.

e. Detached Single Family Lot Type E

Development Standards

Minimum Lot Size

Minimum Lot Width (@ Front Building
Line)

Minimum Lot Depth

Minimum Lot Width (Corner Lot)
Minimum Side Yard Setback

Minimum Front Yard Building Setback
Minimum Rear Yard Building Setback
Minimum Air Conditioned Square Footage
Minimum Roof Pitch

Minimum Masonry Requirement
[Brick, Stone, Cultured Stone, 3-Part
Stucco]

Garage Orientation

Maximum Lot Coverage

6,000 SF
50’

110’

55’

5!

15’

10’

1,800 SF

8:12 Except for 4:12 on Porch Roofs

80%

Garages will be allowed to be accessed
from the street; however a minimum
driveway length of 20-ft must be provided
75%

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment
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3. Fencing. Allindividual residential fencing for lots less than 20,000 square feet shall be cedar
standard fencing material (minimum %" thickness) or better (spruce fencing will not be
allowed). All cedar pickets shall be placed on the “public side” facing the street, alley or
neighboring property. Lots containing 20,000 sq. ft., lots located along perimeter roadways,
and lots abutting open spaces, greenbelts and parks shall be required to install tubular steel
fencing. Corner lot fencing (adjacent to the street) shall provide masonry columns at forty-
five feet (45’) off center spacing that begins at the rear property line corner and terminates
ten feet (10’) behind the front yard building setback line. A maximum six (6’) foot solid board
on board “panel” cedar fencing shall be allowed between the masonry columns along the
side and/or rear yard lot adjacent to a street. In addition, the fencing shall be setback from
the side property line adjacent to a street a minimum of five feet (5’). The property owner
shall maintain that portion of the property outside the fence.

4. Anti-Monotony Features. Lot types shall incorporate the following elevation features.

Table 3 : Anti-Monotony Matrix

Lot Type Lot Size (Approx.) Elevation Features
A 60’ x 120’ i., ii., iii.
B 70 x 120° i., ii., iii.
C 80’ x 125’ i., ii., iii.
D 100’ x 200’ i, ii., iii.
E 50’ 120’ i., ii.

i. —Exterior facade must be composed of eighty percent (80%) masonry (brick, stone,
cultured stone, or three-part stucco). Identical brick blends may not occur to adjacent
(side-by-side) properties. Elevations shall not repeat along the fronting or siding
streetscape without at least four (4) intervening homes of sufficient dissimilarity (to be
determined by the ARC) on the same side of the street and (2) intervening homes on the
opposite side of the street). The rear elevation of homes backing to open spaces or
thoroughfares shall not repeat without at least two (2) intervening homes of sufficient
dissimilarity (to be determined by the ARC). Masonry (brick, stone, cultured stone, or
three-part stucco) chimneys shall be required on all homes.

ii. Minimum of 8:12 roof pitch, except for 4:12 roof pitches on porches. For each phase, a
maximum of four compatible roof colors may be used. Dimensional shingles shall be
used: Crown molding will be installed in all living and family rooms, unless vaulted or
pop-up ceilings are utilized. No Formica counters in kitchens and bathrooms, no blown
acoustic ceilings. No vinyl flooring will be used in kitchens.

ii. For front entry driveway access a traditional “swing” or “J” drive will be used. Second
single garage door facing street is permitted behind (width) of double garage door in
“swing” or “J” configuration only.

5./ Streetscape Landscape. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, yards for all single-
family lots in the District shall be landscaped with large canopy trees.

(1) Two minimum three (3) inch trees measured six (6) inches above the root ball shall
be planted in the front yard of an interior lot.

(2)  Two minimum three (3) inch trees measured six (6) inches above the root ball shall be
planted in the front yard of a corner lot and two additional trees of same caliper shall
be planted in the side yard facing the street.

(3) For purposes of this section only, the term “front yard” includes the area within the
dedicated right-of-way for a parkway immediately adjoining the front yard of the lot.

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment Page 12 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 16-XX;

169



Exhibit ‘C’:
PD Development Standards

6. Master Design Guidelines. Additional design guidelines specific to each phase of
development that shall apply to all single-family dwellings units within that phase of
development, shall be submitted to the City prior to issuance of any building permits for that
portion of the development.

C. STANDARDS FOR DISTRICT DESIGN AND CONNECTIVITY

1. Streetscape Standards for Collectors & Non-Fronting Thoroughfares. All streets, excluding
drives, fire lanes and private parking areas, shall be built according to City of Rockwall street
standards. Sidewalks and Hike / Bike trails are to be placed according to city requirements
and as set forth in the Open Space Master Plan for the District.

a.

Buffer-Strip and Sidewalks (John King Boulevard Overlay District). The landscape buffer
strip along John King Blvd shall be as described in the City of Rockwall Unified
Development Code, Article V (District Development Standards), Section 6.10 E
(Landscape Standards) and be a minimum width of fifty (50) feet as shown on the
Planned Development Concept Plan in Exhibit ‘B’. Additionally, the developer shall
construct a minimum of a ten (10) foot sidewalk, on both sides of John King Boulevard,
within the fifty (50) foot landscape buffer strip as recommended by the John King
Boulevard Design Concept Plan located in the Comprehensive Plan of the City of
Rockwall.

Buffer-Strip (FM 552). A landscape buffer strip with a minimum width of fifteen (15) feet
shall be provided along the frontage of FM 552, and shall be landscaped with at least
one canopy tree per 30-ft and a combination of berms and shrubbery to be reviewed with
the PD Site Plan(s) for the retail tract.

Buffer-Strip (Breezy Hill) Retail. The minimum buffer width between the proposed retail
area and Breezy Hill Rd shall be fifty (50) feet, and shall include a berm with a minimum
height of five (5) feet with at least three (3) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees per
100-ft of frontage. A detail of this landscape buffer shall be approved by the Planning
and Zoning Commission and City Council at the time of PD Development Plan for the
retail tract.

Buffer-Strip (Breezy Hill) Residential. A landscape buffer strip with a minimum width of
ten (10) feet shall be provided between any residential area and Breezy Hill Rd.
Irrigation. Any irrigation installed in landscape areas and public parks must be designed
by a Texas licensed irrigator or landscape architect.

Fencing. The Association will maintain all common area and perimeter fencing
surrounding the Property. Such perimeter fencing shall be composed of six foot (6’) tall
tubular steel fencing with masonry entry features or such other fencing as may be
approved by the City at the time of platting. Perimeter screening may also be
accomplished by earthen berms landscaped with living screening. Property owners will
maintain all fences constructed on private property.

Curvilinear Walks. Walks are to be a minimum of five feet (5’) wide to six feet (6’)
maximum width (hike and bike trail) consistent with the approved Open Space Master
Plan. “Collector streets” with or without center medians may incorporate sidewalks six
feet (6’) in width adjacent to or within “front yard” landscape easements. Walks may
meander within parkway and common area; however, edge of walk shall be no closer
than four feet (4’) from back-of-curb.

Medians. Any proposed median openings shall meet the City standards at the time of PD
site plan approval.

2. Lighting. Light poles shall not exceed twenty feet (20’) in height. All light fixtures shall direct
light downward and be contained to the site.

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment Page 13 City of Rockwall, Texas
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3. Sidewalks. At a minimum, sidewalks located on lay down curb section streets shall begin
four feet (4’) behind the back of curb and be five feet (5°) in overall width. Sidewalks will not
be required on rural street sections.

4. Curbing. Within certain lot types “A, B, & C” “roll up, lay down curbing” may be incorporated
in an effort to minimize frequent curb cuts and maximize streetscape continuity, as approved
by the City of Rockwall (Engineering Department) with approval of the final plat application.

5. Buried Utilities. New distribution power-lines required to serve the Property shall be placed
underground, whether such lines are located internally or along the perimeter of the
Property, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council. New transmission power-lines, or
distribution lines of a size not typically or cost effectively placed underground (3 phase lines),
or additional lines that are added to existing poles, may be above ground, if located along
the perimeter of the Property, except along the 205 Bypass. Additionally, if such above
ground lines are installed along the perimeter of the property and adjacent to non-residential
use, then the lines shall be installed behind the non-residential buildings where the
installation is possible. The Developer shall not be required to re-locate existing overhead
power-lines along the perimeter of the Property. Temporary power-lines constructed across
undeveloped portions of the Property to facilitate development phasing and looping may be
allowed above ground, but shall not be considered “existing lines” at the time the area is
developed, and if they are to become permanent facilities, such lines shall be placed
underground pursuant to this paragraph.

6. Parks and Open Space.

a. Residential and retail acreages (net of right-of-way dedication) shall contain no less than
20% open space and.

b. Allowable open space may include but is not limited to 50% of floodplain, amenity center,
public or private parks, trails, natural areas, buffers, traffic circle medians, entry features,
common areas (including any Association recreation center or similar facilities) and other
features depicted on the Development Plan, as set forth in the Open Space Master Plan
prepared in accordance with subparagraph (c) below. Street right of way will not be
included as open space. At least 80% of the single-family dwellings within the
development shall be located within eight hundred feet (800’) of public or private open
space. In order to qualify, such open space must be at least one (1) continuous acre in
area, not including roadway buffers less than fifty (50°) feet in width.

c. The Developer shall prepare the Open Space Master Plan to be consistent with the
approved Development Plan. The purpose of an Open Space Master Plan is to
supplement the Development Plan by providing an additional level of detail for public and
private open space areas. The Open Space Master Plan shall identify the locations of
and improvements to public parks, and other public and private open space or common
areas and shall illustrate an integral system of trail improvements that, together with
intervening land held by other property owners or the City, is designed to connect
residential areas, schools and retail areas within the District to parks and open space
within the District and that provides for continuation and connection of the trail system to
off-site parks and open space, in accordance with the City’'s Master Park and Recreation
Plan. The Open Space Master Plan shall clearly differentiate public parks from private
facilities and common lands to be maintained by the Association. The locations of public
parks, school sites and other public and private open space or common areas shown on
the Open Space Master Plan shall be in conformance with the Development Plan. The
Open Space Master Plan shall include a phasing plan for construction of all trails, parks,
common open space and facilities. The Open Space Master Plan shall be considered for
approval if it complies with this section, the applicable City regulations, the Development
Plan, and generally accepted park-planning practices.

d. The District shall contain not less than eleven (11) acres of land to be used as public or
private parkland. A minimum of eleven (11) contiguous acres shall be dedicated to the
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City in accordance with the City’s Neighborhood Parkland Dedication Ordinance on
approval of the final plats for those phases adjacent to or abutting the proposed parkland
dedication and will provide access to said parkland area. The remaining parkland area
will be retained as a private park within the District. Park improvements shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved Open Space Master Plan. The site plan
incorporating the design of park improvements and hike/bike trail improvements shall be
considered for approval with the final plat for the phase of the development containing
such improvements. Performance of the obligations in this subparagraph shall be
deemed to fully satisfy the City’s Neighborhood Parkland Dedication Ordinance
regarding land dedication. At the time of recordation of final plats for each phase, the
Developer shall pay park improvement fees to the City. These fees shall be held in an
escrow account until the parkland is dedicated to the City, at which time the Developer
shall inform the City if the Developer wishes to use the escrowed fees as well as future
fees to construct park improvements. Prior to construction, said improvements shall be
approved by Parks Director, approval not to be unreasonably withheld, and invoices for
improvements shall be submitted to Parks Director for approval. Performance of the
obligations in this subparagraph shall be deemed to fully satisfy the City’s Neighborhood
Parkland Dedication Ordinance regarding park development fees, provided that park
improvements are installed at a value equal or exceeding the value of park improvement
fees for the entire District applicable at that time, or improvement fees are paid.
Thereafter, the Developer shall not be responsible for additional parkland dedication or
park development fees associated with the Property, except as otherwise may be
provided in a capital facilities agreement approved by the City.

7. Developer shall provide a minimum of one (1) retention pond in the District with hard edges
and fountain features. The exact configuration and location of the ponds will be determined
at development. All retention pond hardedges shall be similar to the hardedge shown on
Figure 1 (below).

KA N

e -

lgure 1: Retention Pond with Halrdedge.

8. Signage. Permanent subdivision identification signage shall be permitted at all major entry
points, in general conformance to the signage shown in Figure 2 & 3 (below). Final design of
entry features to be determined with the Planned Development Site Plan.

Z2016-018: PD-74 Amendment Page 15 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 16-XX;

172



Exhibit ‘C’:
PD Development Standards

Nain Entry
PLAN

i

Figure 2: Example of Subdivision Signage Locations

Main Entry
SECTION

s Illlri‘l“
Figure 3: Example of Subdivision Signage Design Standard

9. Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval set forth in the Unified
Development Code shall apply to any application for variances to this ordinance.

10. Amenity Center. Site plan, landscape plan and building elevations for the Amenity Center
shall be approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission prior to construction.

11. Trees. All trees planted within the District shall be a minimum three (3) inch caliper
measured six (6) inches above the root ball.
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EXHIBIT ‘D’: CAPITAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT FOR BREEZY HILL

THIS CAPITAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is by and among the
Breezy Hill 405, Ltd, ("Breezy" or "Developer") and the City of Rockwall, Texas ("City" or
"Rockwall ),

I. RECITALS

1. Breezy seeks to rezone and subdivide the Property for single-family residential
use and certain commercial uses. Breezy shall submit an application to rezone
the 405 acres north of FM-552 (the "Property") as a planned development (PD)
district for a development currently known as Breezy Hill (the "PD District"),

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and mutual
covenants contained herein, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

Il. ADEQUATE PUBLIC FACILITIES
1. General Provisions.

a. Adequacy Required. Development of the Property shall be supported with
adequate levels of public facilites and services, Adequate facilities and
services are those that (i) comply with the applicable City regulations,
including this _Agreement, and (ii) are consistent with generally accepted
engineering and planning practices for similar developments, The Parties
agree that the dedication and construction of public improvements, or the
contribution of proportionate development fees, required to support
development of the Property shall precede or be concurrent with the
construction of private improvements to the land, in accordance with the
phasing provisions incorporated within this section, or as otherwise may be
provided through approval of a master plat.

b. Proportionality. The Parties agree that the dedication or construction of public
improvements, or the contributions of development fees, provided for in this
Agreement are roughly proportional to the nature and extent of the proposed
development of the Property on the City's public facilities systems. Breezy
hereby covenants not to sue the City for any claim, or otherwise consent to
participate in any action against the City arising from any claim by such party
or by its affiliates, alleging that application of the adequate facilities
requirements set forth in this Part Il of the Agreement to the development of
the Property, or the imposition of conditions to a plat application for a portion
of the Property that are consistent with the requirements of this section, are
not roughly proportional to the impacts of the development depicted in the
Concept Plan, including but not limited to any action premised upon Tex. Loc.
Gov't Code sec. 212.904 or successor statute. Such covenant not to sue
touches and concerns the Property, and is a covenant running with the land
such that it binds successors-in-interest and assigns of Breezy. Should any
successor-in-interest or assign of Breezy other than an affiliate of Breezy
assert any of the foregoing claims in a court of competent jurisdiction, in
violation of this Subsection 1 (b), with respect to the development of any
portion of the Property, the Parties agree that, with respect to such portion of
the Property or all of the Property, at the City's option, this Agreement
thereupon shall become null and void and any rights that may otherwise have

%
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EXHIBIT ‘D’: CAPITAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT FOR BREEZY HILL

vested under then existing state law shall be waived upon such event. Breezy
further agrees that the City may expressly rely upon the provisions of this
paragraph in any certification under section 212.904 and that a court in
determining rough proportionality may consider all of the Property. Should
Breezy or an affiliate of Breezy violate the covenant not to sue contained in
this paragraph, the City may either enforce the covenant or pursue the
remedies provided for herein that are applicable to successors or assigns,
other than affiliates. As used in this Agreement, the term "affiliate" means any
person, corporation, partnership, or other entity controlled by, controlling, or
under common control with Breezy.

c. No Wajver. The requirements in this Part || shall be considered additional
standards and conditions applicable to development within the PD District.
Except in the event of a conflict between the standards in this Agreement and
other standards applicable within the District, nothing in this Agreement shall
be construed as superseding any requirement or standard in the City's
subdivision or utility ‘regulations relating to provision of adequate public
facilities and services.

. Wastewater Services.

a. City as Provider. The City shall be the supplier of wastewater services to the
Property.

b. Line Extensions. The Developer shall extend wastewater mains sufficient to
serve each phase of development within the PD District, sized in accordance
with the City's master plan for wastewater facilities and constructed in
accordance with the phasing schedule approved in conjunction with the
Developer's master plat application. The Developer shall design and
construct a [ift station in order to serve the development within the PD District.
The Developer shall be entitled to pro-rata fees for the costs of aver-sizing
the lift station from other future developments using the lift station, calculated
on a per acreage basis. Developer also shall be eligible for credits against,
wastewater impact fees otherwise due for construction of improvements
identified and included in the City's wastewater improvements plan for impact
fees, in accordance with the City's then existing impact fee regulations.
Provisions for City participation in oversize costs, rebate of pro-rata fees or
provision of impact fee credits shall be set forth in a facilties and
reimbursement agreement between the Developer and the City.

c. Payment of Impact Fees. Wastewater impact fees shall be paid at rates and
at the times provided for in the City's then existing impact fee regulations.

. Water Services
a. City as provider. The City shall be the supplier of water services to the
Property. The City represents that it has sufficient capacity to serve the
Property.

b. Line Extensions. The Developer shall extend water mains sufficient to serve
each phase of development within the PD District, sized in accordance with

“{70
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the City's master plan for water facilities and constructed in accordance with
the phasing schedule approved in conjunction with the Developer's master
plat application. The Developer shall be eligible for City participation in the
costs of over-sizing water distribution mains or appurtenances that serve
other land in addition to the Property, in accordance with the City's standard
policies, or for collection of pro-rata fees for such facilities. Developer also
shall be eligible for credits against, water impact fees otherwise due for
construction of improvements identified and included in the City's water
improvements plan for impact fees, in accordance with the City's then
existing impact fee regulations. Provisions for City participation in oversize
costs, rebate of pro rata fees or provision of impact fee credits shall be set
forth in a facilities and reimbursement agreement between the' Developer
and the City.

¢. Payment of Impact Fees. Water impact fees shall be paid at rates and at the
times provided for in the City's then existing impact fee regulations.

4. Road Improvements. The Developer shall make the following road
improvements.

a. John King Boulevard (Highway 205 Bypass). The Developer shall have no
obligation with- respect to construction of John King Blvd. other than as
outlined herein regarding payment of road impact fees.

b. FM-552 Improvements. The Developer shall dedicate rights-of-way for and
construct turn lanes and acceleration/deceleration lanes concurrent with
construction of any road on the Property that intersects FM 552, in
accordance with City and TXDOT standards and specifications at the time of
development of adjoining property.

c. Breezy Hill Road Improvements. The Developer shall dedicate a minimum of
twenty-five feet (25') of right-of-way or such right-of-way as is needed to
construct a twenty-four foot (24') concrete rural section of Breezy Hill Road
and appurtenances adjacent to the Property, together with a two-foot (2')
asphalt or concrete shoulder on either side of the concrete section, the total
not to exceed twenty-eight feet (28') in width, from the northern point of
Breezy Hill Road adjacent to the Property, to FM-552, as shown on the
Development Plan. The Developer also shall dedicate and improve a
minimum landscape buffer of ten feet (10') for the residential tract and fifty
feet (50) for the retail tract, adjacent to the right-of-way for Breezy Hill Road,
designed in accordance with the requirements of a PD District then in effect
for a rural collector. The bar ditch that abuts the buffer strip, designed to a
maximum slope of 3: 1, shall not encroach into the required ten-foot or fifty-
foot buffer area, except to the extent that the buffers exceed ten feet (10) in
width. The Developer shall dedicate right-of-way for Breezy Hill Road and the
landscape buffer at the time of final plat approval for any lot abutting Breezy
Hill Road. Developer shall construct Breezy Hill Road in conjunction with the
retail tract that is final platted adjacent to Breezy Hill Road. Breezy Hill Road
will be constructed from the northernmost intersection created by any portion
of the retail tract being platted, south to FM-552. Developer shall install any

Q-
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needed expansion of existing culverts created by such construction or the
development, of such retail tract.

d. Payment of Roadway Impact Fees. Roadway impact fees shall be paid at
rates and at the times provided for in the City's then existing impact fee
regulations. Construction costs incurred by Developer for roadway
improvements in this Agreement that are included in the City's roadway
improvements plan for impact fees shall be credited against roadway impact
fees otherwise due, in accordance with the City's impact fee regulations.

5. Drainage Improvements. Dedication of rights-of-way for and construction of
drainage improvements shall be provided as specified in conditions imposed with
approval of the master plat for development within the PD District and in
accordance with City standards and specifications.

6. Parks and Open Space.

a. The Developer or a property owners association shall maintain public
parklands and improvements within the development for a period of three (3)
months from the completion and acceptance of the improvements.
Thereafter, the City shall assume responsibilities for maintenance. All open
space and improvements which are not dedicated as parkland to the City
shall be maintained as common areas in perpetuity by the property owners
association for the PD District. Additionally, the property owners association
shall maintain Developer-installed landscaping areas in public rights-of-way
and public drainage ways internal to and adjacent to the Property.

lll. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Notice on Sale. The Developer shall provide the City with notice of the sale of
any tract or parcel within the District that has not been platted at the following
address:

Rockwall City Manager
Rockwall City Hall
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, TX 75087

2. Recording. This Agreement is intended to run with the land, and shall be
recorded in the Real Property Records, Rockwall County, Texas.

3. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate two (2) vears following the
City's acceptance of the dedication and construction of the public improvements
described herein serving the last phase of development within the PD District,
after which the City agrees, upon the request of the Developer to execute a
termination of this Agreement in recordable form. Any reimbursements for
payment of impact fees shall not expire.

4. Effective Date. This Agreement shall take effect upon the date of its execution by

the last of the Parties to the Agreement; provided, however, that Breezy shall
execute this Agreement no later than five (5) business days following the

g?\“
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effective date of the PD zoning ordinance for the Property. If Breezy fails to
execute this Agreement within such period, this Agreement shall become null
and void, and unless a subsequent agreement, acceptable to the City and the
Developer, is agreed to, the City may thereafter deny any PD site plan, master
plat or other plat application on grounds that the application is not supported by
adequate public facilities and services.

5. Severability. Invalidation of any provision of this Agreement by judgment or court
order shall not invalidate any of the remaining provisions which shall remain in
full force and effect, unless such remaining provisions are an integral part of the
invalid_provisions or the invalid provision is necessary to give effect to the
remaining provisions.

6. Enforcement. This Agreement may be enforced by the Parties by any proceeding
at law or in equity. Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce the
provisions of this Agreement thereafter.

7. Venue. Venue for this Agreement shall be in Rockwall County, Texas.

8. Execution. This Agreement may be separately executed in individual
counterparts, and upon execution, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

9. Amendment. This Agreement may only be amended in writing upon mutual
consent of the City and the Developer.

10. Joint preparation. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been jointly prepared
by all Parties hereto, and no ambiguity of this Agreement shall be construed
against any party based upon the identity of the author of this Agreement or any
portion thereof.

11. Recitals Incorporated. Statements and representations contained herein are to
be considered contractual in nature and not merely recitations of fact. The
Recitals contained in Part | of this Agreement hereby are expressly incorporated
into this Agreement by reference.

12. Construction. All references herein in the singular shall be construed to include
the plural where applicable, the masculine to include the feminine and neuter
genders.

13. Authority. Each of the signatories to this Agreement represents and warrants that
he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind his principals to the terms
and provisions hereof. Each Party warrants that any action required to be taken
in order for this Agreement to be binding on it has been duly and properly taken
prior to the execution of this Agreement.

14. Conflicts. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and any provision of
the Unified Development Code, the City Code, or any City ordinance, rule,
regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that is different from
and inconsistent with this Agreement, the standards in this Agreement shall

control.
W
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15. No Waiver. Developer retains the right to challenge the application of any City
impact fee regulations to the Property solely on the basis that such regulations
fail to comply with Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code, as
amended. If Developer prevails in such a claim, impact fees shall be applied to
the development of the Property and paid by the Developer, as applicable, in
accordance with the court order.
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PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT

OF.RO ALL
\\“"‘“Er(m'"fm
SerOCWas,
§FQu A
SAls 02
o g <out
S HZE
g SEAL H Name: Pavip SWEET
" e"g
‘4‘4? —.—... \\'a's.
""’l'"mu|||u|l\‘“\\ Title: MALij)L.
STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED TO BEFORE ME, by said DAv/D SwWEET, who in their
capacity as MAYoR_ for the City of Rockwall, acknowledges that he was

authorized to execute the foregoing document this _2nd day of Oodnhe— 2012,
certify witness my hand and seal of office.
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PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT
ATAS
BREEZY HILL 405, LTD, yre) RO Wil

s A COZrCAAT Y,
LAY M e Cp (Lot T couu ol

oy S B 2z,
Sffstss

Name: funACd H. \Q,é’om,f(

Title: _ Akeime]

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §
SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED TO BEFORE ME, by said Lsed M. SeEBRL | who in their
capacity as 6007 _for the Breezy Hill 405, LTD, acknowledges that he was

authorized to execute the foregoing document this _ [*° day of ccwze& = 2012,
certify withess my hand and seal of office.

A : {gé'rf;x%, Kellie Lee Paich
Y * *:
L)

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas i PR oy e, St s
§ e My Comm. Bxpins 05112/ 2015 i
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City of Rockwall
Shhe New Fowzon

MEMORANDUM
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Jeffrey Widmer, Building Official
DATE: 6-20-2016

SUBJECT: Sign Plan for Fenton Nissan to be located at 1700 IH 30

Ms. Melanie Hancock of Hancock Signs representing Fenton Nissan has asked to appear
before the City Council to request approval of a sign plan.

The applicant is requesting two pole signs, with one being 636 square feet in size and 42.5 feet
in height and the other being 200 square feet in size and 50 feet in height. The applicant states
that the increased height is necessary to provide needed visibility on IH 30 due to the John King
overpass being located directly in front of their property.

Our sign ordinance allows a maximum height of 30 feet and a maximum size of 200 square feet
for pole signage.

Nissan has received approval from the FAA for the proposed height of their signs and the
proposed signs meet all other requirements within our sign ordinance.
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June 9, 2016

John Ankrum

City of Rockwall
Building Inspection
385 S. Goliad
Rockwall 75087

Re: Sign variance
Fenton Nissan pylon signs

Dear Mr. Ankrum:

We are requesting a height variance for two pylon signs at Fenton Nissan at
1700 E. I-30. The increased height of the signs is due to the 1-30 being elevated
in front of this property. The additional height is necessary for the signs to be
visible. In addition, a square footage variance is required for one of the signs.
The actual size of the cabinet with copy is 162 sq ft.. The proposed 636 square
feet we are requesting is due to the pole covers being used in the calculation for
square footage. Please find the attached artwork and site plans.

If you need any additional information please feel free to contact me.

Thank you for your assistance.

Melanie Hancock
Hancock Sign Company
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NISSAN NORTH AMERICA, INC.

Nissan Retail Environment Design Initiative
Sign Program

lll. SCHEDULE OF SIGNS CONTINUED
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Fenton Nissan of Rockwall
Rockwall, TX
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Rev. #3-060916
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NISSAN NORTH AMERICA, INC.

S
Nissan Retail Environment Design Initiative
Sign Program |

Il. SITE PLAN AND COLOR RENDERINGS
The following provide a visual representation of the prepared solution.
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CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL MEMO

AGENDA DATE: 06/20/2016

APPLICANT: Theresa and Ronald Briones

AGENDA ITEM: MIS2016-008; Masonry Exception (905 N. Alamo Street)

SUMMARY:

Discuss and consider a request by Theresa and Ronald Briones for the approval of an
exception to the minimum masonry requirements stipulated in Section 3.1, General Residential
District Standards, of Article V, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development
Code, for a 0.248-acre parcel of land identified as part of Lot 7, Block 5, Garner Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 10 (SF-10) District, addressed as 905
N. Alamo Street/906 N. West Street, and take any action necessary.

CHARACTERISTICS OF REQUEST:

The applicant is requesting to construct a new home on the vacant lot at 905 N. Alamo Street
utilizing 100% Hardy Plank® or a similar siding material. The subject property is located just
north of the intersection of Heath Street and N. Alamo Street and is zoned Single Family 10
(SF-10) District. According to Section 3.1, General Residential District Standards, of Article V,
District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code the minimum masonry (i.e.
brick, stone -- natural, cast or cultured -- glass block, tile and/or CMU) requirement for exterior
walls on structures that are 120 square feet or greater is 80%; with a maximum of 50% of this
masonry requirement being permitted to be Hardy Plank®, stucco or a similar cementaceous
material. Additionally, the code states that, “(e)xceptions to these requirements ... may be
permitted on a case-by-case basis by the City Council upon submission and approval of
elevation drawings of the subject structure, and materials samples.” The applicant has
submitted building elevations and photos of other homes in the neighborhood that have Hardy
Board or similar siding. Additionally, the applicant has stated in a letter submitted to staff that
the purpose of requesting the masonry exception is to match the materials and architectural
style of the adjacent properties. Staff should note that the majority of the structures on the
adjacent properties utilize 100% vinyl/wood siding or a similar cementaceous lap siding
material.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant's request staff would recommend the
following conditions:

1) Any construction or building allowed by this request must conform to the requirements set
forth by the Unified Development Code, the International Building Code, the Rockwall
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other
applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal
government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONS:

On June 14, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to recommend approval of
the special request to allow for a new home to be clad in 100% Hardy Plank® or similar siding
passed by a vote of 6 to 0 with Commissioner Trowbridge absent.
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MIS2016-008- 905 N. ALAMO STREET
MISCELLANEOUS - LOCATION MAP H%)
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C ity Of Rockwa I I The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually u